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INTRODUCTION 
 

These financial statements contain the results and position for the 18-month period ended 31 December 

2017 (the “period”). The financial year end of the Government was changed from 30 June to 31 December 

based on an amendment to the Public Management and Finance Act (2013 Revision), authorised by the 

Parliament. Accordingly, the comparative figures in the financial statements are for the twelve months 

ended 30 June 2016 and are not comparable to the period’s results. Due to the change in financial year 

the comparability of the financial statements of the Government of the Cayman Islands will be also be 

impacted for the year ending 31 December 2018.   

 

Also included in the information presented are: 

• the original budget for the year as published in the 2016/17 Annual Plan & Estimates; and 

• the audited actuals for the prior year, 2015/16. 
 
This commentary should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and disclosure notes.  
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GOVERNMENT STRUCTURE 
 

The Cayman Islands is an Overseas Territory of the United Kingdom, a foreign sovereign territory. Her 

Majesty the Queen of England (‘‘Her Majesty’’), as the British queen regnant, is the head of state of the 
Cayman Islands. Her Majesty appoints a representative (the ‘‘Governor’’) to administer the Government 

of the Cayman Islands on her behalf. As the Cayman Islands is not part of the United Kingdom, the Cayman 
Islands has its own Constitution and is governed by a local parliamentary democracy comprised of 
executive, legislative and judicial branches. The Governor administers the Cayman Islands on behalf of 

Her Majesty and is constitutionally bound to promote the good governance and act in the best interest of 
the Cayman Islands, so long as it is consistent with the United Kingdom’s interests. The United Kingdom 

provides defence of the Cayman Islands, and the Royal Cayman Islands Police Service provides police 
services in the Cayman Islands. 
 

While all of the Cayman Islands’ financing decisions are made by the Parliament and Cabinet, and the 
United Kingdom does not provide direct financial support to the Cayman Islands, the United Kingdom 
closely monitors borrowings incurred by the Cayman Islands. 

 
The Cabinet is responsible for creating Government policy and currently consists of ten Cabinet members, 

headed by the Governor. The ten members consist of seven ministers (the ‘‘Ministers’’) – one of whom is 
the Premier – who are appointed by and from within the elected members of the Parliament, and two 
members (the ‘‘Members’’) consisting of the Deputy Governor and the Attorney General.  

 
The Government’s organisational structure is broken into Core Government and Statutory Authorities and 
Government Companies (SAGCs), and is collectively referred to as the Entire Public Sector (EPS). Core 

Government is made up of the Parliament, the Governor in Cabinet, Ministries, Portfolios, and Offices 
(M/P/O’s) and includes the equity investment in SAGCs. 

 
Various statutory boards and authorities have been established for specific purposes, including, but not 
limited to, Cayman Airways Limited, Cayman Islands Airports Authority, Cayman Islands Development 

Bank, Cayman Islands National Insurance Company, Cayman Islands Health Services Authority, Water 
Authority ‒ Cayman, Cayman Turtle Farm (1983) Limited,  Cayman Islands Stock Exchange and Port 
Authority of the Cayman Islands. 
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KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

The Government of the Cayman Islands has again posted a Surplus. The four previous surpluses have all 

been the results of a 12-month fiscal financial year ending 30 June. However, this latest surplus of $140.5 

million was achieved by the Entire Public Sector (EPS), for the 18-month period. For the prior year that 

ended 30 June 2016, the EPS achieved a Surplus of $148.5 million. Historically Government has recorded 

the highest revenue and collected the highest volume of cash between the months of December and 

March as fees associated with financial services are due in January. Additionally, the period included a 

double portion of the year when revenues are typically at their lowest, the months of July through 

November. 

Actual EPS Surplus results out-performed the EPS original budget by $93.8 million for the financial year 

2016/17. 

The Government’s financial position remains strong as: 

Net Assets (total Assets less all recognised Liabilities) were $1.0 billion as at 31 December 2017.  EPS debt 

continued to decline based on no new borrowings during the period with debt repayments. 

For the second consecutive time since 2012 the Government achieved full compliance with the 

Framework for Fiscal Responsibility (FFR) as required by the Foreign and Commonwealth Office (FCO) and 

the Public Management and Finance Act (PMFA) (2017 Revision), for prudent fiscal management.  

In the previous three consecutive years, total contributions from SAGCs have been positive. SAGCs posted 

a net surplus of $1.4 million as at 31 December 2017, (2015/16: $18.2 million surplus).  
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ECONOMIC OVERVIEW BASED ON ANNUAL ECONOMIC REPORT 2017 (Calendar Year) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Economics and Statistics Office 

  

 The international economy recorded robust growth and higher inflation in 2017, driven by 
increased investment and trade.  

 The Cayman Islands’ gross domestic product (GDP) expanded anew in 2017 at an estimated rate of 
2.9 percent, marginally lower than the 3.1 percent growth recorded in 2016.  

 Growth was indicated in all sectors led by hotels and restaurants, construction, real estate, renting 
and business activities including legal and accounting services, and electricity and water supply.  

 Nominal GDP per capita income was estimated at $49,228, higher relative to the $48,314 recorded 
for 2016. A faster pace of growth in nominal GDP drove the increase for the year.  

 The average inflation rate in 2017 was 2.0 percent, compared to -0.7 percent a year ago. Inflationary 
pressures emanated mainly from increased domestic demand coupled with a rise in international 
crude oil prices.  

 Total employment increased by 1.1 percent to 40,856 from a year ago. The growth in employment 
was, however, outweighed by a stronger growth in the labour force which resulted in a rise in the 
unemployment rate to 4.9 percent in 2017. The unemployment rate among Caymanians was 
estimated at 7.3 percent.  

 In 2017, merchandise imports grew by 2.7 percent to reach $876.0 million, supported by increases of 
17.0 percent and 1.0 percent in oil-related and non-oil imports, respectively.  

 Money supply expanded by 18.4 percent to register at $7.3 billion in 2017. This monetary expansion 
was due mainly to a 22.0 percent increase in foreign currency-denominated deposits, augmented by 
a 7.9 percent growth in local currency deposits.  

 Domestic credit from commercial banks grew by $104.7 million (or 3.4%) to settle at $3,188.5 
million. Credit to the private sector increased by 5.0 percent while that to the public sector 
contracted by 13.3 percent. The increase in private sector credit was due mainly to higher credit for 
households’ domestic property and motor vehicles.  

 Indicators for the financial services industry showed a mix overall performance with trust 
companies, stock exchange listings and market capitalization, new company registration and new 
partnership registrations growing, while bank and trust licences, insurance licences and mutual 
funds (including master funds) declined.  

 In 2017, total visitors to the Cayman Islands increased to total 2.1 million. Growth of 8.5 percent and 
1.0 percent in stay-over arrivals and cruise passengers, respectively, spurred arrivals during the 
year.  

 Building intention indicators were mixed in 2017. The value of planning approvals in Grand 
Cayman rose by 96.4 percent to $798.7 million, mainly due to a large hotel project. On the other 
hand, the value of building permits in Grand Cayman declined by 5.0 percent to $234.7 million.  

 Real estate activity declined during the year as the total value of property transfers fell by 3.5 
percent to $830.2 million, due solely to freehold transfers as leasehold transfers increased in value.  

 The central government’s overall surplus in 2017 reached $140.6 million (4.5% of GDP) compared 
with $99.6 million (3.4% of GDP) in 2016. The larger surplus resulted from a higher increase in 
revenue (6.7%) relative to the rise in expenditure (0.8%).  

 The central government’s total outstanding debt continued to decline, settling at $449.1 million 
(14.5 percent of GDP) at the end of 2017, lower by $34.8 million compared to the level at end 2016.  

 GDP is projected to grow in 2018 by 3.0 percent, due largely to expected growth in the construction 
of private and public sector projects, and continued growth in tourism-related services. Stable 
growth is projected in the financing and insurance sector. The inflation rate is expected at 2.7 
percent arising principally from external pressures. The overall unemployment rate is projected to 
fall to 4.4 percent.  
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PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
Government Revenue and Expenditure 

Revenue 

 
The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods which reflect the results of a 12-month 

reporting period.   

 

 Annualised total EPS revenue was $903.8 million. 

 Annualised total oercive revenue calculates to $635.2 million. 

 

What is the Government’s primary source of revenue?  

The primary source of revenue is coercive revenue, which was 70% of total public sector revenue in 
2016/17 (2015/16: 71%), while sale of goods and services represented 28%. Coercive revenues are those 

revenues collected by Government under its coercive powers authorised under various laws passed by 
the Parliament (e.g. import duties, work permit fees, bank license fees, etc.) and for which there is no 
direct exchange of goods or services. The primary type of coercive revenue is import duties, which 

represents 26% of total coercive revenue in financial year 2016/17 (2015/16: 24%). See chart below 
showing details of total coercive revenue:  
 

 

Revenue 2016/17 2015/16

 Coercive Revenue 952,834         673,261 

 Sales of Goods & Services 384,810         261,390 

 Investment Revenue 15,631            5,669      

 Donations 2,405              931          

 Other Revenue 71                    2,771      

Total Revenue 1,355,751      944,022 

EPS Actual CI$000
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The preceding chart also shows that fees collected from the financial services industry (bank and trust 

licenses, company registry fees, and mutual fund administrator fees) is a significant portion of 

Government revenue; these fees represented 27% of total coercive revenue and 19% of total public sector 

revenue as at 31 December 2017.   

Six-year trend table on coercive revenue below: 

 
The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods which reflect the results of a 12-month 

reporting period.   
See Note 21 of the EPS Accounts. 

 

Proceeds of Liquidated Entities – the 2015 amendment to the PMFA allowed the Government to 

recognise, in revenue, any trust asset that remained unclaimed for a period of four years after having 

become transferable to any person entitled to the asset.   

  

DESCRIPTION

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Import Duties 159,923   169,113   161,670    156,393    159,834    243,239    

Banks and Trust Licenses 23,373     33,511     34,225      32,795      31,592      30,074      

Company Registry Fees 54,828     62,145     134,355    140,739    146,863    182,135    

Work Permits & Other Immigration Fees 97,759     107,557   71,278      79,914      79,364      135,145    

Mutual Fund Administrators 34,717     41,893     45,140      43,139      44,544      49,213      

Stamp Duty - Land Transfers 23,254     35,422     30,502      38,967      52,987      76,340      

Cruise & Environment Tax 13,468     13,946     13,695      15,409      16,494      23,061      

Tourist Accommodation Charges 11,783     14,105     18,725      20,643      21,134      33,559      

Proceeds of Liquidated Entities -           -           -           -            16,652      3,550        

Other Fees 67,983     82,485     102,027    95,505      103,797    176,518    

Total Coercive Revenue 487,088   560,177   611,617    623,503    673,261    952,834    

EPS Actual CI$000
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EXPENDITURE 

What does Government Spend on Providing Services and Operating Costs?  

The most significant elements of expenditure were the cost of employing staff and the purchase of 

supplies and consumables for normal day-to-day operations. Personnel costs represented approximately 

50% of total expenditure as at 31 December 2017, which is typical for service-based organisations and 

consistent with prior years. See table below of total public sector expenses: 

 

 
The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods which reflect the results of a 12-month 

reporting period.   

 
Personnel Costs 

Salaries and wages accounted for the largest portion of personnel expenses (Annualised 2016/17: $346.0 

million). Core Government costs for salaries, wages and allowances were $304.5 million (Annualised 

2016/17: $203.0 million). Core Government represented 63% (2015/16: 66%) of total EPS personnel costs.  

 
The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods which reflect the results of a 12-month 

reporting period.   
See Note 25 of the EPS Accounts. 

 

 

DESCRIPTION

2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16

  Personnel costs 610,639    400,116     50% 50%

  Supplies and consumables (including Leases) 346,418    223,896     29% 28%

  Depreciation 88,098       53,851       7% 7%

  Outputs from Non-Government

  Organisations 51,585       32,538       4% 4%

  Transfer Payments 48,556       30,251       4% 4%

  Other Operating Expenses 26,457       24,316       2% 3%

  Financing expense 43,540       31,007       4% 4%

Total Expenses 1,215,293 795,975     100% 100%

% of Total Public 

Sector ExpensesEPS Actual CI$000

Description

2016/17 2015/16

Salaries, Wages and Allowances 518,883    333,653

Health Care 14,877       7,625

Pension 28,086       19,713

Leave             (813) 552

Defined Benefit Pension Liability 14,304       25,389

Post Retirement Health Care Liability 26,755       5,868

Other Personnel Costs 8,547         7,316

Total Personnel Costs 610,639          400,116 

EPS Actual CI$000
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Supplies and Consumables 

Supplies and consumables annualised for 2016/17 were $222.7 million. See table of details of supplies 

and consumables below: 

 
The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods which reflect the results of a 12-month 

reporting period.   
See Note 26 of the EPS Accounts. 

 

 

Outputs from Non-Government Organisations 

Non-government Organisations (NGOs) involved in civic activities are allowed to access funding from the 

Government. These groups have to submit yearly applications for continued funding as well as account 

for past disbursements.  

Total purchase of outputs from NGOs in 2016/17 was $51.6 million (Annualised 2016/17: $34.4 million, 

2015/16: $32.5 million).  The largest category of these payments was for the provision of tertiary care by 

overseas organisations for referred persons, which totalled $30.1 million or 58% of Outputs from NGOs 

(2015/16: $17.4 million or 53%). See Note 28 for more information on outputs to NGOs. 

 

Transfer Payments 

Transfer payments are the transfer of money from Government to an individual, organisation or another 

government for which the Government does not: 

 receive any goods or services directly in return as would occur in a purchase/sales transaction; 

 expect to be repaid in the future, as would be expected in a loan; or 

 expect a financial return, as would be expected in an investment. 

During the period, the Government of the Cayman Islands made transfer payments of $48.6 million 

(Annualised 2016/17: $32.4 million, 2015/16: $30.2 million); included in this amount was $17.8 million 

(Annualised 2016/17 $11.9 million, 2015/16: $10.8 million) in local and overseas education scholarships, 

Description

2016/17 2015/16

Supplies and Materials 76,126       48,323

Purchase of services 152,143    95,491

Utilities 29,373       20,760

General Insurance 12,751       11,606

Travel and Subsistence 6,037         4,232

Recruitment & Training 4,741         3,365

Other 52,867       32,245

Supplies & Consumables       334,038       216,022 

Leases 12,380       7,874          

Total Supplies & Consumables and Leases       346,418       223,896 

EPS Actual CI$000
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$11.5 million (Annualised 2016/17: $7.7 million, 2015/16: $7.3 million) in Poor Relief, $9.6 million 

(Annualised 2016/17 $6.4 million, 2015/16: $6.2 million) in benefit payments to seamen and ex-

servicemen. See Note 29 of the EPS accounts. 

Financing Expenses 

What does Government Pay to Finance its Liabilities?  

The most significant element of financing costs as at 31 December 2017 was Debt financing expense of 

$43.5 million (2015/16: $31.0 million). This consists of interest paid on bank borrowings and to bond 

holders.  
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Net Revenue or Surplus (Revenue less Expenses) 

The surplus for the period was $140.5 million (Annualised $93.6 million, 2015/16: $148.5 million).  On an 

annualised basis total revenues calculate to $903.8 million and total expenses annualised results are 

$810.2 million. See table of five-year revenue and expenditure summary below: 

The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods which reflect the results of a 12-month reporting 

period.   

  

DESCRIPTION

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Coercive Revenue 487,088   560,177   611,617    623,503    673,261    952,834    

Sales of Goods & Services 189,761   245,935   234,165    261,478    261,344    384,810    

Investment Revenue 2,321       2,636       2,336        4,700        5,669        15,631      

Donations 145          1,401       1,203        1,081        931           2,405        

Other Revenue 599          144          101           300           2,817        71             

Total Revenue 679,914   810,293   849,422    891,062    944,022    1,355,751 

Personnel costs 331,040   345,049   352,316    352,795    400,116    610,639    

Supplies and consumables 201,512   246,785   236,842    231,567    223,896    346,418    

Depreciation 40,207     45,182     43,734      50,846      53,851      88,098      

Outputs from Non-Governmental Organizations 29,088     25,985     26,464      29,445      32,538      51,585      

Transfer Payments 32,870     32,277     31,130      27,274      30,251      48,556      

Other Operating Expenses 37,253     22,145     18,306      19,165      23,831      26,457      

Financing expense 39,143     39,221     35,816      33,280      31,007      43,540      

Total Expenses 711,113   756,644   744,608    744,372    795,490    1,215,293 

Net Revenues/Surplus (31,199)    53,649     104,814    146,690    148,532    140,458    

EPS Actual CI$000



xiii | P a g e  
This Annual Report should be read in conjunction with the  

Financial Statements for the 18–month period ended 31 December 2017 

Government Assets and Liabilities  

What are the Most Significant Assets Owned and Controlled by Government? 

 
The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods  

which reflect the results of a 12-month reporting period.   
 
 

 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

The most significant assets owned and controlled by the Government are property, plant and equipment 

(which include land and buildings, infrastructure, vehicles and equipment). See Note 10 of the EPS 

accounts. 

 

Assets 2016/2017 2015/16 2014/15

Property Plant and 

Equipment 1,752,736 1,732,843 2,068,405 

Investments 554,591     438,511     102,077     

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(including Bank Overdraft) 220,281     231,415     406,435     

Trade Receivables 3,488          32,165       31,707       

Loans Made 26,243       30,285       30,470       

EPS Actual CI$000
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Investments 

Investments increased due to the shift of longer-term fixed deposits. Over 76% of investments consist of 

fixed deposits (over 90 days and within 365 days). Core Government investments of $401.7 million as at 

31 December 2017 represents approximately 72% of total investments, with the SAGCs holding less than 

28%. The majority of the $152.9 million investments held by SAGCs forms part of the Currency Reserve 

Assets of the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority (the Authority). These assets are to be used to fund the 

Authority's currency redemption obligations. See Note 7 of the EPS accounts. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of 

acquisition, including cash on hand, cash in transit, deposits held on call with banks and other short term 

highly liquid investments. See Note 2 of the EPS accounts. 

Trade Receivables 

The majority of the trade receivables are held by SAGCs. SAGCs held 70% of trade receivables as at 31 

December 2017 while less than 30% were held by Core Government. See Note 3 of the EPS accounts. 

The table below shows gross trade receivables of $129.4 million (2015/16: $143.8 million) as at 31 

December 2017 less provision for doubtful debts of $98.9 million (2015/16: $111.6 million), resulting in 

net trade receivables of $31.0 million (2015/16: $32.2 million). 

Additional provisions for doubtful debts of $4.7 million were incurred during 18-month period 2016/17 

(2015/16: $14.6 million); the majority of which relate to doubtful trade receivables in the SAGCs.  

 

Loans Made 

Loans Made consists mainly of commercial loans made by the Cayman Islands Development Bank and 

loans made to cover overseas medical care to persons not/insufficiently covered by health insurance. See 

Note 6 of the EPS accounts. 
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What are the Main Liabilities of Government?  

The table below shows the main liabilities of the Entire Public Sector: 

  
The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods which reflect the                                                   

results of a 12-month reporting period.   

 

 

  

Liabilities 2016/17 2015/16

Borrowings/Public Debt           518,645 593,191        

Retirement Benefits           709,833 481,283        

Currency Issued           119,544 106,876        

Unearned Revenue             86,929 65,282           

Other Payables & Accruals           121,635 62,830           

Trade Payables             28,206 20,213           

EPS Actual CI$000
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Public Sector Debt 

To finance its activities and obligations, the Government borrows from the market to ensure sufficient 

funding is available to meet its daily cash requirements and financial commitments. Government 

borrowing comprises long-term borrowing in the form of commercial bank loans and a bond issued in 

2009. There has been no new borrowing during the period. See table of public sector debt below: 

 
The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods which reflect the results of a 12-month 

reporting period.   
See Note 17 of the EPS Accounts. 

 

 

 

Description

Opening 

Balance 1st July 

2016

Drawdowns/ 

Additions Repayments Revaluation

Closing Balance 

31st December 

2017

CI$000 CI$000 CI$000 CI$000 CI$000

Core             503,318                     -            52,306                 69                451,081 

Water Authority of the Cayman Islands                 3,926                     -               2,144                  -                       1,782 

Port Authority of the Cayman Islands                 1,753                     -               1,753                  -                              -   

Cayman Islands Development Bank               32,209                     -               8,282                  -                     23,927 

Health Services Authority                 1,389                     -               1,389                  -                              -   

National Housing Development Trust               15,743                     -               1,918                  -                     13,825 

Cayman Airways Limited               20,368                     -                  376                  -                     19,992 

Cayman Islands Turtle Farm (1983) Limited               14,486                     -               6,449                  -                       8,038 

Total             593,191                     -            74,615                 69                518,645 
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Total Public debt continued to decline, from $593.2 million to $518.6 million, as principal repayments of 

$74.6 million were applied and no new borrowing.  

 

Public Service Retirement Benefits 

The other significant liability is public service retirement benefits; the liability consists of $459.3 million of 

pension liability and $250.5 million of post-retirement healthcare liability for some SAGCs. Pension liability 

reflects pensions that will be paid out over employees’ lifetimes as current employees in the public service 

retire and start to draw their pension, funded by future revenues or pension scheme assets. See pension 

liability by category below:  

Pension Liability 

 
The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods which reflect the results of a 12-month 

reporting period.   
See Note 16 of the EPS Accounts. 

Health Care Liability 

The results of health care liability actuarial valuation, completed in March 2018, estimated the post-

retirement health care obligation as at December 2017 to be $1.7 billion (net $1.6 billion) with the post-

retirement medical expense totalling $250.5 million for the period ended 31 December 2017.  The 

assumptions of the actuarial valuation have not been accepted by the Government and therefore the 

post-retirement health care obligation and related expenditure has not been formally recognised on the 

Statements of Financial Position and Performance. 

Therefore, for all intents and purposes, the Government is on a “pay-as-you-go” plan in respect of post-

retirement health care liabilities. Currently, no long-term assets are set aside to help fund the 

Government’s post-retirement health care liability. 

Currency Issued 

Currency Issued (or Demand Liabilities) represents the value of currency notes and coins in circulation. 

These liabilities are fully funded by the Currency Reserve Assets of the Cayman Islands Monetary 

Authority. See Note 19 of the EPS accounts. 

 

 

Description 2016/2017 2015/2016 2014/2015 2013/2014 2012/2013 2011/2012

Core Government 399,808               398,622        183,794        183,794        183,794        183,794 

Parliamentarian Pensions 20,747                   17,030          12,910          12,910          12,910          12,910 

Judicial Pensions (220)                              124              (447)              (447)              (447)              (447)

Central Government Pension Liability Fair Value 420,335               415,776        196,257        196,257        196,257        196,257 

Statutory Authorities and Government Companies 38,966                   33,719          30,791          29,262          15,473          12,777 

Entire Public Sector Pension Liability Fair Value          459,301        449,495        227,048        225,519        211,730        209,034 

CI$000
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Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue consists of revenues collected but not yet earned. See table of unearned revenue 

below: 

 
The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods which reflect the results of a 12-month 

reporting period.   
See Note 14 of the EPS Accounts. 

 

Trade Payables, and Other Payable and Accruals 

Trade payables, and other payable and accruals are expenses incurred (service and or goods and supplies 

were received) but not paid before 31 December 2017; they are non-interest bearing and are normally 

settled on 30 day terms. Accounts payable includes invoices received from suppliers not yet settled. See 

Note 13 of the EPS accounts.  

Description 2016/17 2015/16

Customs Deposits 1,369                           1,493 

Immigration Deposits 25,425                       26,411 

Cayman Airways Deposits 7,266                           8,966 

General Registry Deposits 27,897                         5,416 

Lease of Crown Lands 13,918                       14,220 

Revenue and Other Deposits Held 11,054                         8,776 

Total Unearned Revenue 86,929 65,282 

EPS Actual CI$000
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PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS 
 

Net Assets/Equity (Assets minus Liabilities) 

Net assets equalled $1.0 billion in 2016/17 (2015/16: $1.2 billion). See table with six-year trend in key 

assets and liabilities below:  

 
The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods which reflect the results of a 12-month 

reporting period.   
 

 

Assets  

Total assets as at 31 December 2017 were $2.7 billion (2015/16: $2.5 billion). The largest categories of 

assets were Property, Plant and Equipment of $1.8 billion followed by $554.6 million worth of 

Investments, held mainly in short-term marketable securities and deposits. 

Cash & Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2017 were $220.3 million (2015/16: $231.4 million). During 

2016/17, short-term fixed deposits were transferred another category of investments with maturities 

over 90 days but no more than 365 days. See table of cash and cash equivalents below: 

 
The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods which reflect the results  of a                             

12-month reporting period.   

  

DESCRIPTION

Assets 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(including Bank Overdraft) 157,275     196,013     281,182     406,435     231,415     220,281     

Trade Receivables 48,721       48,864       26,185       31,707       32,165       31,034       

Investments 110,388     98,884       99,582       102,077     438,511     554,591     

Loans Made 36,598       34,542       32,774       30,470       30,285       26,243       

Property Plant and Equipment2,058,506 2,105,054 2,078,619 2,068,405 1,732,843 1,752,736 

Liabilities

Borrowings/Public Debt 745,191     709,760     671,247     629,672     593,191     518,645     

Retirement Benefits 220,696     221,509     219,290     227,048     481,283     709,833     

Currency Issued 88,696       87,229       91,720       94,887       106,876     119,544     

Unearned Revenue 32,133       33,054       37,313       40,238       65,282       86,929       

Other Payables & Accruals 49,501       52,748       63,942       49,717       62,830       121,634     

Trade Payables 29,142       25,454       27,369       30,163       20,213       28,206       

EPS Actual CI$000

Description 2016/17 2015/16

Cash on hand and in operationa accounts 180,134                  126,610 

Fixed Deposits (Less than 90 days) 40,147                     104,805 

Cash and Cash Equivalents           220,281           231,415 

Held by

Central Government 61,240                       89,096 

Statutory Authorities & Government Companies 159,041                  142,319 

Cash and Cash Equivalents           220,281           231,415 

        EPS Actual CI$000
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Investments 

Deposits previously reported as cash and cash equivalents are now being classified as investments due 

to longer maturity dates. See table below: 

 
The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods which reflect the                                                

results of a 12-month reporting period.   
 

Overall, Central Government’s cash and cash equivalents, and investments increased by $53.5 million 

compared to the prior year. The increase in cash coupled with reduction in debt, enabled the Government 

to meet its fiscal strategy and ensure compliance with the Framework for Fiscal Responsibility. 

Liabilities 

Total EPS liabilities at 31 December 2017 were $1.6 billion (2015/16: $1.4 billion). Retirement Benefits 

and Long-Term Debt are the largest balances held as liabilities. 

Retirement Benefits Liability 

IPSAS 39 requires that the pension liabilities be revalued annually in order to present the fair value of the 

fund balances. Core Government and SAGCs have employed consultants to carry-out this annual fair value 

assessment. The result of the 2017 actuarial valuation is a net liability of $709.8 million (Central 

Government net liability – $415.8 million).  

Description 2016/17 2015/16

Short-Term Investments 519,435                  433,314 

Long-Term Investments 35,156                         5,197 

Total Investments           554,591           438,511 

Held by

Central Government 401,700                  320,353 

Statutory Authorities & Government Companies 152,891                  118,158 

Total Investments           554,591           438,511 

        EPS Actual CI$000
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Currency Issued (Demand Liabilities) 

These liabilities increased due to increased amounts of notes and coins in circulation. See Note 19 of the 

EPS accounts. 

Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenues represent cash collected but not earned as at 31 December 2017. Unearned revenue 

consists mostly of General Registry deposits of $27.9 million and Immigration deposits of $25.4 million.  
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Contingent Liabilities  

A contingent liability is a potential liability that may occur, depending on the outcome of an uncertain 

future event. Contingent liabilities are reported at the point the contingency becomes evident. Contingent 

liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that may require an 

outflow of resources.   

The Government discloses contingent liabilities in note 35 of the EPS annual accounts in two categories, 

environmental remediation and legal proceedings and disputes. The environmental remediation liability 

is as a result of the operation of waste landfills on all three Islands. The capping of the Grand Cayman 

landfill was out to tender at the signing of the EPS annual accounts. 

The Government is routinely engaged in litigation arising from the ordinary course of its business. It does 

not believe that any such litigation will individually, or in aggregate, have a material adverse financial 

effect on the Government. It is Government's policy to rigorously assert its position in such cases. Should 

the Government be unsuccessful in these matters, it does not expect the outcome to materially affect the 

results of operations or financial position.  

Guarantees 

Guarantees of the Government include: Guarantees of the borrowings of SAGCs, and guarantees, either 

collective or specific, of the loans of certain individuals and companies obtained from the private sector. 

See table of guarantees below: 

 

The weighting in the table above is applied under the PMFA based on entities that: 

 require an unpredictable level of budgetary support from the Governor in Cabinet and are given 

an 80% weighting; 

 are financially stable and require predictable levels of support and are given a 50% weighting; and 

 have not required budgetary support during the last three (3) years and are given 20% weighting.  

  

Description
Weighting 

Applied

Guaranteed 

Balance as at 

31 December 

2017

Loan Balance as 

at 31 December 

2017

CI$'000 CI$'000

Cayman Islands Turtle Farm (1983) Limited 80% 6,430 8,038

Cayman Airways Limited 80% 15,994 19,992

Water Authority of the Cayman Islands 20% 356 1,782

Cayman Islands Development Bank 50% 11,964 23,927

Port Authority of the Cayman Islands 20% -              -                      

National Housing Development Trust 80% 11,060 13,825

45,804 67,564
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Commitments 

Commitments are future expenses and liabilities to be incurred on contracts that have been entered into 

as at 31 December 2017. See table of commitments below: 

See Note 34 of the EPS Accounts. 

  

One Year 

or Less

One to Five 

Years

Over Five 

Years 31 December 2017 30 June 2016

Type CI$000 CI$000 CI$000 CI$000 CI$000

Capital Commitments

Capital Commitments 4,500                 270                     12,000               16,770                     69,403               

489                     -                          -                          489                           -                          

20                       -                          -                          20                             -                          

Total Capital Commitments 5,008                 270                     12,000               17,278                     69,403               

Operating Commitments

Non-Cancellable Accommodation Leases

Accommodation leases 121,584             187,000             118,382             426,966                   16,880               

Accommodation leases 770                     -                          -                          770                           -                          

Other Non-Cancellable  Leases

Land Lease 12,375               49,460               80,176               142,011                   446                     

Premises Lease 169,694             170,170             -                          339,864                   83                       

Aircraft Leases -                          -                          -                          -                                 1,614                 

Licensing Agreement 224                     824                     -                          1,048                        159                     

Other Operating Lease -                          -                          -                          -                                 -                          

Other Operating Commitments

Other Operating Commitments 5,110                 415                     265                     5,790                        347                     

Total Operating Commitments 309,757             407,869             198,823             916,449                   19,529               

Total Commitments 314,765             408,139             210,823             933,727                   88,932               
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BUDGET ANALYSIS 
Actual EPS total revenue out-performed the original budget by $122.3 million or 10% as coercive revenue 

exceeded expectations by 12%. Total expenses exceeded the budget by $26.0 million or 2%. 

See table of financial performance with actual results compared to the original and final budget below: 

 
The 2016/17 reporting period covers an 18-month period and is not comparable to prior periods which reflect the results of a 12-month 

reporting period.   

 

 

 

 

  

Original 

Budget

2016/17

Forecast 

2016/17

 Actual 

2016/17

Performance 

Difference 

Original 

Budget

Performance 

Difference 

Forecast

% Change 

Actual vs. 

Budget

Revenue

Coercive Revenue 851,989         875,656         952,834         100,845         77,178           12%

Sales of Goods & Services 367,261         354,249         384,810         17,549           30,561           5%

Other Revenue 14,169           9,686              18,107           3,938              8,421              28%

Total Revenue 1,233,419     1,239,591     1,355,751     122,332         116,160         10%

Expenses

Personnel Costs 609,046         614,302         610,639         1,593              (3,663)            0%

Supplies and Consumables 345,788         326,802         346,418         630                 19,616           0%

Depreciation & Amortisation 71,709           79,026           88,098           16,389           9,072              -23%

Transfer Payments 48,929           51,564           48,556           (373)                (3,008)            1%

Other Executive Expenses 71,705           82,033           79,749           8,044              (2,284)            -11%

Finance Costs 43,810           43,242           43,540           (270)                298                 1%

Total Expenses 1,190,987     1,196,969     1,217,000     26,013           20,031           -2%

Total Other (Gains)/Losses (4,192)            (3,511)            (1,707)            2,485              1,804              59%

Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 46,624           46,133           140,458         93,834           94,325           201%

CI$000

GOVERNMENT OF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR  THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

ENTIRE PUBLIC SECTOR
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KEY FINANCIAL ACCOMPLISHMENT  
The Government of the Cayman Islands manages its day-to-day operations without direct intervention by 

the Foreign and Commonwealth Development Office (FCDO) provided that the policies implemented are 

in keeping with the agreed direction/guidelines of the FCDO. These guidelines are referred to in the PMFA 

as Principles of Responsible Financial Management. Per section 34 of the PMFA, failure to comply with 

the borrowing, net debt and cash reserve principles as outlined below requires that any additional 

borrowing must first receive the approval of the FCDO. 

The two key areas of the FFR that achieved compliance in the 2016/17 financial year were debt service 

ratio and cash reserves due mainly to reduction in debt balances and growth in cash and investment 

balances. See below table showing year-end cash (includes cash equivalents and investments) and debt 

balances for Core Government: 

  

 

 

The chart below depicts the trend of a narrowing gap between cash and debt balances for Core 

Government: 

 

At 31 December 2017 investments in fixed deposits with maturity dates greater than 90 days at the time 

of placement were no longer reflected under Cash and Cash equivalents on the Statement of Financial 

Position. 

  

Indicator 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Cash & Investments 184,708     95,222       117,045     173,901     272,315     408,619     462,110     

Government Debt 625,215     599,285     573,850     548,933     523,322     503,318     451,081     

Core Government CI$000
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The Table below outlines the requirements of the Principles of Responsible Financial Management: 

 

  

Principle

Core Government Operating Surplus : should be positive* Complies Complies

(Operating surplus = Core Government operating revenue –

Core Government operating expenses)

Surplus = $162.1

million
Surplus = $46.1 mill ion

Net Worth: should be positive Complies Complies

(Net worth = Core Government assets – Core Government

liabilities)

Net Worth = $1.05

bill ion

Net Worth = $1.19 bill ion

Borrowing: Debt servicing cost for the year should be no

more than 10% of Core Government revenue*
Complies Complies

(Debt servicing = interest + other debt servicing expenses +

principal repayments for Core Government debt, Public

Authorities debt and self-financing loans)

Debt servicing = 9.2% Debt servicing = 9.8%

Net Debt: should be no more than 80% of Core Government

revenue
Complies Complies

(Net debt = outstanding balance of Core Government debt +

outstanding balance of self-financing loan balance +

weighted outstanding balance of Public Authorities

guaranteed debt  - Core Government liquid assets)

Net debt  = 14.5 % Net debt  = 34.3%

Cash Reserves should be no less than estimated executive

expenses for 90 Days:
Complies Complies 

(Cash reserves = Core Government cash and other liquid

assets at lowest point)

Cash Reserves = 216.9

days

Cash Reserves = 154.3

days

Financial risks should be managed prudently so as to

minimise risk 
Complies Complies

Insurance cover exists

for all government

buildings, vehicles and 

major potential

l iabilities. Hurricane

Preparedness Strategy

in place.

Insurance cover exists

for all government

buildings, vehicles and

major potential

l iabilities. Hurricane

Preparedness Strategy in

place.

Degree of Compliance

Unaudited 2016/17

Actual

Approved 2016/17 

Budget
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Responsible financial management as defined by section 14(3) of the PMFA is as below: 

 Total core government revenue less total core government expenses (measured using generally 

accepted accounting practice) should be positive; 

 Total core government assets less total core government liabilities (measured using generally 

accepted accounting practice) should be positive; 

 Borrowing should not exceed an amount for which the sum of interest, other debt servicing 

expenses, and principal repayments for a financial year are more than ten percent of core 

government revenue (calculated using generally accepted accounting practice) for that financial 

year, where, for the purposes of this principle, borrowing is defined as all borrowing that is in the 

name of the Government regardless of whether it is serviced directly by Core government, a 

statutory authority or government company; 

 Net debt should be no more than eighty percent of core government revenue, where, for the 

purposes of this principle, net debt is defined as: 

 Central government borrowing less core government liquid assets 

 Borrowing that is serviced directly by a statutory authority or government 

company but is in the name of the Government; and  

 The percentage of statutory authority and government company debt 

guaranteed by the Government that regulations made under this Law specify is 

to be included in the net debt calculation; 

 Cash reserves should be maintained at a level no less than the estimated executive expenses 

(measured using generally accepted accounting practice) for the following ninety days where, for 

the purpose of this principle, cash reserves are defined as core government cash and cash 

equivalents, marketable securities and deposits, and other liquid assets, including any amounts 

held for restricted funds and reserves purposes; and  

 The financial risks, including contingent liabilities, facing the core government should be managed 

prudently so as to minimize the likelihood of any such risk resulting in an expense or liability.  

Section 14(d) of the PMFA states that the Governor in Cabinet decisions may depart from the principles 

of responsible financial management for a limited period if the Governor in Cabinet specifies in a paper 

laid before the Parliament for its information. 

 the reasons for the departure; 

 the approach that the Governor in Cabinet intends to take in order to return to those principles; 

and 

 the period of time that the Governor in Cabinet expects to take to return to those principles.  
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GOVERNANCE 
Preparation of EPS accounts is managed within the Ministry of Finance’s overall risk management 

framework. The Accountant General is responsible, on a day-to-day basis, for managing risk and for 

ensuring that the activities necessary for the production of these accounts are properly planned, 

resourced and performed.  

In producing EPS accounts, the Accountant General must rely on the Chief Officer through the Chief 

Financial Officer of each entity to manage their own risks. In some instances, the risks from underlying 

accounts may have a significant impact on the EPS consolidation and preparation process.  

The key risks in the preparation of the EPS include:  

 no formal consolidation software and over reliance on Excel spreadsheets;  

 inaccuracies in entities’ EPS submissions, which may result in materially misstated balances;  

 failure to provide data or delays in the submission of EPS submissions; and  

 non-elimination of intra-group transaction streams and balances in Core Government and SAGCs, 

resulting in materially misstated figures in the accounts.  

To manage the key risks to the EPS consolidation and preparation process, the Accountant General 

maintains a control and validation framework to define the controls over the preparation of the accounts 

and to monitor the effectiveness and completeness of the controls in place. 

Procedures that assist in mitigating key EPS consolidation risks are: validation of agencies’ trial balances; 

monthly analysis of variances between actual results and the budget and actual results with prior year 

balances; monthly reconciliation of inter/intra-agency balances for confirmation by agencies; and 

confirmation that notes to agency annual accounts reflect balances in the main financial statements of 

each agency.  

The EPS Governance Framework  

The Ministry of Finance receives support and assurance on the management of risks in a number of ways:  

 supported in the responsibilities by the Internal Audit function; and  

 internal framework of governance and risk management. The EPS accounts are subject to external 

audit provided by the Auditor General. The Auditor General is independent; she and her staff have 

access to all Ministry information and report their findings on the accounts to Parliament via the 

Public Accounts Committee.  

Ministry of Finance’s role in Managing Financial Risk  

In addition to the EPS accounts governance framework, the Ministry of Finance also has a role in managing 

the Central Government’s financial risk more widely. Financial risk is managed in a number of ways, 

including:  
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The PMFA and Financial Regulations – provide Chief Officers with guidance and sets out requirements on 

how to handle public funds properly. The Ministry of Finance takes the lead in ensuring compliance with 

the PMFA and bringing about changes to the PMFA to enhance prudent financial management. 

Spending Reviews – the process through which spending is allocated to areas of government activity 

according to the Government's priorities. Spending Reviews set firm and fixed spending budgets over 

several years for each department. This is achieved through the preparation of a Strategic Policy 

Statement which outlines the Government’s medium-term plan and sets spending limits for a period of 

three years. Annual budgets are then prepared based on these goals and objectives and within the 

expenditure limits. 

The budget and estimates process for Core Government and SAGC agencies – the government uses the 

annual budgeting system to plan and control public expenditure. The Ministry of Finance presents 

estimates of budgetary plans to the LA to obtain the statutory authority to consume resources and spend 

cash. The budgetary system has two main objectives:  

 to support the achievement of macro-economic stability by ensuring that public expenditure is 

controlled in support of the government’s fiscal framework; and 

 to provide good incentives for departments to manage spending well so as to provide high quality 

public services that offer value for money for the taxpayer. 

The PMFA and its regulations set the financial reporting framework for Central Government; the Ministry 

of Finance works with the other agencies across government and help to ensure IPSAS are practiced 

uniformly.  

The Ministry of Finance provides strategic challenge to, and monitoring of agencies’ spending on an 

ongoing basis. The Ministry of Finance advises Cabinet on the financial impact of requests for 

supplementary expenditure from Core Government agencies to ensure that the additional spending will 

not negatively impact the objective to comply with the FFR. During the year 24 Cabinet Papers were 

prepared on supplementary funding and reallocation of funding. 

 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
The Ministry of Finance manages Core Government’s financial risks such as credit, liquidity, insurance, 

interest rate risk, commodity price risk, and currency risk. See further details in Note 36 of the EPS annual 

accounts. 

  



xxx | P a g e  
This Annual Report should be read in conjunction with the  

Financial Statements for the 18–month period ended 31 December 2017 

ENTITIES NOT CONSOLIDATED IN THE EPS ACCOUNTS 
The public entities below have not been consolidated in the EPS. 

Public Service Pensions Board 

Under the accounting standard for determining what entities should be consolidated, IPSAS 35, the Public 

Service Pensions Board’s (PSPB) accounts would be eligible for consolidation in the EPS; however, the 

Accountant General took the view that the assets of the PSPB were trust assets and therefore not subject 

to consolidation. 

The accounts of the PSPB have not been consolidated in the EPS accounts as the PSPB is considered to be 

a “Trust” under the definition prescribed in the PMFA, and not an SAGC. Under section 70 of the PMFA, 

trust assets must be accounted for separately from Core Government and SAGC accounts and must be 

transferred to the chief officer responsible for public finance for management. 

A legal opinion was obtained and it was recommended that although there are indications that the PSPB 

has characteristics of a trust, it would be best for the PSPB law to be amended to clearly state that its 

accounts should not be included in the consolidation of the EPS. 

The audited accounts of the PSPB and its annual report can be found at www.pspb.ky. 

 

Segregated Insurance Fund of the Cayman Islands 

The Segregated Insurance Fund (the Fund) was established under the Health Insurance Commission Act 

(2013). The Fund is maintained and administered by the Health Insurance Commission (HIC). The Fund’s 

primary function is to assist the Government in providing healthcare to indigents, uninsurable, and 

partially uninsured individuals. Contributions to the Fund are received from approved health insurance 

providers regulated under the Health Insurance Regulations (2013 Revision) and under their legislation 

the Fund is required to remit all funds collected to the Ministry of Home Affairs, Health and Culture. 

Separate financial statements are prepared and audited for the Fund which is not included in the table of 

trust holdings below. It is the Accountant General’s view that the assets of the Fund are considered trust 

assets under the definition of the PMFA, and therefore are not be consolidated in the EPS accounts. 

 

Trust Holdings 

Under the PMFA, “trust assets” are defined as assets (including money, not belonging to the Government) 

transferred or paid to the Government in trust for any purpose or to hold for or on behalf of any person, 

and include any such asset(s)- 

a. to be held pending the completion of a transaction or dispute; or 

b. that belong(s) or is due to any person and is collected under any agreement with that person. 
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MINISTRY OF
FINANCE & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

GOVERNMENT OF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Statement of Responsibility

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of Sections 29 of tne
Public Management and Finance Law (2017 Revision), as amended. They report the financial
results and position for central Government and the Entire public sector for the 1g-month
financial period ended 31 December 2017.

The financial statements were prepared by the Ministry of Finance & Economic Development
on behalf of the Government. On the basis of the financial information available, the Ministrv
has used its best professional judgment in preparing these statements.

We accept responsibility for the accuracy and integrity
financial statements and their compliance with the public

Revision), as amended.

of the financial information in these
Management and Finance Law (2017

To the best of our knowledge, the financiar statements compry with genera|y accepted
accounting practices as defined by International public sector Accounting standards (lpsAS),
except for IPSAS 25, Employee Benefits, as it relates to the accounting for post-retirement
benefits and IPSAS 6, consolidated and separate Financial statements, as it relates to the non-
consolidation of the Public Service pensions Board.

Minister for Finance & Economic Development
Government of the Cavman lslands

Premier
Government of the Cayman lslands



Phon€: (145) 2aa 3211

Fax: (345) 945 7738

AuditorGeneral@oag.gov.ky

www.audilorgeneral gov ky

3rd Floor, Anderson Squ:re

64 Shedden Road, George Town

P O Box 2583

Grand Cayrnan, KYI 1103, Cayman elands

CAYMAN ISLAN DS

AUDITOR GENERAI,S REPORT

To the Members of the Legislative Assembly

Adverse Opinion
I have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Cayman lslands Government
("Government"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017
and the consolidated statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net worth and statement
of cash flows for the 18-month period from l July 2016 to 31 December 2017, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies as set out on pages 19 to 128.

ln my opinion, because of the significance of the matters described in the Bdsis for Adverse Opinion section
of my report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements do not present fairly the consoiidated
financial position of the Government as at 31 December 201.7, and its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the 18-month period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2017 in
accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards ("lPSAS").

Basis for Adverse Opinion
Exclusion of the Public Service Pensions Bodrd from consolidation
The consolidated financial statements exclude material transactions and balances relating to the Public

Service Pensions Board ("Pensions Board") as management concluded that the related assets are being held

in trust by the Pension Board. In my opinion, the Government has control over the Pensions Board and

therefore all of its transactions and balances should be consolidated in these financial statements ln

accordance with IPSAS 35 - consoridated Financidl Stdtements.

As a result of these omissions, the consolidated financial statements are understated as at 31 December
201,7 .

Pervasive inaccurocies arising from opening balances ond subsequent ddjustments in subsidiaries
As at the date of this audit report, certain subsidiary audits were in progress; additionally, there were
material adjustments which have not been posted in relation to completed subsidiary audits. lt is likely that
the adjustments arising from ongoing audits could materially affect figures and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The impact of these adjustments could be both pervasive and material.

lncompleteness of revaludtion, inconsistent dccounting policies ond poot controls ovet property, pldnt ond
equipment
Management has not been able to provide a complete valuation report to support the carrying value of the
road network amount of 5360 million related to infrastructure, roads and sidewalks as disclosed in Note 10

to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR GENERAL'S REPORT (continued)

Basis for Adverse Opinion (continued)

lncompleteness of rcvdludtion, inconsistent dccounting policies and poor contrcls over prcpefty, plant ond
equipment (continued)
Furthermore, the accounting policies used to measure the Statutory Authorities and Government
Companies ("SAGC") assets that recognizes land and buildings accounts, are inconsistent to the central
government entities. IPSAS 35 - Consolidated Findnciol Stdtements requires consistent accounting policies
to be used within the consolidation. Therefore, the consolidated figure for property, plant & equipment is
materially misstated due to the lack of revalued carrying amounts for certain classes of property, plant &
equipment owned by the sAGC. The total carrying amount of these SAGC assets is S89 million ano tne
revaluation reserve, which is also impacted, amounts to S52 million.

As a result of the matters identified, the property, plant & equipment appearing in the consolidated financial
statements is materially misstated as at 31 December 2017.

Depreciation and omortizdtion expenses inaccurocy
The depreciation and amortization expenses amounting to S88 million recorded in the statement of financial
performance are materially misstated as a result from the valuation and completeness issues aff€cting
property, plant & equipment as discussed above.

Understotement of retirement benefits Iidbilities
Core Government did not record its post-retirement healthcare liabilities of 51.6 billion and post-retrrement
medical expense totaling 5240 million as at 31 December 2017. Furthermore, the post-retirement health
care liabilities for a number of SAGCs were understated bv S1G million.

During the period, management has recognized a pension liability of S459 million relating to the
Government's participation in the Defined Benefit Pension Plan. The pension net liability includes amounts
relating to sAGc, which totaled to s39 million. This was compared and agreed to the individual subsidiary,s
actuarial valuation reports and resulted in the understatement of S15 million of current retirement benefits
in the statement of financial oositron.

Completeness of provisions
Management has represented that there is no process in place to properly assess and account for its
environmental liabilities. Therefore I have not received sufficient appropriate audit evidence to be abte to
conclude on the completeness of provisions & contingent liability disclosures as it relates to these liabilities
as at 3l December 2017.

Pe rson nel costs u nderstated
The personnel costs amounting to S611 million appearing in the statement of financial performance are
materially misstated due to the understatement of post-retirement health care and post retirement pension
liabilities.

-6



AUDTTOR GENERAL,S REpORT (continued)

Basis for Adverse Opinion (continuedl

lncompleteness of rcvenue, receivobles and unearned revenue
Due to poor controls, management was unable to provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence and were
not able to assert to the completeness of its coercive revenue. I have not been able to conclude on the
fairness of the amount reported as coercive revenues of 5953 million on the statement of financaal
performance for the period ended 31 December 2017. Additionally, I was not able to conclude on the
fairness of the amounts reported in the statement of financial performance for sales of goods and services
amounting to 5385 million because of poor controls for patient revenues.

Also, due to the exclusion of the Public Service Pensions Board from consolidation of financial statements,
investment revenues were understated by s109 million (net) for the period ended 31 December 2017.

As a result of the revenue incompleteness, I have not been able to conclude on the related current and non-
current portion of trade receivables balances of 531 million, total other receivables of S23 million and
unearned revenue of S87 million appearing on the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017.

Net worth
The revaluation reserve totaling S534 million presented in the statement of financial position is materially
misstated due to the valuation and completeness issues affecting property, plant & equipment. Likewise,
the current and accumulated surpluses amounting to S14O million and S171 million respectively are
materially misstated as a result of inaccuracy of depreciation and amortization expenses, understatement of
personnel costs and incompleteness of revenues.

Stdtement of cash flows not lditly presented
I was not able to conclude on the fairness of the amounts reported in the Statement of Cash Flows due to
the matters discussed affecting the pervasive Inaccuracies in the opening balances of these consolidated
financial statements and identify the effects of any adjustments that might be necessary on the current
period's results of operations.

Consol iddte d F i noncial stoteme nt disclosu res
The consolidated financial statements have omitted several required disclosures by the accounting
standards. These include but are not limited to:

significant deficiency in the Government's reporting of key management personnel transactions as
required by IPSAS 20 - Reldted Party Disclosures, as a result, I do not opine on the accuracv of
related party balances.
The consolidated financial statement does not include all of the required disclosure of IPSAS 25 -

Emplovee Benefits.
disclosure
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AUDITOR GENERAL'5 REPORT (continued)

Basis for Adverse Opinion (continued)

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (lSAs). My responsibilities

under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements section of my report. I am independent of the Government in accordance

with the lnternational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountonts

(jESBA Code), together with ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the consolidated financial

statements in the Cayman lslands, and lhave fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with

these requirements and the IESBA Code. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for my adverse opinion

Other Matter
Comptiance with ldws, regulations and other considerotions

I draw to the attention of the reader, that due to the adverse opinion, no further consideration was given to

any other balances, transactions, disclosures or compliance with laws or regulations matters as it relates to

these consolidated financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial

Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the

statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards

control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error'

consolidated financial
and for such internal
consolidated financial

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the

Government's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to Iiquidate the

Government or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Government's financial reporting

process.

Auditor's Res Donsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial statements

MV objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report

that includes mV opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with lSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

thev could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolrdated financial statements.



AUDITOR GENERAL'S REPORT (continuedl

Auditor's Res ponsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with lSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, m isreprese ntatio ns, or the
override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Government's internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertaintv exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Government's ability to continue as a going
concern. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Government to cease to conlinue as a going con(prn.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I have underta ke n the audit in accordance with the provisions of Section 60(1)(a) of the Pub lic Monogement
dnd Findnce Law (2018 Revision). lcommunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that lidentify during my audit.

9 Septe mber 2019
Cayman lslands

5ue Winspear, cPFA

Auditor Genera I
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Statement of Financial Position

GOVERNMENT OF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ASAT31o€CCMAER 2017

2O1S/2016

49,097
70,422
12,104

1,975
543

31,9,522

441,O55

20tS/2016

Current Assets
233,449 Cash:nd Cash tquivalents
32,O15 TradeR€.eivnbl€s
13,39O Other Re.civ.bl€s

Div dend Recc vab e

15,774 Invcntorics
2,571 Lo.ns Made

4:11,314 l^vertments
9,867 Prcpaymentr
1,64O BroloeL.alAss.ts

2

3

5

a

9

2016/2O!7

61,24!

4,223
3,149

592

2,375

2016l2Or7

222,7lO

21,270
2()0

75,239
t,aas

s79,435
7,434
1533

124 Total cu.rent Ar3els 419_7lO

150

3,265

444

Non-Current Assets
150 I rade Rece,valrlet
993 Other Recevablcs

27,614 Lonnt Mado
1,732,843 Property, Plant and Equrpm.nt

6,516 Intang ble Ars.tt
15,374 Investment Property
5,197 Investments

Nct Worth Pub ic €nt't'es
444 olhc. Non{urrent assets

3

10

11

7,4t9,691
3,O14

431

219,851
254

427
2.).72

24,155
1,J52,736

t,672

35,1s6

416
17aS.1fq Toial non-.0rrent assel9

t5,947
70,351

15,727

20,213 r radc Payab es

52,626 Othcr Pryables & ac.ruals
2,O34 Aank Overdraft

65,242 unearned Rcv.nue
1O,497 tmiloye€ tnt'tlements
33,312 Rctrrem€^t aen€fits
4a,3aa Aor.owingr/Publ'c Detrts

13

17

18

13

17

L26.277

31,116

1,429

:r 2,696
27t,424 255.229 Total Current Liabilities

3e6,376

a5:1,967

Non-Cu..ent liabiliti.t
204 Othef Payab es & Accruals

Unearned Rov.nue
447,971 Retir€mentB.nefits
544,aOl Borrowinss/PublicDebtt

13,910
410,335

t26
13,910

643,564

1,099.4s4 TotalNon-cur.entLiabilities aaa

1a0

Revaluation Rcserve

C!rrent Per:od Surplus (Oencit)

Ac.umulated s!rpl!s (o€f ot)
Total Net a5ietr/€quity

1l4,At1

148,532

157,940
5)2,tSA
744,532

20 !7r,245
20 490,a48

14{),454

20r,746
s14,146

405 041 550 244

140
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Statement of Financial Performance

GOVERNMENT OF THE CAYMAN ISIANDS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE 18.MOI{IH PERIOD EflOED 3l DECEMAER2017

CoreActual EPS A.tual
20rsl2016 2O15l2Or5

(|5000 ct5000

coreAatual EPSA.tual
201612017 201612017

cr5000 crsooo

674,019

35,828

2,161

377

36

263,s86

83,026

4,863

33,686

98,533

32,538

30,251

316

10,061

Rev€nue

673,261 CoerciveRevenue

261,390 Sales ofGoods & Services

5,669 InvestmentRevenue

931 Donations

Other Revenue

TotalR€venue

Erpenses

952,951 9s2,a34

59,601 384,810

9,242 1s,631

1,101 2,405

21

22

27

40

2A

29

400,116 PersonnelCo5ts

216,022 Supplies and Consumables

7,874 leases

53,851 Depreciation/Amortisation

Outputs from Statutory Authorities and Government Companies

32,S38 Outputsf.om Non'government Organisations

30,251 TransferPayments

1,151 Litigation Costs

24,315 Other Executive Expenses

25

30

31

7l

390,204 510,639

126,659 334,038

7,764 12,380

55,814 88,098

150,969

48,556 48,556

561 1,336

15,108 26,62A

27 31,007 Fanance Costs

797,125 TotalExpenses

540

140,458

(3s0)

12,789)

628

130

oth er (Gains l/Losses

(350) (Gains)/Losseson Derecognitionof Assets/Liabillties

(107) lmpairment of Inv€ntory

(2,913) (G a ins)/Losses on Finan€iallnstruments

1,604 (Gaint/Losseson Non'financial Instruments

130 (Gains)/Losses on Revaluation of Asset

(Surplus)/Deficit on Statutory Authorities & Government
Companies

Total Other (G.ins)/Losses

46 46

_ {313)

(3,498) (3,092)

1,083 1,652

liu,532 torthe Period
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Statement of Cash Flows

Prior Year
2Oa5l2016

crsooo

Actu a I

2OL6/2Or7

cr5000

951,162
39a,924

2,342

39,33 t

GOVERNMENT OF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE 18-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 DEC€MAER 2O17

Operating Activities
cosh received
Coercive Receipt5

Sales of Goods & Services

lnterest recerved

Donations / Grants received
Other receipts
Totol cdsh rcceived

Cdsh used

Supplies and consumables

outputs from non-Sovernmental organisataon5

Transfer payments

Financing/interest payments

Other payments

Totol cosh used

Net cash flows trom (used by) opetating activities

Investing activities

Cosh received
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from the sale of Investments

Total cdsh received

cdsh used
Purchase of property, plant and equapment

Loans Made/lnvcstments
Totdl cash used

Net cash flows from (used by) investing activities

Financing activities
Cdsh used
RepaVment of Eorrowings
Total cdsh used

Net cash flows trom (used by) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held

cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

694,77 5

5,O04

431

23,868
981,535

(436,3 73)

(169,537)

(31,260)

13o,263)
(31,812)

405,363

1612,1/O)

1372,31,2)

147,9r5)
\45,419)

49

,3161

lL9L,7 241

(4s3

5

s,390
226,O25

lst,

273,741,

212

664,253

(11,134)

23r,475

465

(114,995)

1t64,604
,599)

l2aL,L34l

l/3
(73,

Q3,7arl

2:t3,O14

1,603

303,949
305, s92

(43,s88)

(3s,9OO)

220

233,449 cash and cash equivalents (excludinB bank overdrafts)

231,415 Cash and cash equivalents
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Statement of Changes in Net Worth

GOVERNMENT OF THE CAYMAN ISI.ANOS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET WORTH
FOR T}iE l3.MOI{'H PCNOOCNDEO 31OCCEMBER2017

Attibutable to Cayman lslandr Governm€nt

156612

Accum!lated
Rev.luation surylus/(Deficirsl TotalNetwonh

osooo crtooo crtooo

at:lorune 20t5 tu6179

(239,189)

(M,8321

(284,021)

(aa,@l

I235,355)

{61,803)

1,610,81E

(239,189)

(235,365)

(106,635)

(s82,190)

in ner woth for 2rr15/15

Property revaluation adiustmeits
Movement in Post Retirement Eeneiit
Prior Yea.Adi!stm€nts
Movementin Resetu€s

r€venu€ /expenres r€cognit€d directlyin n€t worth 1,328 1299,497)
s!rylus/(def icit)f or the year 2015/16

recognited rewnuer and expenser f of the year

at 30 lune m$ cani€d forwanl

157,940

Accumulat€d
Revalu.tion surylutld€ticitsl Total||€tworth

.rtooo cr9ooo crt000

at3olune 2015 522,158 497,0a2

5,657

7,1,77,79)

{199,084)
(75,613)

{270,040}

in .et wonh for 2015/t
Property.evaluarioi ad junments
Movemeni in Post Retirement Eenef it
Prior YearAdjunments
Movementin Resetues

6,331

(199,084)

182,944)

r€v€nue /expenrer E.ognir€d die<tly in n€t wonh 43,805 11,988 (125,834)

surpl!s/(def icit)f or the pe.iod 2015/17

rccognised rcvenl'€s and €xpenses forthe pedod

at 3l Decemb€r2017
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

GOVERNMENT OF THE CAYMAN ISI-ANDS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAT POSITION
As Ar3r oEc€MaER 2017

ENTIRE PUBLIC SECTOR

Origin.lBudtet Actual
Not€ 2oL6/2O17 2ot6l2ol7

crsooo cl$ooo

and cash €quivalents 2

3

4
4

a
9

424,901
45,9M
4,43!

21,549
3,O79

12,444

222,1,lO

30,617

21.270
200

15,239
1,844

s19,435

7,434

1206,791

1

oividends Receivable
(6,31O)

(1,191)

9r.9,435
(s,046)

7lo

3
4

10

11

),2

7

427
2,172

24,355
t.752,736

s,672
14,764

35,156
436

31,503
1,731,585

101,406

2.t72

Property, Plani and Equipment

17,

2 t,15
12711

74,764
(56,650)

Non-Finan€ialAssets
otal Non{urrent A5sett 7ta

l"iabilitaes
13

13

2

14

t8

13

14

t7
19

19,379
49,359

1,589

28,O77

1o,473

41.8t9

27,779
121,508

1.429
73,O19

4,951

25,269
43,901

Payables & Accruals 72.1

2aank Overd.aft
Unearned Revenue

Entiilements (r,512)

26,269
2,O42

Benefits

696

Current Liabilities

liabilities
Payables & Accruals 264

10,500
420,611

34,231
481,294

t26
13,910

5a3,564

474,744

lJnearned Revenue

Retirement Benefits
Post-Retirement Health Care

3,4

262,

134,2311
(6,sso)

97 119

otal Non-Current liabilities

otal Liabilities

247

Assets/Equaty

Revaluation Reserve

20

20

t73,A91
340,622

46,624

201,746

534,146

r40,458

Surplus/(Deficit) t7 r.248

otal Net assets/cquitY
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GOVERNMENT OF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A5 AT31 D€CEMB'R 2l'17

CORE GOVERNMENT

OriginalaudAet Actual
Not( 2Ot6l2O!7 2016|20!7

crsooo crsooo

and Cash Equivalents

4

8

34L,211.

30,936
4,623

3,4O1

735

7,343

6!,241
8,804

1,7,7O2

4,223
3,149

s92
400,869

2,375

1279,9

122,132
Other Receivables

Dividends Receivable

Biological Assets

9,

8,

(1

400,
(4,

otalcurrent Assets

Non-Curaent A5sets

LO

11

7

4L

427

456
1,419,697

3,018

431

219,45r
253

42

Property, Plant and Equipment

Net Worth - Public Entities

360

1,366,9O4

3,869

431

369,261

(851

(149,410)

Non-Financial Assets 25

otal Non-Current Asseis 74

147

rr€nt liabilities
13

15

15

17

27,59I

16,332

1,970
21,400

r9,094
tz6,27t

61,739
7,460

10,000

18,497l'
46,729

45,407

(s10)

(11,40O)

a36

Payables & Accruals

Entitlements
Benefrts

116
otal Current tiabiliti€s

-Curr€nt liabilities
L4
16

L7

10,500
366,940 410,335

3,410
43,395

434 419.955

otal Non-Curr€nt Liabilities

otalLiabilities

Net Assets/Equity

Revaluation Reserve

Current Period Surplus

o47

zo
20

173,451

340,622
46,624

!11,,245
490,848
140,458

150,

Surpl!s/(Deficit) 7

otal Net Assets/Equity

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts lcontinuedf
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts lcontinuedf

GOVERNMENT OF THE CAYMAN ISTANDS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE 18.MONTH PERIOD END€D 3l DECIMEER 2017

ENTIRE PUBLIC SECTOR

Origlnalgudget Actual
2016/2017 2016/2017

Note crs000 ct9000

Difference

Revenue

Revenue 27

22

23

24

851,989

367,261

6,609

1,033

952,834

384,810

15,631

2,405

7I

100,84

ofGoods & Services r7,

Revenue 9,O22

Donations

4

otal Revenue 419 ,51

PersonnelCosts 25

26

509,046

328,224

17,564

71,709

34,36s

48,929

3,078

33,812

610,639

334,038

12,380

88,098

51,s85

48,555

26,624

1,593

5,814and Consumables

Lea ses

Depreciation & Amoritisation

from Non-Government Organizations

21

2A

29ransfer Payments (373J

11,s42l

17,1841

Litigation Costs

Executive Expenses 30

Costs 540

otal Expenses 7

(Gains)/Lo55es

on Dereco8nition of Assets/Liabrlities 450

(4,192)

46

(313)

13,o92l

(404)

(313)mpairment of Inventory

ins)/losses on Fjnancial Instrlments t,

{Gains)/Losses on Non-fi nancial Instruments

otal Other (Gains)/Losses

forthe
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GOVERNMENT OF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAT PERFORMANCE
FOR THI18-MONTH P€RIOO ENDEO 3I DEC€M8ER2O17

CORE GOVERNMENT

original Eudget aclual
201612017 207612017

Nore Crsooo cr9000

Revenue

Revenue ZL

22

851,989

51,832

4,628

60

25

952,951

59,601

9,242

1,101

100,

7,of Goods & Servicet

lnvestment Revenue

Donataons

Other Revenue

4,61

1,04

otal Revenue

fxpenses

Personnelcosts

Supplies and Consumables

Leases

0epreciation & Amortisation

402,293

134,318

7,949

39,674

152.514

34,36s

44,929

722

7,089

390,204

!26,659

7,764

55,814

150,969

51,58s

48,5S6

551

15,108

17

27

40

2a

29

to Statutory Authorities and Government Companies

from Non-Government Orga nizations

{1,

17,

|'373

LitiBation Costs (1511

Executive Expenses 30

31

8,

Finance Costs 991

904

39.064 73

otaltxpenses

er (Gains)/Losses

on Derecognition of Assets/Liabilities

on Financial Instruments 14,474)

46

(3,498j

1,083

46

976

1,083ins)/Iosses on Non-fi nancial Instruments

on Sta tutory Aut horit ies & Government Companies 411

otal Other (Gains)/l-osses

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts lcontinuedl
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Notes to the Financial Statements
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 18.MONTH FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

The Cayman lslands is an Overseas Territory of the United Kingdom, a foreign sovereign
territory. Her Majesty the Queen of England, as the British Queen regnant, is the head of
state of the Cayman lslands and appoints the Governor to administer the Government of
the Cayman lslands on her behalf. The Cayman lslands has its own Constitution and is

governed by a local parliamentary democracy comprised of executive, legislative and

.lu d icial bra nches.

While financial decisions of the Government are made by the Legislative Assembly and
Cabinet, and the United Kingdom does not provide direct financial support to the
Cayman lslands, the United Kingdom closely monitors financial activities.

Principal Activities
The principal activities and operations of the Government of the Cayman lslands (the
"Government") are to orovide:

o Genera I public services
. Public order and safety
. Economic opportu nity
. E nviron menta I protection
. Health
o Socia I Protection
. Housing and community amenities
o Recreational, cultural and religious diversity
o Ed ucation

In addition, the Government administers asscts transferred or paid to it in trust for any
purpose, or to hold for or, on behalf of any person or entity.

These financial statements should be read in conjunction wlth the financial statements of
the individual Ministries, Portfolios, Offices, Statutory Authorities and Government
Companies.
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Note Summary of Accounting Policies

Statement of Compliance
These consolidated Entire Public Sector (herein after the "EPS") financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS) issued by the International Federation of Accountants and its International Public

Sector Accounting Standards Board using the accrual basis of accounting. Where

additional guidance is required, International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued

by the International Accounting Standards Board are used.

There are no known accounting standards that have been adopted by the IPSAS Board

for use in future years that will impact these financial statements.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements.

Reporting Period
The reporting period for these financial statements of the Government of the Cayman

lslands is for the 18-month period from l luly 2016 to 31 December 201.7.

The financial year end of the Government was changed from 30 June to 31 December
based on an amendment to the Public Management and Finance Law (2017 Revision)

authorized by the Legislative Assembly on 27 March 2oL7.

Accordingly, the comparative figures in the financial statements are for the twelve
months ended 30 June 2016 and are not comparable to the 31 December 2017 results.
Due to the change in financial year the comparability of the financial statements of the
Government of the Cayman lslands will be also be compromised for the year ending
J1 UeCemOer zu-td.

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, unless

otherwise stated. The cash flows statement has been prepared using the direct method.

The measurement base applied to these financial statements is fair market value.

The financial statements are presented in Cayman lslands dollars rounded to the nearest
thousand.

Judgments and Estimates
The preparation of these financial statements is in conformity with International Public
Sector Accounting Standards that requires judgments, estimates, and assumptions
affecting the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
revenue and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on the

.judgement of management, historical experience, reports from independent experts and

I
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various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Any
uncertainties regarding possible outcomes were dealt with by using expected outcomes.

Actual results mav differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions

to accounting estimates are recognised in the reporting period and in any future periods

that are affected bv those revisions.

Basis of Combination
These financial statements utilise the equity method of combination at Central
Government level for its investment in Statutory Authorities and Government Companies
and a full consolidation approach is taken at the Entire Public Sector level.

The Reporting Entities of the Government of the Cayman lslands consists of Central
Government and Statutory Authorities and Government Companies. These agencies
collectively are referred to as Entire Public Sector. Reporting entities include:

Central Government
. Legislative Assembly
. Governor in Ca binet
o Ministries
o Portfolios
o J udicial Administration
. Office of the Premier
. Office of the Complaints Commissioner
. Office of the Auditor General
. Office of the lnformation Commissioner
. Office of the Director of Prosecutions
. Office of the Ombudsman
. Government Departments, Sections and Units

Other Entities
. StatutorvAuthorities
o Government Companies

The financial statements of each reporting entity include all revenues, expenses, assets,

and liabilities which are controlled by the entity. Revenues, expenses, assets, and
liabilities, which are not controlled by the reporting entity, e.g. trust assets, have been
excluded from the consolidation and reported separately in the Statement of Trusts (see

note 441.

Corresponding assets, liabilities, income and expenses, are added together line by line.
Transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between entities
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are eliminated on combination. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial

statements of Statutory Authorities and Government Companies to bring the accounting
oolicies in line with those used bv CentralGovernment.

Changes in Accounting Policies
When presentation or classification of items in the financial statements is amended or

accounting policies are changed, comparative figures are restated to ensure consistency

with the current period unless it is impracticable to do so.

The Statement of Changes in Net Worth reflects changes in accounting policies and

corrections of errors and omissions.

New, Revised and Amended International Public Sector Accounting Standards:

New lPsAs issued and aoolicable:

. IPSAS 39, Employee Benefits (effective for period beginning on or after January 1, 2018). This

replaces IPSAS 25, Employee Benefits.

Amendments to IPSAS issued and aoolicable:

t IPSAS 4, The Effects of Chonges in Foreign Exchonge Rotes

e IPSAS 5, Boffowing Costs

. IPSAS 10, Finonciol Reporting in Hyperinflotiondry Economies;

e IPSAS 22, Disclosure of Finoncidl lnformotion obout the Generol Government Sector

. IPSAS 24, Presentation of Eudget lnformotion in Finonciol Statements

. IPSAS 16, lnvestment Property

. IPSAS 17, Property, Plont, ond Equipment

. IPSAS 31, lntongible Assets

. lPsAs 33, First-time Adoption of Accruol Bosis lnternotionol Public Sector Accounting
Stondards llPSASS)

. IPSAS 34. SeDorote Finonciol Stdtements

t IPSAS i6, lnvestments in Associotes ond Joint Ventures

. IPSAS 37, Joint Arrongements

o IPSAS 39, Employee Benefits

New IPSAS issued but not yet applicable and not early adopted:

o IPSAS 40, Public Sector Combinations (effective for period beginning on or after January L,

2O1,9);

. lPsAs 41, Findncidl lnstrumerts (effective for period beginning on or after.January L, 2022).

Amendments to IPSAS issued but not yet applicable and not early adopted:

c IPSAS 2, Cosh Flow stotemerts (effective for period beginning on or after January 1, 2022)

. IPSAS 40, Public Sector Combinotions.

Government ofthe cayman lslands I consolidated Financial statemen ls 2oL6/2o!7 U



Budget Amounts
The original budget amounts for the financial year are as presented in rhe 2016/2077
Annual Plan and Estimates as approved by the Legislative Assembly on the 24 June 2016.
The Final Budget does not include amounts authorised in advance of appropriation
issued under section 11 (5) of the Public Management and Finance Law 120L7 Revision).
The budget is prepared on the accrual basis. As a result of the adoption of the accrual
basis for budgeting purpose there is no basis, timing or entity differences that would
require reconciliation between the actual comparable amounts and the amounts
presented as a separate additional financial statement in the Statement of Comparison
to Budget and Actual Amounts. Explanatory comments are provided in the notes to the
financial statements for major variances (including adjustments, overspend or
underspending) against budget (see Note 33).

Revenue
Revenue is recognised in the accounting period in which it is earned. Revenue received
but not yet earned at the end of the reporting period is recognised as a liability.

The Government derives its revenue through the coercive power of the state for which
no direct exchange of service occurs and from the sale of goods and services to third
p a rties.

Coercive revenue

coercive revenue is recognised on the following basis:

Retenue Type Retett u e llec ogtt itio rr Po i n t

Taxes on International Trade and Transactions
. lmport Duties

. Other Taxes on lnternational Trade

and Transactions

When goods become liable for duty, generally at
declaration, prior to release of goods

When liability for tax or fee is incurred

Domestic tevies on Goods and Services

. Business and Professional Licenses

. Other Taxes on Goods and Services

. Motor Vehicle Tax

. Tourist Accommodation Tax

. Miscellaneous Stamp Duty

. Mi5cellaneous lmmigra tion Fees

Upon initial application and, if appropriate, when
renewed

Upon delivery of goods and services

Upon initial application and due date for annual renewal

When monthly return is due

At the time the goods are delivered

U pon application

Taxes on Property

. Land Transfer Duty

. lnfrastructure Fund Fee

At time of transfer of ownership

For non'refundable fees, upon application for planning

approval

For refundable fees, once planning approval is Sranted
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Rcnertue Type Ret)rrrut! Recogn it ion Poi t t

Other
. Court Fines

. Other Fines

. Other Revenue

When fine imposed
When fine imposed
As earned

Sale of Goods ond Services

Revenue from the supply of goods and services to third parties is measured at the fair
value of consideration received. Revenue from the supply of goods is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer.

Revenue from the supply of services is recognised on a straight line basis over the
specified period of the services unless an alternative method better represents the stage

of completion of the transaction.

Rentol lncome
Rental income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on a straight line

basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised evenly over the
term of the lease as a reduction in total rental income.

lnvestment Revenue

Income from investment is recognised when the right to receive payment has been
established and/or it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Government
and the amount can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued using the effective
interest rate method. The effective interest rate exactlv discounts estimated future cash

receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount. The method applies this rate to the principal outstanding to determine interest
income each period.

Donations
Donations received are recognized immediately as income in the fiscal year received if:

a) All conditions necessary for use of these resources have been met and/or,

b) In situations where specific use has been determined by the donor, the
Government has purview on the timing of the use of resourced donated once the
provisions of (a) above have already been met as necessary.

Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Interest expense

All interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowings are expensed as

incurred as part of loan interest, except where interest incurred on a qualifying asset is

capitalised. The interest expense of loan payments is recognised in the statement of
financial performance using the effective interest rate and or straight line method as

appropnare.
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Operating Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, where this is representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased property. Where incentives are
received under an operating lease, the expenses are recognised on a straight-line basis

over the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised evenly over the term of
the lease as a reduction in rental expense.

Finance Leases

Leases in which the contract transfers substantially all risks and rewards related to an

asset incidental to the ownership thereof. is classified as finance lease. Such leases are
treated in the Statement of Financial Position of the lessor as a receivable at an amount
equal to the net investment in the lease.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash in-transit, cash at bank, deposits on
call and short term highly liquid investments with a maturity of no more than three
months from the date of acquisition, which are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the
Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term
investments as defined above, net of bank overdrafts.

lnventories
Inventories held for distribution, or consumption in the provision of services, that are not
issued on a commercial basis are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Where inventories are acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, the amount
reported is the current replacement cost at the date of acquisition.

The amount reported for inventory held for distribution reflects management's estimates
for obsolescence or other impairments.

Inventories held for sale or use in the production of goods and services on a commercial
basis are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs are assigned to inventories using a first-in first-out (FIFO) basis or weighted average
cost basis as a ppropriate.

The write-down from cost to current replacement cost or net realisable value is

recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period when the write-down
occu rs.

Stock of Notes and Coins for/in Circulotion
Unissued currency notes stock is stated at cost. Only the cost of issued notes into
circulation is exoensed. on a FIFO basis.
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Stocks of Numismotic ltems
Stocks of numismatic items consist of gold and silver bullion arising from the meltdown
of numismatic coins (the gold and silver bullion content of the following categories of
numismatic coins: coins for resale, museum items and coins awaiting melt-down). Bullion

stocks are stated at year end market values for gold and silver bullion and unrealised
gains/losses are recorded in the statement of financial performance.

Woter inventory
Inventory of the Water Authority consists of consumable spares and water. Consumable

spares are accounted for on the first-in, first-out basis. Water inventory is calculated at

the cost of water plus chemicals multiplied by the volume of water.

AHI Houses

Houses to be sold consist of completed houses that specific parcels have been allocated,
Certificates of Occupancy have been issued, and are specifically held for re-sale. Homes

are valued at lower of cost to construct and net realizable value. Houses which are held

as rental property or lease-to-own are held in property, plant and equipment -
Affordable Housing Initiative (AHl) Houses.

Inventory also consists of land lots held for transfer on sale of the completed houses held

in inventory. In accordance with IPSAS 12, where inventory is acquired as a non-exchange

transaction, the costs are measured at the fair value on acquisitlon. The fair value of the
land is based on the first valuation carried out on acquisition.

Prepayments
The portion of recognised expenditure paid in advance of receiving services has been
recognised as prepayments and classified as current assets in these financial statements.

Biological Assets
Biological assets are turtles that are either reared for slaughter or breeding.

Biologicol ossets - Secondory Herd
The secondary herd, which are reared for slaughter, is valued at fair value, calculated

using market prices and expected yields of each type of product based on historical data.
Changes in the carrying amount attributable to physical change in such biological assets

and changes attributable to price change are recognised as income or expense in the
Statement of Fina ncia I Performance.

Biologicol Assets - Breeder Herd
It is management's policy to differentiate between turtles which were acquired from the
wild and will be released at the end of their breeding lives, and farm bred turtles which
may be slaughtered at the end of their breeding lives. Mature turtles (those that have

reached breeding age) acquired from the wild have a zero carrying value. The breeder
herd is valued at fair value, calculated using market prices and expected yields of each

type of product based on historical data.
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Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, is stated at revalued cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. ltems of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at
cost. Where an asset is acquired for nil or nominal consideration, the asset is recognized
initially at fair value, where fair value can be reliably determined, and as revenue in the
Statement of Financial Performance in the year in which the asset is acquired.

Where revaluation of property, plant and equipment is carried out, all items of a given

class of assets are revalued for a respective entity. Revaluation increases shall be

credited directly to revaluation surplus. The increase shall be recognised as revenue in

surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same class of
assets previously recognised as an expense in the surplus or deficit. Revaluation
decreases are debited first against the revaluation surplus related to the same class of
assets, and any excess against surplus or deficit.

Depreciation is expensed on a straight-llne basis at rates calculated to allocate the cost or
valuation of an item of property, plant and equipment (other than land); less any
estimated residual value, over its estimated useful life. Leasehold improvements are

depreciated either over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of
the imDrovements. whichever is shorter.

Asset TyDe

. Buildings and structures

. Building fit out (when accounted for separately)

. Roads, sidewalks, slgns and traffic lights

. Heritage buildings & Memorials and Monuments

. Leaseho d lmprovement

Computer Equipment

Office equipment and furniture
Motor vehicles

Boats and ma rine equipment
cleaning, refuse and recycling equipment
Construction and other equlpment
Telecommunications
Books, Muslc, manuscripts and works of art
Cloth ing

Aeroplanes and airport/aviation equipment
Firefighting plant and equipment
Other equipment
Medical and medical laboratory equipment
Library assets

Scientific and laboratory equipment
Water and sewage treatment
Heritage Assets

Public Open Spaces

Estimdted Useful life
10 - 60 years

5 - 25 years

6 - 50 years

100 years

Over the unexpired period of lease

or the useful life of improvement
3 - 10 years

3 -25 years

3 - 20 years

3 25 years

3 15 years

3 - 25 years

5 - 50 years

2 - 10 years

0 - 4 years

8 - 33 years

10 - 12 years

5 20 years

1- 25 years

5 10 years

4 - 25 yearc

10 - 50 years

Nil

Nil
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Heritage Assets
Heritage assets (including monuments) are assets that have cultural, environmental,
historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance and are held indefinitely
for the benefit of present and future generations. Heritage assets which have a market
value or determinable value and meet the definition and recognition criteria are to be
accounted for in accordance with IPSAS 17 Property, Plant and Equipment; otherwise
they are not recognized on the Statement of Financial Position but disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. Heritage assets included in the Statement of Financial
Position are carried at a nominal value of 51.

Public Open Spaces

Public open space zones comprise predominantly undeveloped areas of land vested, or
intended to be vested, in the Government or over which the public have rights and which
is available to members of the public generally (whether sub.iect to fulfilling any lawful
condition or not) for purposes of sport, recreation, or the enjoyment of study of nature.
Such areas include, but are not limited to, parks, reserves, beaches, playgrounds, sports
grounds and playing fields, plazas, public access ways and land set aside for public
purposes development and subdivisions under the Development and Planning
Regulations (2015 Revision). These assets are carried at a nominal value of S1 in the
Statement of F ina ncia I Position.

Dis oosa ls

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the sale proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset. Gains and losses on
disposals during the period are included in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses. Amortisation is provided over the estimated useful life using the
straight line method. The estimated useful life for intangible asset classes is as follows:

. Developed software

. Other Intangible assets

4 - 10 years

1 - 4 years

Gains and losses on disposals of intangible assets are determined by comparing the sale
proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset. Gains and losses on disposals during the
period are included in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Investment Property

This is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation
on investment property is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance on a

straight-line basis at 2o/o which approximate to a useful life of 50 years.
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Investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property as

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from

d isposa L

Gains or losses on disposal of investment property are determlned by comparing the sale

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset. Gains or losses on disposal are included

in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period which the property was

d is oose d.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when, there is a change in use

Construction in Progress

This relates to the development of quality concrete construction freehold homes

developed by the Sister lsland Affordable Housing Development Corporation ("SlAHDC")'

This account consists of costs incurred or attributable to bringing the asset to the

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended. lt is

categorized as non-current assets for the actual cost related to each project. When the

SIAHDC houses are completed, the infrastructure costs are allocated by parcel

Employee Benefits
Employee entitlements to salaries and wages, annual leave, long service leave, retirang

leave and other simllar beneflts are recognised in the Statement of Financial

Performance when they are earned by employees. Employee entitlements to be settled

within one year following the year-end are reported as current liabilities at the amount

expected to be paid.

Pension contributions for employees of the central Government are paid in to the Public

service Pension Fund (the "Fund") and administered by the Public service Pension Board

{the "Board"). Contributions o! 1-2% - employer 6% and employee 60/0 arc made to the

Fund bv the Government.

prior to l JanuarV 2OOO the Board operated a defined benefit scheme. With effect from 1

January 2000 the Government continued to provide a defined benefit scheme for existing

employees and a defined contributions scheme for all new employees. obligations for

contribution to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised in the Statement of

Financial Performance as they are earned by employees. Obligations for defined benefit

retlrement plans are reported in the Statement of Financial Position and in the

Statement of Financial Performance for any contributions made during the period'

With the introduction of the National Pension Law in 1998, all new employees of

Statutory Authorities and Government Companies who are not participants in the Public

Service Pensions Fund are enrolled in an approved local pension plan'
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Pension Liability
The pension liability is accounted for in accordance with IPSAS 25 Employee Benefits.

Defined Benefit Plan

Pension liability under the defined benefit plan is recognised net of the following
a mou nIs:

. The present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet datej

o Plus any actuarial gains (less any actuarial losses) not recognised as income or
expense; and

o Minus any past service costs not yet recognised as an expense; and

o Minus the fair value at the balance date of plan assets out of which the
obligations are to be settled directly.

Defined Contribution Plan

The pension liability under the defined contribution plan is recognised in the same period
the contribution payable is exchanged for service rendered by an employee.

Financial Instruments
The Government is party to financial instruments as part of its normal operatlons. These

financial instruments include bank accounts, short term deposits, loans made, trade and
accounts receivables, investments and trade and accounts payable, loans and
borrowings, all of which are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

Clossificotion

A financial asset is classified as any asset that is cash, a contractual right to receive cash
or another financial asset or exchange financial instruments under conditions that are
potentially favourable. Financial assets comprise of cash and cash equivalents, loans
made, investments, and accounts receivable.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or
another financial instrument or to exchange financial instruments with another
enterprise under conditions that are potentially unfavourable. Financial liabilities
comprise of accounts payable, accrued expenses and borrowings.

Recoanition
The Government recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument; from this date, any gains

and losses arising from changes in fair value of the assets and liabilities are recognised in
the statements of financial oerformance.

Medsurement
Financial instruments are measured initiallv at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration given or received.
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The financial assets classified as cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
investments - not including those held by Cayman lslands Monetary Authority - are
subsequently recorded at historical cost; which is considered to approximate fair value
due to the short-term or immediate nature of these instruments.

Cayman lslands Monetary Authority's short-term investments are valued, on a monthly
basis at their amortized cost. Long term investments are valued at quoted market
value. Unrealized gains or losses are recorded in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Loans made are measured at amortized cost, being the initial amount of the loan less
principal payments, less any impairment losses.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, being the amount at
which the liability was initially recognised less any payment plus any accrued interest of
the difference between that initial amount and the maturitv amount.

De-recoanition
A financial asset is de-recognised when the Government realises or waives the rights to
the benefits specified in the contract or loses control over any right that comprise that
asset. A financial liability is de-recognised when it is extinguished, that is when the
obligation is discharged, cancelled, or expires.

off-settind
Financial Assets and financial liabilities are off-set and the net amount reDorted in the
Statement of Financial Position il and only il there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize assets and settle the liabilities simultaneouslv.

lmpoiment of Finonciol Assets

The Government assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset is, or a group of financial assets are, impaired. lmpairment is

deemed to have transpired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a

result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset

(an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash

flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

lf there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is

discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. lf a loan has a variable

interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate.
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The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and

the amount of the loss is recognized in Statement of Financial Performance. Loans

together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recoverv and all collateral has been realised or transferred to the Government.
lf, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
account. lf a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to revenue in the
Statement of Financial Performa nce.

Foir Vdlue

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting
date is determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid
price for long positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for
transactron costs.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and
equipment. Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset
is being acquired or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalisation
ceases when construction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged
to the Statement of Financial Performance.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Government has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Government expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is

virtuallv certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Financial
Performance net of anV reimbursement.

The Public Management and Finance Law (2017 Revision), as amended ("the Law" or
"PMFL"), requires that the Government maintains a minimum of 90 days cash balance.
These cash balances include the General Reserves Funds.

These funds are held in fixed deposits by the Treasury Department.
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Reward Points
The Govern ment-owned airline's frequent flyer programme allows frequent travellers to
accumulate 'Sir Turtle Rewards' points each time thev travel with the airline. These
points entitle them to a choice of various awards, including free travel and upgrades.
Additionally the airline sells Reward points to non-airline business partners.

The reward points are recognised as a separately identifiable component of the initial
sale transaction by allocating the fair value of the consideration received between the
award points and the other components of the sale such that the reward points are

initially recognised as deferred income at their fair value and subsequently recognised as

revenue on redemption of the miles by the participants to whom the miles are issued.

The frequent flyer provision in respect of the redemption under this programme is

determined using various assumptions concerning the future behaviour of the
participants. Those include the following assumptions:

i) The fair value attributable to the awarded mileage credit has been calculated based

on the weighted average fare price across all routes over the last five years; and

ii) The rate of redemption for the program since its inception.

Revenue received against the issuance of Sir Turtle Rewards points is deferred as a

liabilitv and shown as provision on the Statement of Financial Position until the points are

redeemed or the passenger is uplifted in the case of flight redemptions. The frequent
flyer provision is measured based on managements'estimates of the fair value of the
expected awards for which the points will be redeemed. The fair value of the awards is

reduced to take into account the proportion of points which are expected to expire.

Contingent Liabilities and Assets (including guarantees)
Contingent liabilities and assets are reported at the point the contingency becomes

evident. Contingent liabillties are disclosed when there is a possible obligatlon or
present obligations that may require an outflow of resources. Contingent assets are

disclosed if it is probable that the obligation will be realised.

Commitments
Commitments are future expenses and liabilities to be incurred on contracts that have

been entered into as at 31 December.

Cancellable commitments that have penalty or exit costs explicit in the agreement on

exercising the option to cancel are reported at the value of that penalty or exit cost (that
is the minimum future payments).

Commitments are classified as:

. Capital commitments: aggregate amount of capital expenditure contracted for
but not recognised as paid or provided for at the end of the reporting period,
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. Non-cancellable operating leases with lease term of more than one year, and

. Other non-cancellable commitments (these may include consulting contracts
clea ning contracts).

Foreign Currency

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Cayman lslands dollars using the exchange
rate in effect at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency gains or losses resulting
from settlement of such transactions are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

At the end of the reporting period the following exchange rates were used to translate
foreign currency ba la nces:

Central Government monetary and non-monetarV assets held in US Dollars are
reported in Cayman lslands dollars using a rate of 0.83 and liabilities are reported in
Cayman lslands dollars using 0.8375. Statutory Authorities and Government
Companies foreign currency assets and liabilities denominated in US dollars are
reported using a fixed rate of exchange existing at the balance sheet date; and

. All other foreign currency monetary and non-monetary items are reported in Cayman
lslands dollars using the rate of exchange existing at the balance sheet date.

Comparative Figures
During a regular financial year the financial statements include a prior year comparison
of actual amounts with amounts in the current year. Where there is a change in
accounting policies or errors and omissions, comparative figures are restated to ensure
consistency with the current period unless it is impracticable to do so. However, due to
the change from a fiscal year to a calendar year the current financial results are the
product of an 18-month financial period ending 31 December 2017, prior year figures are
for the 12-month fiscal year ending 30 June 2016.

Segment Reporting
These financial statements include segment reporting based on the material institutional
components and major economic activities within or undertaken by the Government.

The three major institutional components of the Government are:

. Centrol Governmenti includes the Judicial Administration, Ministries and portfolios,
Office of the Complaints Commissioner, the Office of the Information Commissioner,
the Office of the Premier, the Office of Auditor General, the Office of Director of
Public Prosecutions and the office of the Ombudsman, it also includes the equity
investment in Statutory Authorities and Government Companies.

. Statutory Authorities: Includes all entities established by law to carry out specific
functions authorised by the law that governs the entity; being funded partly or
entirely, by money provided by the Governor in Cabinet, and for which the Governor

Government ofthe Cayman tslands I Consolidated Financial Statemen ts 2OL6/2O77



or the Governor in Cabinet has the power to appoint or dismiss the majority of the
Board or other governing body.

. Government Componies: Includes companies in which the Government has

controlling interest and in respect of each such company, includes all subsidiary
entitles of the company.

Statutory Authorities and Government Companies are treated as one segment for the
purposes of these financial statements.

Related Parties
Related party relationships and transactions are disclosed in accordance with IPSAS 20-
Related Party Disclosures and are defined by the following criterion:

. Related party relationships where control exists, regardless of whether there have
been transactions between the related parties;

. Transactions between related parties including the nature of the relationship, the
type of transaction and the elements of the transactions necessary for an
understanding of the financial statements.

No disclosure is reouired of transactions between:

. Ministries, Portfolios, Offices and Statutory Authorities and Government owned
Companies acting in the course of their normal dealings;

. Customers with whom an entity transacts a significant volume of business are not
related merely by virtue of the resulting economic dependence. This exclusion
applies to private sector or not-for-profit agencies that are dependent upon
government funding.

Related parties for the purposes of the Entire Public Sector include key management
personnel such as Ministers and Official Members of Cabinet, Elected Members of the
Legislative Assembly, Board members, Board Directors and Chief Officers or any other
person acting in a capacity of influence in the Government.
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Note Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months' maturity from

the date of acquisition, including cash on hand, cash in transit, deposits held on call with

banks and other short term highly liquid investments net of overdraft.

EPS Actual

2075120L6

crs000

329

7t,I74
4L,349
\ \)A

LO,268

104,805

2t3,49
(2,0341.

23L,4L5

EPS Actual Description
2OL512016

cr5000

179,202 Unrestricted Cash

52,273 Restricted Fu nds

23L,4L5 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Description

Cash on Hand

Ope rational Accounts - KYD

Ope rational Accounts - USD

Ope rational Accounts - 6BP

Other Bank Accounts

Fixed Deposits (Less than 90 days)

Cash and Cash Equivalents (excluding bank overdrafts)
Less overdrafts

Cash and Cash Equivalents

EPS Actual
20rclmL7

crs000

950

725,275

4L,745

2

13,991

40,1,47

222,LLO

(1,829)

220,24L

EPS Actual
2OL6l20L7

crs000

212,331,

7,950

220.,24L

As part of the Governments'cash management strategy funds are classified as restricted

and unrestricted and are represented as below:

The use of Central Government restricted funds requires the approval of Cabinet and the
Legislative Assembly and/or Finance Committee.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

Fixed deposits and short term investments are made for varying periods, depending on

the immediate cash requirements and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit
rates. Deposits held for over 90 days at the time of placement are classified as

investments and are reported in Note 7.
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Note Trade Receivables

Core Adual EPS Actual

20rsl20t6 20t5l20r6

crs'000

8,572

14,889

Description

crs'000

6,287 Coercive Revenue Receivable

L37,466 Non-Coercive Receivable

Core Actual EPS Actual

20r6lmi7 20r5l20r7

crs000 crs'000

7,152 4,872

18,392 125,O4r

25,y4 t29,913
(16,313) (98,869)

9,23t 31,044

Core Adual EPS Actual

20r6lmu 2Or6l2OL7
crsooo crsooo

(12,889) (111,s88)

13,424) {4,680)
- 77,399

(16,313) (9&869)

23,461 l43,T53TotalTradeReceivables
(12,889) {111,588) Lessr Provision for Doubtful Debts

10j72 32,165NetTradeRec€ivables

Movement in Provision and lmpairment

Core Actual EPS Actual Description
20t5l20t6 m$l20t6

crs000 cr5000

(17,307) {98,525) Balance at l luly
(191) (14,557) Additional provisions made duringthe year

4,6@ 1,494 Receivables written off during the period
(12,889) (111,588) Provision for Doubtful Debts

Maturity Profile

Core Actual EPS Actual

2075/2016 2qt5l20t6

crs000 crs000

to,422 32,015

150 150

to,572 34165

Description

Trade Receivables due in one year

Trade Receivabels due after one year

Total Trade Receivables

Core Actual

20t6120t7

cr5000

8,804

427

EPS Actual

m$l2or7
crs000

30,617

427

tt049,231
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Note Other Receivables

Core Actual

m$lm$
crSooo

1,827

811

EPSAdual

m$lm$
os000

2,637

811

33

Core Adual
m$lmD

cr9000

98

893

1

8,223

76,74L

€PS Actual

20L6lmfi
cls000

40

893

106

200

2,772

20,262

Description

Advances and Expenditure Reimbursable

Dishonoured cheques

lnterest Receivable

Dividends Receivable1 ?qq

7,527

993 Long Term Other Receivables

9,966 Other Receivable

13,554 14440 Total Other Receivables

(57) (57) Less: provision for Doubtful Debts

13,507 14:183 Net Other Receivables

Movement in Provision and lmpairment

Core Adual
20rsl2016

crs000

ls7)

EPS Actual Description

mrslmt6
c1900o

(57) Balance at l JulY

- Additional provisions made duringthe year

Description

Other Receivables due in one year

Other Receivabels due after one year

Total Trade Receivables

25,956

(31)

23,673

t31)

25,925 23,N1

Core Actual EPS Actual

2OL6lm17 mrcl2nL7
cr5oo0

(s7)

26

crs000

(s7)

26

(S7) (57) Provision for Doubtful oebts

Maturity profile

(31) {31}

core Actual €PS Actual

20,slmv 20$lmi
cr5000 crs000

25,925 2r,410
- 2,t2

25,925 23,U2

Core Actual

zorsl2fr6
cts000

13,507

EPS Actual

2Or5lXt76
crs000

13,389

994

13,507 14383
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Oescription

cr5000

338 Raw Materials (including consumable stores)
2,625 Inventory held for use in the provision ofgoods and services
1,621 Other Inventories for use within one year

1,323 water Inve ntory
2389 Pharmaceutical and Medical Supplies
2,OO3 Inventory of Unissued Currency Notes and Coins

818 Coins awaiting melt-down, coins for resale and Bullions
661 Affordable Houses

16,778 Total Inve ntories

Note 5: Inventories

€PS Actual
2OrSl2Ot6

Managed by;
crsooo

2,975
13,803

16,774

EPS Actual
mLglmi

crsooo

311
3,135

7,7L4

\,2@
6,306
7,ffi2

765
r25

15,2:t9

crsooo

3,749
72,O90

''s,2?9

EPS Actual
2OL6lz0tt

crs000

'.5,r3s

Central Government
Statutory Authorities & Government Companies
Total Inventories

Maturity profile

Maturity Profile
EPS Actual
m15lmL6

clS(x)o

Description

16,77a Inventories for use in one year

L6,77a Total Invento.ies

No inventory items were pledged as security during the current or prior financial year.

Total write off of inventory due to impairment was 5312,682 (2015: 5231,000)
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Note 6: Loans Made

EPS Actual
m'5,lmr6

crsooo

72,337
264

74

2,673
31,060

46,543
(16,2s8)

30,245

Description

Medical Loans

Mortgage Loans

Home School Association
Loans (due within 12 months)
Commercial Loans

Private Schools
Total Loans Made
Less: Provision for lmpairment Losses

Net Loans Made

EPS Actual
mLslmg

ctso0o

12,008

220
74

1,888

27,799
77

42,066
(1s,823)

26,241

crs000

r,o4a
25,t95
26,24t

EPS Actual
zoL6l20L7

crSooo

(16,2s8)

435

(11823)

EPS Actual
20rclmL7

ct5000

1,888

24,355

26,243

Managed by:
crso00

1,397 Central Gove rn ment
28,888 Statutory Authorities & Government Companies
30,285 Total Net Loans Made

Movement in Provision and lmpairment

EPS Actual

2OL5l2016
cr5000

(1.8,285) Balance at 1J uly

Description

Additional provisions made/Write-back of provisions

939 du ring the year

1,088 Write off of Loans Made during the period
(15,2581 Provision tor lmpairment Losses

Maturity Profile

EPS Actual Description
20tsl2016

cts000

2,671 Amounts due within L2 months

27,61-4 Amounts due after lyear
30,285 Total Net toans Made

Fair Value
The carrying values of loans made are not materially different from their fair values.

Loans made include commercial loans made by the Cayman lslands Development Bank;
however the repayments and disbursement of loans are included in the operating
section of the Statement of Cash Flows.
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Note 7: Investments

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
to S554.6 million (20L6: $438.5 million).

the Government had investments amounting

Short -Term lnvestments

EPS Actual

2OL5l2OL6

Description

cts00o

432,501 Marketable Securities and Deposits

81.3 lnterest Rece ivable

433,314 Short-Term Investments

Long-Term Investment
EPS Actual

20rsl20L6
Description

cr5000

4366 MarketableSecurities
591 Caribbe an Development Bank

240 Cayman First Insurance Limited
5,197 Long-Term lnvestments

4:|8,5U Total Investments

EPS Actual

2OLsl2OL6
crs000

320,3s3

118, r58

Investment Held by:

Description

Central Gove rn me nt

Statutory Authorities & Government Companies

Total lnvestment

EPS Actual

mL6l2077

crs000

516,989

519,435

EPS Actual

2016120L7

crs000

34,325

591

240

35,156

554,591

EPS Actual

2016lZ0r7
crs000

4Q1,,700

152,891

554,591438,511

Short-Term Investments
Short Term investments are held in the form of US Treasury Bills, AAA Corporate Bonds

and US Treasury Notes with maturity dates ranging between 18 January 2018 and 31
October 2018, and the Federal Reserve Repurchase Agreement with a maturity date 02

January 2018, and Fixed Deposits with maturity dates over 90 days but within 365 days.

The US Treasury Bills are measured at amortised cost. All other investments are

measured at fair value designate upon initial recognition.
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EPS Actual

z0Lsl2OL6

crsmo

44,333

s2,334

2,494

326,779

813

Description

Federal Reserves repurchase Agreement at 0.07%

US Treasury Notes

AAA Corporate bonds

US Fed Farm Disc Note

Fixed Deposits (ove r 90 days but within 365 days)

Interest rece ivable

Short-Term Investments

EPS Astual

2O'5,lmn

crs000

szs83
36,594_

422,8L2

2,446

5L9,435433,314

Long-Term Investments
Long term investments in marketable securities are held in US Treasury Notes, and U.S.

Government Sponsored Enterprise ("GSE") stated at market value, with interest rates

ranging from 1.25o/o to 3.043% and matu rity dates between 30 April 2019 a nd 20 October

2042.

EPS Actual

zo15lmrc
Description

cr$ooo

- 1-5 years

- 6-10 years

4,366 Over 10 years

4,ffi Marketable Securities

Caribbean Development Bank
The Government holds 533 Authorised Capital Stock and Member
the Caribbean Development Bank; of which 117 shares valued at
shares and the remaining 416 shares are callable shares. The paid
of U556.321.74 each.

EPS Actual
z0L6lmL7

crsoq)

3t,L79
589

2,5t7
v,325

Subscription shares in

5591,000 are paid up
up shares are at a cost

Cayman First Insurance Limited
The Government holds 12% of the shareholdings of the company. These shares were

issued in lieu of insurance settlement in August 2005 at a cost of S240,000.
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Reserve Fixed Deposits

EPS Adual

m'512016
crsooo

386,298

52,2r3

438,511

Unrestricted Funds

Restricted Funds

Total Investment

Description EPS Actual

2016120L7

crs000

260,783

293,808

ss4s91

cash management strategy those funds classified as

as restricted and unrestricted. As at 31 December

funds of $178.1 million of whlch 5170.2 million is

As part of the Core Governments'

marketable securities are classified

Core Government held restricted

included in marketable securities.

Currency Reserve Assets
Marketable Securities and Deposits form part of the Currency Reserve Assets of the
Cayman lslands Monetary Authority. These assets are to be used to fund the
Authority's currency redemption obligations.

Sections 32(8) of the Cayman lslands Monetary Authority Law (2017 Revision) mandates
the preservation of Currency Reserve Assets, separately from all other assets of the
Monetary Authority. These assets are to be used to fund the Authority's currency
redemption obligations and are not to be used to satisfy liabilities arising from any other
business of the Authority. After all demand liabilities are extinguished, any surplus
Currency Reserve Assets would form, in part, the assets of the General Reserve.

In accordance with sections 32(2) and 32(6) of the Monetary Authority Law, the Currency
Reserve Assets consist of external assets (not less in value than an amount equivalent to
ninety percent of demand liabilities) and local assets (not to exceed ten percent of
Demand Liabilities).

As at 31 Decembet 2017, the value of Currency Reserve Assets was $131.9 million (2016:
$118.5 million) representing 1-1-0.36% 12076: 170.85%l of total Demand Liabilitjes. The
value of external assets equated to IO5.92% (2016: 105.65%) while the value of local
assets as at 31 December 2017 equated to 4.44% (2016: 5.32%l of Demand Liabilities.
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Note Prepayments

core Actual EPs Actual

201sl20r6 m'5.l2jJ.L6

2,497 4,520

2,49a 5,347

4989 9,867

Prepaid Insurance

Other Prepayments

Total Prepayments

Description Core Actual EPS Actual

20t6l20r7 20L6lmn

crs000 ct5000

364 479

2,012 6,960

2,376 7,439

Maturity Profile

Core Adual EPS Actual

20rsl20r6 20r5l2OL6

ct5000 crsooo

4,989 9,867

Description

Prepayments due in one year

Total Prepayments

Core Actual

2016l2Or7

cl$000

2,376

EPS Actual

20,5,lmD

cr5000

7,439
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Note 9: Biological Assets

EPS Actual

2OL5lmL6

clso00

Description EPS Actual

2OL6l2Ot7

cr50@

1,195

338

Livestock, at fai r val ues:

L,290 Secondary herd

350 Breede r herd
r"5331,6rI) Biological Assets

crs000

Held by:

- Ce ntral Gove rn me nt

crs000

g0 Statutorv Authorities & Government

Total Biological Assets

The movements in the carrying value of the secondary herd are outlined as follows:

€PS Actual

m'5lm!6
crsmo

Description EPS Actual

2OL6l2OL7

cr5m0

101 value at beginni

140 Change attributable to differences in fairvalues

598 Biological transformation

(e7)

470

sales. at end fair values

189 Net chanee in bio lassets included in income

Biological transformation comprises the net effect of births, deaths and other losses, and

growth within the secondary herd, measured at year-end fair values. Due to the

continuing limitations surrounding the market for the products of the secondary herd,

shells are valued at 5 nil.

The movements in the net book value of the breeder herd are outlined as follows:

EPS Actual DescriPtion

2OL5l2OL6

crs000

336 Carrying value at begin ning of year

EPS Actual

2OL6l2OL7

crs000

350

value at end of

14 Net (decrease)/increase during the

Net additions during
weight gained during

the year comprise the costs attributable to
the vear, less mortalities. During the years

new breeders added,

ended 31 December
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20L7 no new breeder (2015: Nil) was added to the herd and 9 turtles (2016: 8) were
transferred to the secondary herd or died. As of 31 December 2017 there was 5500,000
(2016: S500,000) insurance coverage associated with the livestock.

Medsurement of fair values:

Fair value hierarchy
The fair value measurements for the breeder herd and secondary herd have been
categorised as Level 3 fair values based on the inputs to the valuation techniques used.

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs
The following valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs have been used

in determining the Level 3 fair values of the breeder herd and secondary herd:

Voluotion technique: The valuation model considers the percentage of steak, stew, fin
bone and menavelin that can be yielded as well as the current selling prices for these
items. The expected cash flows are reduced for the expected processing costs.

Unobservoble lnputs: Percentage yields, estimated weight gain as well as the directly
attributable processing costs to the Company are considered to be unobservable inputs.
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Note 10: Propetty, Plant and EquiPment
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Assets under Construction or Development
Below is a summary of major projects under construction or development as at
31 December 2017:

Ministry of Education, Employme nt &

cender Affairs

Cayman lslands Airports Authority
Water Authority of the Cayman lslands

Water Authority of the Cayman lslands

Cayman lslands Port Authority
Cayman lslands Port Authority

lslands Port

Description

NJGHS Construction
ORIA Expansion Project

Grand Cayman -WBSS - Pipeline Install

Cayman Brac - Site Preparation

Spotts Landing Facility

CDC Development
New Bulldine (CYB

20t7

crs{no

M,796
46,557 12,93

810

546

-3
349

r21

Owen Roberts International Airport Expansion and Renovation Project
The Owen Roberts International Airport Expansion and Renovation Project valued, at $55
million is now under construction and being carried out in two main phases that includes
the full renovation and expansion of the existing facility. The first phase on the west end
of the terminal commenced in September 2015 is now complete. Phase Two will be

carried out in sub-phases to enable the terminal to remain fully functional, safe and
secure throughout the construction periods.

In December 2017 a major milestone was met with the opening of the new check-in area.
The entire project is scheduled to be completed in 2018 with the airport almost tripling in

size to over 207,000 square feet.

Pledged Assets
The Statutory Authorities and Government-Owned Companies have pledged a number of
assets that secured loans as detailed below:

€arrying Value/Registe
Charges as

Agency

Health Se rvices Authority

Asset Class

Land and Buildings

3l December

2,

Wate r Authori Bu ild i

Revaluation
Property was revalued as at 30 June 2016 by in-house professionals with the exception of
specialized buildings which were contracted to independent evaluators and are stated at
revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation. Plant and equipment, are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation. ltems of property, plant and equipment are
initially recorded at cost. Where an asset is acquired for nil or nominal consideration, the
asset is recognized initially at fair value, where fair value can be reliably determined, and
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as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance in the vear in which the asset is

acquired.

In accordance with IPSAS 17, when an item of property, plant, and equipment is revalued,
any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is treated in one of the
following ways:

(a) Restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the
asset, so that the carrying amount of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued
amount or

(b) Eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.

Valuation methods
The valuations contained within this report have been prepared in accordance with the
aforementioned Standards and the guidance notes provided by the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors. Particular regard should be paid to the following definitions and
methodology having been adopted in the assessment of value:

Fair Value (Market Value) defined in accordance with IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement as

follows: "The price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date."

Fair Value (Existing Use Value) extends the definition of Fair Value (Market Value) in
"assuming that the buyer is granted vacant possession of all parts of the property
required by the business and disregarding potential alternative uses and any other
characteristics of the property that would cause its market value to differ from that
needed to replace the remaining service potential at least cost."

Specialised Assets: specialised assets are those for which no market exists for the current
use. Specialised assets are valued using the Depreciated Replacement Cost method (DRC

valuation) The definition of 'Depreciated Replacement Cost', as contained in The

Standards, is as follows:- "The current cost of replacing an asset with its modern
equivalent asset less deductions for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of
o bso lescence and optimisation.

Valuation assumptions
Plant and machinery has only been included in the valuation of building assets where this
forms an integral part of the fabric of the building (e.g. lifts or air conditioning equipment)
or where it performs a task crucial to the continuation of the existing use (e.g. swimming
pools). Unless specifically stated otherwise it is assumed that such items are reflected in
the u nit buildinp cost.

It is assumed that ail properties have the required planning consents and certificates for
use and construction. Where Fair Value (or land value in a DRC valuation) relies on
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obtaining an alternative planning consent the alternative use has been derived from

consideration of prevailing land uses in the immediate area and Local Planning Policies

and practice.

where an asset has been valued by Depreciated Replacement cost (DRc) it is subject to

the prospect and viability of the asset contlnuing to be used for the existing use'

These valuations do not take into account any form of selling or purchase costs, tax

(including stamp Duty), inflation or finance costs. ln the cayman lslands there is no tax on

property except for Stamp Duty which is ordinarily required to be paid by a purchaser.

Valuations of each 'specialised building'state their total asset value and the (depreciated)

value of the respective building. Those with a depreciated building value greater than

S0.5m also state figures for their'component'parts. Buildings valued by the investment

or comparison methods of valuation also state figures for their respective land values.

These do not compute to reflect actual building values but indicate the inherent value

attributing to the land only.

Where applicable the remaining economic life of the building / building components has

been indicated. This is the period during which the building element is anticipated to have

a future useful economlc llfe for its existing purpose.

In preparing the valuations information has been obtained from the following sources:

Cavman lslands Government 2001Asset Register

Cayman lslands Government Land Registry Database

. Cayman land Info System (Mapping, aerial photography, evidence of comparable

sales and lettings)

Copies of and extracts from leases

Architect sca led floor plans

Ministries and users / occupiers of operational property assets

Land areas (where stated) are provided for guidance only and are quoted from the Land

Registers or otherwise from Cayman land Info database. Any building floor areas supplied

have been obtained from one of the following sources:

Measu rements taken on site

Measurements extracted from CaVman lslands Government property records
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Note 11: Intangible Assets

Enti.e Publi. Srclo.
ct9000

Net gook value 31 Oeaember 2017

ustments & Transfe15

Balance as at:mrune 2015

Balance as at lJulv 2016 56 1,678 24,66C

Addrtions
Disposal/ DerecoRnition (67) 167)

Adiustments & Transfers (2,598) {1,578) 14,116)

Balance as at 3l December2olT 21,6U 5C 2t,12(

Computer

Soltwdrc

Othet
lntongible

Aisets

lntongible

Totdl

Balance as at llulv 2015 rc,134 31 16,161

Eliminate on Disoosal/Derecosnition (1371 11311

Adiustments & Transfers (2ee) (299)

Amortization ExoenSe 1,801 72 1,813

Balance as at 30lune 2015 18,095 49 18,IM

Balance as at0lJulv 2016 18,095 18,144

E||minate on Disoosal/Derecosnition {3341 13341

Adjustments & Transfers (4,184) 14,18/'l

Amortization Expense 2,42C 2,422

Balance as at 3l Decerhber 2017 15,991 16,04t

Net Bookvalue 30June 2015

Net Book value :lO.lune 2016
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Note 12: Investment Property

EPS Net
2Or5l2Ot6

crs000

Cost

19,905 Balance as at l July

43 Additions

Description EPs Net
2Ot6l2Ot7

crs000

1q q4q

46

19,949 TotalCost 19,995

A€cumulated Oepreciation

4,133 Balanceas at l July

438 chargefor Period

4,57 !
660

4,571 TotalAccumulated Depreciation 5,23r

15,378 Net Book value 14,764

Managed byi

crs000

- Central Government

15,378 Statutory Authorities & Government Companies

crs000

14,764

15,378 TotalLoans Made t4,764

Investment Property consist of retail shops which are leased.

Management received an independent professional appraisal of the Investment Property
from BCQS as at 30 June 2014. The fair value of the investment property was indicated at
Cl$24.5 million. Despite this, Management decided to retain the historical cost basis of
accounting for the Investment Property.

Management has decided to obtain a second valuation to better inform the decision to
move to the fair value method. This is being pursued but was not concluded for the period
ended 30 December 2017.

EPS Net
2Or5l2Ot6

crSooo

1,088

Description

Rental income from investment properties

Direct operati ng expenses arising trom investment property
that generated renta I revenue during the period

Direct operating expenses arising from investment property
that did not generate rental revenue duri ng the period

EPS Net
2Ot5l2017

crs000

r,562
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Note Trade Payables, Other Payables & Accruals

Co|c Actual

zsTSnUS
cr9000

ts,941

1,207

34,768

1

3,782

22,417

2,028

3,676

2,O70

46,88 83,043

Descriptim

Trade Payables

PayrollDeductions

Accruals

Trust liabilities
Transfers payable

lnterest

Core government trade with other public entitaes
Amounts due to public entities
Owing to trusts
Accruals- Equity Injection
Other Payables

TotalTrade Payables, Accruals and Other payables
3.079 14.259

141355 149,413

EPS Actual

z0l'l2o,t6
crs000

20,273

1,632

3&385

1

862

3,&A

Co.c Actual

m$lmD
crs000

19,64
, 1C4

98,102

1

22

3,353

L2,320

2,O73

3,811

7,rt6

EPS Actoal

2g7612017
crSoo0

27,779

1"850

7,3U
269

3,723

3,812

EPSActual

2016lrot7

cr50o0

149,760

14,425

Maturity Profile
Core Actual EPS Actual

2OrSl2OL6 m$l20r6
cr5000 crs000

Description Core Astual

20tr6lm7t

crs0o0

145 ?6585,298

85,298 83,043 Total T.ade Payables, Ac(ruals and Other Payables 145,365 149,413

Trade and other payable are non - interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 days
term. Accounts payable includes invoices received from suppliers not yet settled.

82,839 Current

204 Non-current
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Note 14: Unearned Revenue

os000

L493 Customs Deposits

26,411 lmmigration Deposits

&956 cayman Airways Deposits

5,416 General Registry Deposits

14282 Lease of crown Lands

oso00

L36s
25,425

7,26
27,897

13,918

Revenue and Other De

Held by
o9lxlo

5L395 Central Government

Maturity Profile

osm
65,282 current
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Note 15: Employee Entitlements

Core Actual

zxJtsl?rjs

os()0o

6,051

593

1,963

EPS Actual

m'slm76
osooo

7,L74

1,00{]

2,315

Core Actual

2orclm'J
c9000

5,1m

527

1,833

EPS Adual
20'.5lm77

ostxto

6,045

769

2.146

8,fi' to,4n

t escripilon

Annual Leave

Salary & Wages

Other

Total Employment Entltlem€nt

Maturity Profile

CoreActud EPSActual

m'6l/Jj' 20t5l n6
osom o5m0

D,escription

Current

Total Employment Entitlement

7,&) &960

CorcActual EPS Acbal

wtsl2{/t7 mralmu
05000 0s000

7,4@ 8,9608,607 rO,491

8,fl7 to,497 7,@ 8,960

Annual Leave

Annual leave accrues to employees on a monthly basis, subject to certain conditions and
constraints. The provision is an estimate of the amount due to staff as at the financial
year-end, based on the value of statutory and non-statutory leave. The provision was
calculated based on the leave entitlement due to staff at year end adjusted for the salary
scales applicable at the time of leave encashment and realisation of leave by employees.
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Note 16: Retirement Benefits

CoreActual EPSActual Descdpuon

20'5n0$ 20751m15

os000

449.495 Pension Liability

31,758 Post Retirement Health Care Liability

30 Other Post R€tirement l-iability

{15,n6 t181,28:l Total Retircment Benefits

CoreActual EPS Actual

20t6l2gn 2olf,Im,l7

os{xr

415,176

osom

420,335

c6m0

459,301

2s0,s32

Core Actual

mls,lm$
cr9qx)

29,4n
386,316

Maturity Protile

EPS Actual

2Ou.l2016
crs{rc0

33.312 Current

447.971 Non-current

Desc.iption

420,335

Cole Actual EPS Actual

2OrGl2Or7 2m6lm17
cr9ooo crsorxr

10,000 26,269

410,335 683,564

4t5,n5 481.2&l Total Retirement BenefiB 420,35 709,8t3

The Government, under the provisions of the Public Service Management Law, is

obligated to provide post-retirement benefits to qualified employees in the form of health
care and pension. The Government recognizes and provides for actuarially determined
present value of retirement obligation on an accrual basis, using the Projected Unit Credit
method.

Pensions
The Government participates in various pension schemes. The schemes are generally
funded through payments to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds,
determined by periodic actuarial calculations. The group has both defined benefit and
defined contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution
plan. Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as

age, years of service and compensation.
Two separate actuarial valuations are carried out on the Government's defined benefit
pension plans to allocate the estimated costs to time periods: i) pension accounting
valuation for liability fair value presentations, and ii) pension funding valuation.

The funding valuation primarily determines the cash contribution requirements to fund
the liability. The accounting valuation, which is required annually, determines amounts to
report in the Government's financial statements and has no cash impact.
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Pension Liability Fair Value Presentations
IPSAS 25 - requires that the pension liabilities be revalued annually in order to present

the fair value of the fund balances. The Government and Statutorv Authorities and
Government Companies have employed consultants to do this annual fair value
assessment. The result of the 2017 actuarial valuation is a net liability of 5464.9 million
(central government net liability - 5420.3 million). A summary of the results are shown
oetow:

2016l2Ot7

cts000

2Ot5l2075

crs000

Core Government 399,808 398,622

Pa rlaa menta ria n Pe n s ions 20,7 47 17,030

udicia I Pe ns ions (22o) 124

Centra I GovernmentPension tia bilatv Fa ir Va lue 420,335 4t5,776

Slatutory Authorities and 6ove rnment Companres 38,966 33,1\9

Entire Publi. Se.lor pension Liability Falr Value 459,301 449,495

Principal Assumptions
The principal assumptions used in the computation of the
pension obligation for the Pension Plans, as at 31 December are

Amounts recoenised in the statement of financial oosition

Discount .ate (weighted overoge ossumptions to determine beneJit obligations)

2 Rdte or srldry increase
3 Rate of price inflation
4. Rate of pension Increases

Discount.ote (weighted overoge ossumptions to deterhine net pension cost)
1. Discount rate used to determine DBO at beginning of yea r
2. Drscount rate used to determine c urrcnt service cost
3. Dis cou nt rate used to determine interest on c!rrent service cos t
4. oiscount rate used to determine interest on defined be.cfit obligation
5 Expected long term rate of return on plan assets
6 Rate of sa la ry increase
7. Rate of price in fla tlon
a. Rate of pension increascs

Assumed hle expe.totions on rctnemeht oge 65

1 Retiring today {rnember age 65)

2. Retiring in 25 yea rs (member age 40 today)

actuarial estlmate of the
as follows:

2oL7 mt6

3.aa% 4.oo%
2.50v" 3.50v"
2.Oe/" 2.50%
2.OO% 2.50%

4.OOv" 4.15%
4.ao% 4.15%
3.ao% 4.t5%
3.40% 3.50%
1.OU/" 7.g)%
3.50% 2.sO%

2.50% 2.50%
2.500/" 2.504/.

30.24 30.21
32.51 32.49

Publicse.viceParliamentary Judiciary Totalcentral Statutory Entlr€

P€nsions Plan P€nsions Plan Pensionselan covernment Authorities Sedor

esentvaluebencftobligation 722,510 29,902 6,118 758,590 59,752 827,752

ir Value of plan aesets 325,905 10,920 7

us fo. flnded plans 396,655 18,982 1935) 414.772 38,965 453,67A

sed net actuarial sain/{loss) 3.143 1.765 715
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Plan Assets
Percentage of plan assets by asset allocation:

Eq u ity Investments

Debt Securities

Other

Actual return on plan assets was S72 million.

2017

80.00%

79.OOv"

|.oo%

Pensions Funding Valuation
An Actuarial valuation with an effective date of l January 2014 was conducted for the

Public service Pension Fund. The Public service Pension Fund constitutes three separate
plans; the Public service Pensions Plan, the Parliamentary Pensions Plan and the Judiciary

Pensions Plan. These Actuarial Valuation Reports were accepted by the Public Service

Pension Board and are waiting Cabinet to be tabled in the Legislative Assembly.

The actuarial valuation calculated a fund deficiency of s226 million as at 1 January 2014,

using a discount "?te of 7yo. This represents fund deficiencies arising from participants

having accrued considerable defined benefit entitlements prior to the establishment of

the pension fu nd.

Future contribution requirement
In order to sustain the Fund, contributions for defined contribution participants need to

be L2.40/0 or 523.19 million per year of salary and wages.

The contribution needed for defined benefit participants is required to be 529.87 million

based on cost plus amortization of the actuarial deficiency over a 20 year period.

Based on the above, the total annual cost, based on the active pensionable payroll is

estimated at 553.06 million or 15.04% of salary and wages.

Post-Retirement Health Care Benefit
In addition to the Past Service Pension Liability, the Government also recognizes its

obligations for the future health care costs of civil servants who earned that benefit

based on their prior service with the Government.

Previously Civil Servants who worked for a minimum of 10 years with the Government

would be entitled to a health care benefit upon retirement. However, the Public Service

Management Law now requires that the employee puts in the same amount of years of
qualifying service and also retire from the Civil Service in order to obtain such benefits in

the futu re.

The results of health care liabilitv actuarialvaluation, completed in March 2018, estimated

the post-retirement health care obligation as at 31 December 2017 to be 51.7 billion (net

51.6 billion) with the post-retirement medical expense totalling 5240.1 million for the

period ended 31 December 2o'L7. rhe assumptions of the actuarial valuation have not

been accepted by the Government and therefore the post-retirement health care
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obligation and related expenditure has not been formally recognised on the Statements of

Financial Position and Performance, for Central Government.

Therefore for all intents and purpose,

respect of post-retirement health care

aside off balance sheet in respect of
liability.

the Government is on a "pay-as-you-go" plan in
liabilities. Currently, no long term assets are set

the Government's post-retirement health care

There are some statutory Authorities and Government companies who have accrued a

post-retirement health care cost as at 31 December 2017 of s250.5 million. The amounts

recognised in the balance sheet represent the present value of unfunded obligations,

actuarially determined for 31 December 2017.

Other Post Retirement Benefit
ln 1997 the Board of Directors of Cavman Turtle Farm (1983) Limited approved a

severance pay package entitling employees with over 25 years of service to a cash

payment on retirement and payment of their health insurance premiums after retirement

for a period to be determined by the Board of Directors. There are no eligible employees

at 31 December 2OI7 (2076: None) and the total liability of the company in respect of

oast service benefits for retired employees is approximately clSNil (2015: C1529 '777)
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Note 17: Borrowing /Public Debt

De$.lptlon Opening
Balan.e 1 July

2015

crs000

503,318

3,926

7,753

32,209

15,142

20,368

14,486

DJawdowns/ Repaynents
Additions

cls000

Revduation Closing Ealance

31 ltecember

Core

Water Authority ofthe Cayman 
's 

la nds

Port Authority of the Cayman lslands

Cayma n lslands Development Bank

Health Services Authority

National Housing oevelopment Trust

Cayman Arrways Limited

Cavman lslards Iurtle Farm (1983) L'mrted

lotal

Maturity Profile
Cor€ Net EPS

2OLS|2OL6 2015/2016
crt000 cr5000

Co.e N€t EPS

2or6l20t7 2O16|2OL7
cttooo crsooo

620
449

1,,617

3,086

cts000

52,306

2,144

L,753

4,242

r,9L7

376

6,44a

cr$000

69

2017

cr$000

451,081

1,782

23,927

8,038

593,191 74,6t 5 69 518,645

882

746
2,1o1,

Locdl Cunency Debt
Not later tha n one year
Seiween one and two years
Between two and five years

La te r tha n live Yea rs

Total tocal Cunen€y D€br 5,772

34,478

34,859

317,759

95,812 124.245

30,280

372,726

68,909

39,165

41,499

325,504

98,005

47,865

Foteiqn Cunency Debt (srated in Sct)
46,979 Not later than one year
46,035 Eetween one and two years

353,744 Beiwee6 two and five years

503,318 545.043

La te r tha n five ye a fs

Total Fo.eign Currency Debt
fotal Outstanding Debt

Locdl Cuftency Morketoble Secuities ond Deposits
Not later tha n one year
Eetween one and two years

B€tween two and five years
Later tha n five yea rs

fotal tocalCunency Marketable Securities and Deposits

Forcign Cunency Ma*etoble Secwitiet ond Oepositt

Not la te r tha n one yea r
Eetween one and two years
Between two and five y€.rs
Lat€r tha n five yea 15

Total For€ign Curr€ncy Marketabl€ Securities and D€posits
less :Total Marketable S€curities and Oeposits
Net Public Debt

451,041 512,873

451,081 518,64s503,318 593,191

7,475 23,r23

7,875 23,t23

319,522 425,440

4,366

501,,447

25,944
689

2,5r7
319,522 429,406 400,869 530,537
319,522 437,681 400,869 553.750
la3,795 155,510 50,2L2 t35,1151

Core llet
2OtSl2016

cts00o

34,818

464,440

EPS

2015l2OL6
cts0oo

47,861 Current Po ion
545,330 Non-cu re nt Portion

Core Net EPS

2Ol6l2OL1 2O16I2OL7

30,280 42,119

420,801 476,526

crs00o cr9000

451,081503,318 593.191 Tot tOebt
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Credit Roting

Based on the 2017 credit rating done by Moody's Investor Services the Cayman lslands

Government has an international credit rating of Aa3/STA. As of August 201.8 this rating

remains the same.
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Note 18: Provisions
EPS Actual Description

20Lsl20L6
cr3000

10,216 Provision for health claims incurred but not yet reported

2,66I Other P rovisions

t48;17 Total Provisions

Movement in Provisions

EPS Actual

2OL512016

Description

ctSooo

11,657 Balance at l July

1,226 Additional provisions made duringthe year

(6) Provisions utlised duringthe year

12877 Provision for lmpairment Losses

Maturity Profile
EPS Actual

20t5l2OL6
cr$000

12,82 Curre nt

L2,877 f otal Provisions

EPS Actual

2Ot6lmL7
crs000

L0,206

2,490

L2,6%

EPS Actual

zoLol2oL7
cr$0(X)

L2,877

34

(21s)

L2,696

EPS Actual

2Ot6l2017
c15000

12,696

L2,696

Description

Provision for Claims Incurred
Management has estimated a provision for claims which have been incurred but not yet

reported (IBNR). While management has estimated IBNR based on all information it has

available to it at the time, the ultimate liability may be in excess of, or less than, the

amounts provided. Management uses acceptable reserving methods to estimate

provisions for claims incurred but not reported; these are periodically reviewed by an

independent actuary.

A health claim is payable when an event has occurred that gives rise to a claim payment

within the benefits of an insured member's policy while inforce. The lag between the

occurrence of a claim and the final payment is normally short term in nature as providers

are required by the Health Insurance Law to submit any claims within 180 days of date of

service. Thus, any reserve estimates are normally settled within a year'
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Frequent Flyer Programme
Other provisions include a provision in respect of the frequent flyer programme. This
provision is released when points are used or when they become non-redeemable. points

are redeemable for a maximum of three years in the event of non-activity in dormant
accounts. The Company uses an estimated value of redeemed travel, based on historical
average fares, to determine the value attributed on each mile. The provision is included

as a liability on the Statement of Financial Position.

Casualty Investigation Fund
The Cayman lslands Government/Maritime Authority of the Cayman lslands (MACI) is

party to the SOLAS Convention and is obliged to investigate certain marine casualties and

publish the report of the findings. The investigations are required by International
Maritime Organization's mandatory "Casualty Investigation Code" (MSC.255 (84)). During

the 2015/16 financial year MACI created a sinking fund with the funds from the sinking

fund to be designated for carrying out casualty investigation on board Cayman registered

vessels. The fund currently has a balance of 5238,624 (2016:$109,484) of which the full
amount form part of the cash balance.

Provision for Landfills
Currently the Cayman lslands Government does not have a provision for the rehabilitation

of Lands at the various landfills across the islands. At the time of the preparation of these

financial statements no formal valuation of the cost for rehabilitation was done, as the
Government is in the process of identifying a company to value and manage the landfills.

However, the Government has estimated it to be approximately S10 million.
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Ifote 19: Gurrency lrsued

currency lssued (or Demand liabilities] represents the value of currenry notes and

coins in circulation. These liabilities are fully funded by the Currency Reserve Assets of
the CaVman lslands Monetary Authority.

The Monetary Authority Law (2011 Revision) mandates that a reserve shall represent at

least 15% of Demand Liabilities
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Note 2O: Reserves

EPS Actual

2OL5l2OL6

Description

clsoo0

1,248 Housing Guarantee Reserve Fund

59,227 Environ me ntal Protection Fund

2,228 Infrastructure Development Fund

18,336 Sinking Fund for 2009 Bond lssue

2,021 Student Loan Reserve Fund

5,077 National Hurricane Disaster Reserve Fund

57,976 Ge ne ral Reserve

375 Curre ncy lssue Reserve

1,252 Capital Expe nd iture Reserve

200 Restricted Funds and Contigency Reserves

522,158 Asset Revaluation Rese rve

680,098 Total Reserves

EPS Actual

2OL5l2OL7

cts000

815

56,572

2,228

6,434

2,L44

s,575
1 1q qq4

375

7,809

200

534,L46

735,492

Housing Guarantee Reserve Fund

The Housing Guarantee Reserve Fund was created in 1994 to make good any default,

which may arise from the government guarantees provided under the Government

Guarantee Home Mortgage Scheme (formerly the Low lncome Housing Scheme) The

guarantee covers between 10 and 35% of the upper layer of loans, in lieu of prospective

clients' own down pavment, to help low income Caymanians to obtain mortgage

financing. The guarantee will be extinguished once this layer is paid. The annual reserve

provisions must be adjusted at the end of each year to equate to 15% of the aggregate

liability outstanding aBainst the actual guarantee.

The Environmental Protection Fund

The Environment Protection Fund was established in 1997 pursuant to section 30 of the

Public Finance and Audit Law (1997 Revision). The purpose of the Fund is to ensure that

environmental fees collected are segregated from other Government revenue.

Disbursements from the Fund will only be made for the purpose of defraying expenditure

incurred in protecting and preserving the environment of the lslands'

Inf rastructure Development Fund

The Infrastructure Development Fund was created by the Development and Planning

(Amendment) Law 1997 with a supplement of Motion (L5/971, for the purpose of

providing funds for the development of roads and other infrastructure in the lslands.

Sinking Fund for 2009 Bond lssue

The sinking Fund for 2009 Bond lssue was created to fund future payments for the

retirement of a 2009 Bond that matures in 2018
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Student Loan Reserve Fund

The Student Loan Reserve Fund was established in 1999 in accordance with Section 30 of
the Public Finance and Audit Law (23 of 1985) (1997 Revision). lts purpose is to support
the Government's guarantee of 1,OO% on student loan administered by the Cayman

lsla nds Develooment Ba nk.

National Disaster Reserve Fund
The National Disaster Fund was established in 1999 in accordance with section 30 of the
Public Finance and Audit Law (1997 Revision). lts purpose is to assist in dealing with and
recovering from the events of a national disaster.

General Reserves

General Reserves include the General Funds Reserve for Central Government, General
Reserve for the Cayman lslands Monetary Authority and the Statutory Reserve Fund.

General Funds Reserve is an accumulation of Government surpluses which are set aside
for the benefit of the lslands. Disbursements from the reserve are approved by the
Legislative Assembly. The General Reserve Fund was $97.5 million (2016: 545.9 million).

Cayman lslands Monetary Authority maintains a General Reserve in accordance with
Section 8 of the Monetary Authority Law (2017 Revision) ("MAL"), to provide additional
funding if necessary for Demand Liabilities and obligations arising from other business of
the Authority. In accordance with section 8 of the MAL, the General Reserve shall
represent at least 15% of Demand Liabilities. As at 31 December 2017, The General
Reserve was 521.5 million (2016: $20.6 million) equating Io f7.98% (2016: 19.31%) of
Demand Lia bilities.

Under Section 20 of the Cayman lslands Development Bank Law (2004 Revision), the Bank
is required to establish a Statutory Reserve Fund. The Bank transfers Z0% of its annual net
income until the balance reaches the paid-up portion of the authorized capital of the Bank
(currently 57.3 Million). There was no transfer to the Reserve Fund for the 18 months
ended December 31, 2Ol7 as the bank made a loss (201,6:2,1,?61. As of December 31,
2017, the Statutory Reserve Fund has a balance of 562,973 (2016: 567,973]|.

Currency lssue Reserve
The Currency lssue Reserve was adjusted as the stock of notes printed prior to 2003 was
all issued into circulation. The Currency lssue Reserve will then remain at 5375,000.

Capital and Operational Expenditures Reserves
Capital and Operation Expenditures Reserves include the Capital Funds for the University
College of the Cayman lslands and Capital and Operational Expenditures Reserves for the
Cayman lsla nds Monetary Authority.

Capital Funds represents the balance of funds restricted by the Board of Governors to be
used for future capital projects of the College.
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under section 9 of the Monetary Authority Law (2017 Revision), the net profits of the

Authorlty for any financial year shall include, but shall not be limited to, the income from

the investments of the Authority, and the profit from the sales of investments belonging

to the Authority, and shall be determined by the Authority after meeting or providing for

all expenditure for that year and making such provisions for contingencies and the

establishment of such additional reserves as it may consider desirable. The capital

Exoenditures Reserve has been established for the implementation and acquisition of key

capital projects. The operational Expenditure Reserve will fund the operating costs

associated wrth these key projects.

Restricted Funds and Contingency Reserve

The Cayman lslands National Museum restricts funds that are derived from gifts, grants,

and contracts received by the Museum for operating purposes but restricted by donors,

grantors, and outside agencies as to the specific purpose for which the funds may be

exoended. As these funds have traditionally not been reimbursable, and the Museum

does not consider there to be a legal or constructive obligation to do so, they form a part

of the Museum's equity position as reflected on the statement of Financial Position.

contributions that are restricted for specific purposes by the donor must be used as

intended and cannot fund other activities or general operations without the proper

consent of the original donor.

The contingency reserve was established by the Board of Control and Trustees as a

precautionary measure to meet costs of overcoming any disaster that might befall the

Museum in the future and is equal to the estimated operating costs of the Museum for a

two month period. At 31 December 2oI7, the Museum's equity includes a contingency

reserve of CtS200,000 (2016: C|5200,000). The contingency reserve is in the form of fixed

deposits included in cash and cash equivalents.

Assets Revaluation Reserves

A revaluation is conducted periodically to reflect the major changes in fair market value of

fixed assets. Revaluation increases are credited directly to an equity account, to which

any decrease of revaluation will be debited for the same classes of assets. A revaluation

was carried out during the fiscal year 2015170!6 for the ma.iority of fixed assets owned by

the cavman lslands Government and a total reduction of s257 million was debited to the

Assets Reva luation Reserves.
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Note 21: Coercive Revenue

EPSActual Description

2Or5l20L6

os000

176,328 Levies on International Trade and Transactions

421,301 Domestic Levies on Goods and Services

55,428 Levies on Prope rty

2,151 Fines

L6.u5J UIner EXeCUI| Ve KeVenUe

673,261 Total Coercive Revenue

Coercive revenue types and percentages (%) of earnings

2075/2076 (12-month period) data is shown below:

EPS Actual

2OL5l2OL6

cr$000

Description

L59,834 lmport Duties

31,592 Banks and Trust Licenses

146,863 Company Registry Fees

79,3@ Work Permits & Other lmmigration Fees

44,544 Mutual Fund Ad min istrators

52,987 Stamp Duty - Land Transfers

16,494 Cruise & Environment Tax

21,134 Tou rist Accommodation Charges

16,652 Proceeds of Liquidated Entities

103,797 Other Fees

671261 Total Coercive Revenue

EPS Actual

2OL6lmL7

cts000

266,3ffi
s7 4,9s6
96,120

3,519
11 020

,srf34

during the 18-month period with

EPS Actual

m$lmn
crsq)o

243,239

3Q,O74

182,135

r.35,145

49,213

76,340

23,O6t
?? qqq

3,550

176,518

% of Total

coercive

%

26%

3%

19%

14%

50/o

80/o

2%

4%

o%

L9%

932,84 t$v/o
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Note 22t Sales of Goods and Services

DescriplionCore Actual

m$lm$
EPSActual

2!),r'l2016

Description

Airline Revenues

Other Miscellaneous fees

Water Sales

Pon Revenues

Marine Survey Fees

Health Care Services

Passenger Charges and Taxes

Sewerage fees

Garbage Fees

Total Sales of Goods and Services

Core Actual

mr6l20fl

osm0

41,968

8,512

2,010

3,800

3,311

EPS Actual

m$l2or7

os,{roo

80,823

242,717

3,955

0$'000 o50m

25,938 63,048 Fees and Charges

5,567 154418 GeneralSales

842 2,703 Rentals

2,476 - Outputs to Other Government Agencies
f,O6S 41,221, Other Sales of Goods and Services

31828 26t 390 TotalSales ofcoods and Services 5t601 :t84,810

A summary of the entity revenues earned during the 18-month period ended 31
December 2017 along with the 2OI5l2OJ,6 (12-month period) data is provided below:

EPS Actual

m75l2016

crs000

74,096

L22,288

31,401

16,868

5,386

169

4,382

4,288

2,512

26L39o

EPSActual

2OL6l2Or7

cr$000

73,670

225,592

42,@I
26,227

7,r57
374

6,O70

1631

% of Total

Sales of coods
and Services

%

19%

59%

rt%
7%

2%

o%

2%

u/.
t%

:184,810 tw6

Government of the Cayman lslands I Consolidated Financial Statements 2016/2017



Notc 23: Inve.tment Revcnue

Investment revenue is primarily derived

sewerage system by entities outside of
deposits held at the bank and short term

royalties for the use of the Water Authority

Government and interest earned on cash

2,930 Interest on Cash aird Deposits

1"257 Royalties

l"t|8ll Other

&948 11,060

2 1,929

22 2,372

2,I43

L7
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Note 24: Donatlons

During the period ended 31 December 2017, the Government received donations totalllng

S2.4 million. The majority of these funds, approximately 51.3 million were received by

Statutory Authorities and Government Owned Companies, which normally receive

donations as part of normal operations. All obligations relating to these donations have

been satisfied and are therefore recognised as revenue.

CoreActual EPSActual Description

m$lmrc 2orsl2ot6

c1sqro 0sqr0

317 931 Donation Received

931 Total Donation Received

Core Actual EPS Actual

m$lm\7 2or6l2oL7

cts(x)o osqro

1,101 2,405

2,&51,101
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Note 25: Personnel Costs
Core Actual EPS Actual

m$l2sr6 2uslm'f
os000

lqq q?q

32,906

It,M
558

22,052

1,,r41

Ilescri ption

c1500o

333,653 Salaries, Wages and Allowances

7,625 Health Care

19,713 Pension

552 Leave

25,389 Defined Benefit Pension Liability

5,868 Post Retirement Health Care Liability

7,316 Other Personnel Costs

- Voluntary Separation Package

Core Adual
2Ot6lmfi

q$od)

304,490

5L,461

77,8M

{431)
14,250

2,630

390,204 610,639

complement was 6,250 employees

EPS Adual
m$lmD

05000

518,883

14,817

29086

(813)

74,304

8,541

263,586 400,116 Total Personnel Costs

As at 31 December 2017 Government total staff
(2016: 5,964 employees):

Core Government
Statutory Authorities & Government Companies
Total number of employees

20t7
3,778
2,472

6,250

2016
3,603

5,964

Health Care
All Central Government employees participate in the public sector run health care scheme

operated by the CINICO and administered via the Health Services Authority. Each

employee participates in the family, spouse and child or single person plan. The premium

is paid directly to CINICO on behalf of each employee by the Government. Statutory

Authorities are allowed to choose other health oroviders and rnsurers.

Pension
All pensionable employees (persons below the age of 65) participate in the Public Service

pension scheme. The scheme has three plans; the Public Service Pension Plan, the
Parliamentary Pension Plan and the Judiciary Pension Plan. The Parliamentary and Judicial

Pension Plans are based on defined benefit i.e. the Government bears the risk should the
plans fail. The Public Service Pensions Plan has both a defined benefit element as

described above and a defined contribution where the participants bear the risk should

the plan fa il.

Annual Leave Provision
Employees are allowed 7 working days compassionate leave, 10 working days

bereavement, and 18-28 working days annual leave based on years of service. Study and

other special leave are based on the discretion of the head of the department and the
exigencies of the department in question.

All staff leave are guided by the Public Service Management Law.
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Note 26: Suppliee and Consumables

Corc A.iual : . ,EBSAdual
r d:i.: .

c$ooo osino

t6,72O 4a323
41,186 91491
tt,7t4 20,760

5,785 7r,@6

t,828 4,232

2,246 1365

Delcdpdon

Supplies and Materials

Purchase of services

Utilities
General lnsurance

Travel and Subsistence

Recruitment & Training
Other
Total Supplies & consumables

Core Acuel
,0/r6lfrJ

o$00

22,782

7q019

lo,lrb
2038
3,118

2,343

5,243

EPSActusl

mrclanz

os(m

76,L26

752,r43
29,373

r2,75r
6,O37

4,747

52,ffi7
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Itotc 27: Deprcclatloa and AnortHsatlon Erpense

3Z7tr
9E

85,016

2,422
stss2
L861

4itE

Property, Plant, and Eguipment
Intangible Assets

54,391

1"423

Investment
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Note 28: Outputs from Non-Government Organizations

Non-government organisations (NGos) involved in civic activities are allowed to access

funding from the Government. These groups have to submit yearly applications for
continued funding as well as account for past disbursements.

Total purchase of outputs from NGOs during the l8-month period ending 31 December
2017 was $51.6 million (2016: $32.4 million). The largest category of these payments was
for the provision of tertiary care to overseas organisations, which totalled 530.1 million or
58% 12076: $17.3 million or 54%) of Outputs from Non-Government Orsanizations.

EPS Actual
2ors/2016

30

3,100

30

22

231

Description

Organize, Administer and Execute the cayman tstands Fishina Tournament
LeAalAid Services
Organization of Batabano F e st,va I

HIV/AlD5 and First Aid Public Education Programmes
ManaAement of Small Business Devetopment

EPs Actual
2Ot6l2Ot7

30

3,746

33

345

2La
4a

445

L25

54

2,217

4,O7J

9

\20
6a

30,o93

5

114

290

979

31

L52

2,100
L76

334

226

3,649

196

482

37

855

43

4L

97

2L

126 Employee Assistance programme

16 Spaying and NeuterinA of Dogs and Cats
90 TeachinA of Tertia.y Education Courses
50 Miss cayman Comm irtee
54 Supervision of Pre School Children

1,53O Primary and Secondary Education by private Schoots
3,430 Services for lrresular MiBrants

9 Mentoring Cayman Proeramme
51 Palliative Care Nursine
45 Social MarketinA for Prevention of HtV/AtDs

17,352 Tertiary Care at Various Overseas Insritutions
3 cardenins Projects and Landscaping

79 Elite Athleres Proaramme
39 Youth Developme nt Programmes

579 Sports Programmes
- community Development, Prevention and Beautification programmes
124 scrrool tunch rnd Unrtorm Programmes

1,aoo care of the Indigent, Etderty and Disabted persons
117 General Proerammes and Children Services
225 Foster Care for Children
124 CommunityProsrammes

1,453 Rental Accommodation for Persons in Need
99 Burial Assistance for Indigents

3OO Support for Battered women and Chitdren
11 Therapeutic Services for Young persons

77O Preservataon of Natural Environments and ptaces of Historic Significance
26 Autism Diagnostics and Sexuatfrauma Recovery programme
23 K9 Security Services
79 Other Sports Programmes
21 Other Health and CL!lturat programmes

32,534 Total Outputs from Non-government OrAanizations 51,54S
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Note 29: Transfer Payments

Transfer payments are the transfer of money from Government to an individual,

organization or another government for which the Government does not:

(a) Receive any goods or services directly in return as would occur in a purchase/sales

tra nsactron;

(b) Expect to be repaid in the future, as would be expected in a loan; or

(c) Expect a financial return, as would be expected in an investment.

During the 18-month period ending 31 December 2OI7,Ihe Government of the Cayman

lslands made transfer pavments of 548.5 million (2016: 530.2 million). lncluded in the

amount was S17.8 million (2016: 10.7 million) in local and overseas education

scholarships, S11.5 million (2016: $7.3 million) in Poor Relief,99.6 million (2016: 56.2

million) in benefit payments to seamen and ex-servacemen.

2Ot5l2ot6

626
I7

I\4
lo,'163
s,799
1,500

99

5,222

999

a2

19

1ao

1ao
607

358

70

172

s55

L4D

93

437

60

520

150

25

393
26

419

Description

Tourism Scholarships
Miss Cayman ScholarshiPs
Pre-School Educational assistance

Local and Overseas ScholarshiPs ancl Bursaries

Poor Relief Pavments
Poor Relief vouchers
Temporary Poor Relief for Youns Parents Proeramme (YPP) Students
Youth After Care PaYments
Emergency Relief Payments
Er-Gratia aenefit Payments to Seame n

Benefit Payments to Ex-Servicemen
Youth Programmes and Other Non Governmental Organisations
Pre-School assistance
Other Educational and Training Assistance
Promotion of Nation
Employment Initiatives
children and Familv services Support
Support for Seruices at the Red cross
Housing Assistance
student En.ichment and Supporl services
Support to Local Business Associations
sister lstands Home Repairs Assistancc
sports and cultural Tourism Pro8rammes Assistance

support for the Bridge Foundation
Other Youth and Sports P.oerammes
Other Health & Cultural Programme Assrstance
assistance in respect to lmponation of Livestock

Needs Assessment support
Assistance for Infrastru.ture Developme nt
Oisaster Relief Assistance
Ex-Gratia Payments Compensation _ Linford Pierson expansion

1,144
75

1,OOa

17,420
a,s62
2,944

24

39

130

4,262
4,30,

6a

90
202

905

57a
105

500

470
164

270

499

165

627

aL2

919
t4

510
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Note 3O: Other Executive Expenses

Other Executive Expenses are any government expenditures that do not relate to Outputs,

Transfer Payments or Financing Expenses. These expenses do not relate to the activity of a

particular Ministry, Portfolio or Office but instead relate to the activities of Ministers,

Official Members, Members of the Legislative Assembly, and the Judiciary.

Also included in executive expenses is the allowance for doubtful debts which have not

been budgeted in the financial year.

EPS Actual

2srsl2oL6
EP5

Description
ct5000

40 Universal Postal Union

120 Conference Contributions
14,257 Doubtful Debt Expenses

5,039 Settlement of Case - Entity

2 Postal Supplies-Exec Org

45 Executive bank Charges

499 Debt Write off-Executive Transactions

1,305 JudiciaryExpenses

671 Constituency ALlowance

46 Contribution to Caribbean tinancial Action Task Force

153 Caribbean Economic Community (CARICOM) Fees

- CaribbeanRegionalTechnicalAssistanceCentre(CARTAC)Contribution
11 Subscription to Caribbean Examinatlons Council

161 University of the West Indies

3 Caribbean Food & Nutrition lnstitutaon

6 Pan American Health Organisation Subscription

5 Caribbean Health Research Council

13 CAREC

454 Caribbean Catastrophe Risk Insurance Facility - Annual Premium

468 Court of Appeal Expenses

United Nations Caribbean Environmental Protramme
125 Commonwealth Parliamentary Association

5 World Anti-Doping Agency
3 Regional Anti-DopingOrganilation

268 Compensation

59 GGHAM Demand Payment

- Caribbean Agriculture Research and Development Institute (CARDI)

Organisation for Economic Co-peration Development (OECD) Global Forum

208 New Court House

- Caribbean Public Health Agency (CARPHA)

350 Settlement of Claims - Executive
- Project Future

5ecuritv Initiatives (0E

Totalother

53

205

12,474

831

77

164

L,894

1,198

89

232

3J1

243

6

1,2s6

81L

T2

L87

3

515

141

I
85

18

5,000

150

546

Governm€nt of the cayman tslands I consolidated Financial statemen ts 2oL6/2or7 il



Ifote 31: Flnaaclng Costs

During the l8-month period ending 31 December 2077, the Government

financing charges of S43.5 million (2016: in relation to its public debt.

:10,209 Interest on borrowings

798 Other borrowing costs

- lnterest on overdraft

Costs attdbuted to

crs000

27,6(B Central Govemment
Authorities &

42,370

1,1€

27

crs000

39,064
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GOVERNMENTOF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

RECONCITIATION OF SURPTUS TO OPERATING CASH FIOW
A5 AT31 DECEMBER 2017

Surplus/(deficit) f rom ordinary activitiet

Non-cash movements

Depreciation expense

Losses on non-financial instruments

Losses on revaluation of assets

lmpairment of assets

Gain on fOreign exchanee transactiOnS

Increase in provision for bad debt

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(l ncrease)/decrease in receivables

Decrease/(i ncrease) i n i nventori es

Decrease/{increase)in other a s sets

Decrease/(increase) in biological assets

I ncrea5e/(decrease) i n payables and other I i abi lities

Increase/(decrease) in provisions relating to employee costs

Net cash flows from ooeratins activitieg

Actual

201612Ot7

cr9000

140,458

88,098

1,083

40

(3,498)

4,640

17,@4)

3,224

ro7

36,549

579

781

Note 32: Reconciliatlon of Surplus to Net Operating Cash Flow
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Note Explanation of Major Variances to Budget

Statement of Financial Performance
Budget variances were overall impacted by the improved economy as revenues from

import duties financial services fees increased, while additional costs to purchases

services from Non-Government Organisations, and depreciation and amortisation

increased.

Revenue

Actual EPS total revenue of 51.36 billion out-performed the original budget by S122.3

million or 10% as collection of coercive revenue exceeded expectations by 12%.

Coercive Revenue of 5952.8 million (which generated 7O% of toral Revenue earned), was

5100.8 million (1.2%) higher than the budgeu due mainly to: (variance shown in brackets)

c Buildinq Permit Fees (55.2 million)- due to residential projects commencing earlier
than expected, coupled with amendments to the Development and Planning
Regulations;

o lmport duties (521.1 million) - due to an increased volume of imported gasoline and

diesel and motor vehicles compared to projections; as well as an increased number
of suppliers of alcoholic beverages;

o Lond Holdina Componies Share Tronsfer Tax Charoes (517.9 million) - this was
mainly due to do the shares transfer involved in the sale of a major hotel;

. Motor Vehicle Dutv (577.4 million) - due to an increased volume of imported motor
vehicles compared to p rojections;

. stomp Dutv - Land Transfer (521.3 million) - the transfer of some major properties
resulted in the supernormal income; and

o Tourist Accommodotion Chorqes (58.8 million) - partially due to the increased
number of rooms with the opening of two new hotels in 2016 and 2017.

Sale of Goods and Services earned $384.8 million, which was S17.5 million or 5% above

Ine ouoget oT >Jb/.J ml[on.

Investment Revenue earned 515.6 million which was 59 million more than the budget of

55.5 million. Cash balances are significantly higher than anticipated and have afforded

higher values being placed on deposits, coupled with increases in the US prime rates, have

driven higher yields on investments (mostly held in the form of fixed deposits).

Donations of 52.4 million were 51.4 million higher than the budget. This was mainly due

to the donation of a ballistic identification system to the Police Department by the Foreign
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& Commonwealth Office; and the donation of USD 5369,000 given by

for the Bonaventure Boys' Home Expansion Project.

Expenses

EPS Actual total expenses of $1.22 billion exceeded the budget by 526,5 million or 2o/o.

Personnel Costs of 5610.6 million were $1.6 million more than the budget of 5509 million

mostly due to the recognition of Post-Retirement Health Care Liabilities by Statutory
Authorities and Government Companies (SAGCs) of $26.8 million. This was offset bv the
savings in all other areas of personnel cost of 525.1 million, mainly attributed to delayed

recruitment.

Supplies and Consumables and Operating Leases were $346.4 miliion and marginally

aDove ouogel or >)J45.6 m tton.

Depreciation & Amortisations of S88.1 million were 516.4 million more than budget as a

result of the revaluation of property plant and equipment at the end of prior year.

Outputs from Non-Government Output Suppliers of 551.6 million were 517.2 million more

than the budget of 534.4 million, mainly related to additional cost incurred for Tertiary

Care at Various Overseas Institutions and for the provision of Services for lrregular

Migrants.

Other executive expenses of 526.6 million were S7.2 million less than budget due mainly

to protracted spending in other operationalcosts of SAGCs during the period.

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2017 net assets of S1.1 billion were 5144.5 million less than the
expected net assets of S1.2 billion.

Assets

Total EPS assets as at 31 December 2Ol7 were 52.7 billion, 1,1% higher than the
anticipated balance of 52.4 million; and was mainly attributable to investments as

marketable securities along with an increase in property, plant and equipment.

Cash and cash equivalents were $207 million less than the budgeted cash balance of

S427.3 million. This is due to there being significantly higher cash balances than

anticipated which allowed for higher values being placed on longer-term fixed deposits.

These longer-term deposits are not included in the definition "Cash and Cash

Equivalents", which only represent deposits that are less than 90 days to maturity.

Rotary Club to
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Investments were 5452.8 million more than the budgeted balance of 5101.8 million

owing to higher values being placed on longer-term fixed deposits driven by increases in

the US prime rates, resulting in higher yields on investments.

Property, plant and Equipment of 51.75 billion were 521 million more than the budgeted

balance of 51.73 billion. This is owing to additional capital expenditure for projects such

as the Waste Management Project, expansion of the Linford Pierson Highway and the

John Grey High School Gymnasium.

Lidbilities

Total EPS liabilities as at 31 December 2017 of 5L.6 billion were 35% higher than the

anticipated balance of S1.2 million; which was mainly due to an increase in the post-

retirement health care liabilitv recorded in the SAGCS.

Retirement benefits liability were 5255 million more than budgeted 5454.8 million due to

the recognition of the 2017 pension actuarial valuation and the recognition of the

increased post-retirement health care liability of the SAGCs.

Debt Balance which stood at 5518.6 million as at 31 were 54.5 million less than budgeted

due to higher repayment of debt balances than forecasted by some SAGCs such as Health

Services Authority and Cayman lslands Development Bank.

currency issued were 522 million more than the budget of 597.5 million due to there

being increased amounts of notes and coins in circulation.

Unearned revenue of 586.9 million was 548.4 million more than budget mainly due to the

increase in General registry deposits, up $22.6 million due mostly to entities paying in

advance of the Januarv 2018 dead line.
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One Year On€ to Five

or less Years

cr5000 cl9ooo

4,s00 2la
489

20

5,009 270

Type

CapitalCommitm€nts
Capital Conmitmenrs

;G c"pit"l C"-lnit^""tt

Over fiv€
Years 31 December 2017 30June 2016

crs000 cts000 c6000

12,000

12.000

1,6,770

489

2A

6s,403

Opefating Commitmentt
N on-Cdnce oble Accommod dtion Led ses

Accommodat on leases

Accommodation lea 9 e5

Ot het N on -Cd ncelto b I e Leo 5es

L cens ng ASreement

Other OperatinB Lease

O t het O p ercting Commit men a s

Other OperatinB Comrnitnrenrs

121,584

174

t2,37 5

169,694

224

5,11.0

187,000

49,460

170,770

424

415

118,3 82

84,t76

426,966

770

142,011

339,864

1,048

5,794

16,880

446

83

t,614
159

341

,-.- -p-,.rii; !vi,ii'r'!'r'c"r: 5ur,/>/ 4ul,3b9 t98,Ez3 915,449 19,529

fotal comhitments 314,7G8 408,139 210,8?3 g33,72a BB,g32

Capital Commitments
The largest capital commitment is held by the National Housing and Development Trust
(N H DT).

Operating Commitments
operating commitments relate to leases held by several sAGCs. The vast majority of the
non-cancellable accommodation leases are held by the National Museum and the
National Drug council. water Authority holds virtually all of the land leases, likewise, the
civil Aviation Authority. other operating commitments are mainly held by the Ministrv of
Education, Youth, Sports and Lands.
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Note Contingent Liabilities

Environmental Remediation
An environmental remediation liability results from the normal operation of a long-lived

asset and is associated with the retirement of that asset. The Government currently

operates waste landfill sites in all three of the Cayman lslands. The capping of these

landfills is currently out for bidding.

Legal Proceedings and Disputes

In relation to legal matters, estimates are developed by the office of the Attorney General

who is charged under the Constitution with the handling of the defence in these matters,

using the current facts and known circumstances. The factors considered in developing

the legal provisions include the merits and jurisdiction of the litigation, the nature and

number of other similar current and past litigation cases, the nature of the subject matter

of the litigation, the likelihood of settlement and current state of settlement discussions,

if a ny.

The Government is routinely engaged in litigation arising in the ordinary course of its

business. lt does not believe that any such litigation will individually or in aggregate, have

a material adverse financial effect on the Government. lt is Government's policy to

rigorously assert its position in such cases. Should the Government be unsuccessful in

these matters, it does not expect the outcome to materially affect the results of

oDeratio ns or fina ncia I oosition.

At the 31 December 2017 the Government has estimated contingent liabilities of

million with respect to Civil/Quasi Civil Matters. In addition to the above there were

proceedings involving a number of Statutory Authorities and Government companies as

detailed below.

Cdymon lslands Ndtional lnsurance Compony

On July 19, 2013 Simplifi Health Benefit Management, LLc ("simplifi") filed a lawsuit

against the Company in the state of Ohio. ln the lawsuit, Simplifi alleges that the

Company did not provide appropriate notice as per the terms of the contract, for the

termination of the TPA services provided by Simplifi ("Plaintiff"). The Administrative

Services Agreement ("ASA") between the Company and Simplifi provided for an automatic

one Vear renewal of the contract unless either party gave written notice of non-renewal

at least 120 davs prlor to the termination date. The ASA further stated that any notices

shall be delivered in person, by certified mail, by commercial overnight courier, or by

facsimile. The Company provided timely e-mailed notification of non-renewal within the

required notice period specified in the contract. The Plaintiff is seeking damages for the
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period July 1,2013 to June 30, 2014 in the amount of S1,084,941 plus attorney's fees,

which it claims are the lost profits and "reliance damages" for that period. Counsel to the

Company has informed Simplifi ESO in writing that the notice of termination was effective

under the laws of the State of Ohio, which governed the agreement with Simplifi. On

August 2, 2016, the Court issued an Opinion and Order denying CINICO's motion for

summary judgment holding that there was a factual question requiring a trial on whether

Simplifi had actual knowledge of CINICO's intention not to renew the ASA. The Court also

directed the parties to engage in good faith negotiations to settle the dispute. A provision

has been recorded for the expected cost of settlement as at June 30,201,5. Subsequent to
the year end, the Company settled the lawsuit for S252,000 to avoid future increase in

legal costs which would have been eminent has the case gone to trial.

Civil Aviation Authority

The Authority signed a Ground Lease on 17 May 201.5 with the Cayman lslands Airports

Authority (CIAA) as the lessor for use of land to build office accommodation for the CAACI

(lessee). The ground lease specifies a single payment of C15400,000 to be paid to the CIAA

within 30 days of the CAACI acquiring planning permission for the Designated Use of the

land. Planning permission for the office development was granted in November 2oU and

the Authorlty received notice of the filing in January 2018 when the full amount of the

ground lease was paid to the CIAA.

Hedlth Services Authority

Conting e nt Legal Cla ims

The Health Authority believes that the outflow of funds for the malpractice and employee

related legal claims amounting to 56,385,000 and nil (2016 56,417,000 and nil),

respectively are less than probable to be successful and are covered by insurance in

excess of deductible; accordingly, no provisions were recognized for possible losses.

There are a number of claims outstanding that relate to services provided prior to the

establishment of the Health Authority or prior to 1 July 2002. Neither provision nor

contingent liability has been made for these claims in the financial statements, as the

Health Authority believes any costs encountered [that are not covered by insurance] will

be met by the Ministry of Health, Environment, Culture & Housing (the "Ministry").
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Port Authority ol the Coymon lslonds

Vessel Claim

On 13 July 2012, a claim was made due to perceived negligence by the Port Authority

which resulted in the total loss of a third party's vessel while in Cayman lslands Waters.

The amount of the claim is 5280,178. Management is reviewing the claim with its legal

representatives with the aim of vigorously defending its position. At the end of the

financial year no further action has been brought about by the plaintiff. The legal

representatives do not believe there is a high probability that this action, if brought

against the Port Authority, will be successful.

Morino Cloim

On 4 September 2012, a statement of claim was served upon the Port Authority, as the

second defendant, with regard to certain declaratory rights to a Marina under

development on the Port Authority's Land. The Action is on-going. The Authority has

involved its lawyers who are vigorously defending its position. No provision has been

made in the accounts for this and there was no indication as to the amount being

pursued. However, the Port Authority's legal representatives advised that the probability

of this action being successful is unlikely.

Vehicle Accident Cloim

On 19 March 2009, legal proceedings were commenced against the Port Authority

regarding injury sustained by a third party after an accident involving the Port Authority's

vehicle. Our attorneys advised that they received a claim from the Plaintiff for medical

costs and damages totallinc 5846,873. This claim is being reviewed by the Port Authority's

insurer, who is expected to settle the claims. The Port Authority has an annual coverage

for third party risks of S1M therefore management does not expect the Port Authority to
be impacted financially by the eventual settlement of this claim.

As at the date of these accounts, there was no further development on the

aforementioned legal matters and management expects no loss arising from any potential

act|on.

Cdyma n N ationol Cu ltu ro I Founddtion

The Foundation was named as a defendant, among others, in a personal injury claim

relating to an incident that occurred at an event organized by the Foundation in 2001.

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the judgment was awarded in the plaintiff's favour

for 55,945,889 with an additional sum and liability for legal costs still to be determined. A
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portion of these costs are recoverable under an insurance policy to the benefit of the

Foundation.

National Housing Development Trust

There was a legal action against the Trust by the security centre Limited in the amount

512,000 for breach of contract for work performed in AuBust, 2005. The case is currently

inactive.

Guarantees

Stotutory Authorities and Government Componies

In accordance with section 50 of the Financial Regulations, Government is expected to

calculate the portion of the guaranteed debt of statutory Authorities and Government

Companies. This represents at minimum, the Government's immediate level of exposure

and as such is disclosed as a contingent liability.

Guarantees of the Government include:

Guarantees of the borrowings of Statutory Authorities and Government

Companies;

Guarantees, either collective or speciflc, of the loans of certain individuals and

companies obtained from the private sector; and

Under the PMFL, entities that;

(a) Require an unpredictable level of budgetary support from the Governor in cabinet are

given an 80% weighting;

(b) Are financially stable and require predictable levels of support are given a 50%

weighting; and

(c) Have not required budgetary support during the last three (3) years are given 20%

weighting.
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Oescription

cayman lslands Turtle Farm (1983) Limited

Cayma n Airways Limited

water Authority of the Cayman lslands

cayma n lslands Development Bank

Port Authority of the Cayman lslands

National Housi ng Development Trust

Gua.ant€€d
lo€n Balanc€ as

Balance as at 
at 3l December

3l Oecember 
2Ol7

cts'000 crs'000

5,430 8,038

75,994 79,992

356 7,142

11,060 13,82s

WeiShtlrU

Applied

ao%

ao%

20%

50%

20%

80%

45,804 67,554

Government Guaranteed Home Assistance Mortpage (GGHAMI Program

The Government Guaranteed Home Assisted Mortgage program (GGHAM) that is

administered by the National Housing Development Trust was introduced on November

9th, 2007 and to date has helped 323 households achieve home ownership.

The initial s-year GGHAM agreement provided approval for 55 million to each of the six

participating banks. Due to the high demand for this program, some participating banks

reached the maximum lending amounts, which required additional funding. Central

Government approved additional funding for this program, through a supplementary

agreement to the participating banks.

The current GGHAM approved amount is 565 million; however this agreement expired on

November 2012. f o date, the GGHAM drawn balance is approximately 538.2 million for
which on face value indicates that Central Government is committed to a contingent

liability of 35% which equates to 513.4 million. A Housing Guarantee Reserve is

established at 75% of the exposure outstanding, which is adjusted at the end of each

financial year. As at 31 December 2017 the reserve balance was adjusted to 5547,72L
(2016: 51,248,000).

As at 31 December 2077 four local banks have called in the guarantees of three GGHAM

loans totalling 559,500. The claims are at various stages of the claims process ranging

from discussions with the banks to awaiting approval for payment. These amounts

include interest and other related costs and have been included as an amount payable as

at 31 December 2017. Based on the delinquency as at 31 December 2017 a provision of

5895,444 (2016: 51,248,000) has been made for potential claims.
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Other Continsent Liabilities

Pursuant to the agreements between Cayman Airways Limited ("CAL" or the "Company")

and RBC Royal Bank of Canada and CIBC First Caribbean International Bank (the "Banks"),

the Company must comply with certain covenants, namely ensuring that all scheduled

repayments are current and the provision of audited financial statements and other

financial data of both the Company and the Government (as guarantor). In the event of
default, the local banks may, by written notice to the Company, declare all borrowings

under the agreements to be immediately due and payable. During the years ending 30

June 2015, the Company had failed to comply with a financial reporting covenant related

to the provision of the Company's annual audited financial statements to the lenders,

within 180 days of the financial year end. At 30 June 2016 the local banks provided

waivers of such covenants to the Company.

Letters of Credit

RBC Royal Bank of Canada has issued a number of letters of credit on behalf of the

Cayman Airways Ltd. These are used as collateral for United States Customs bonds and

credit account support.
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Note 36: Financial Risk Management

Credit Risk

Core Government

Credit and counterparty risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument willcause a

financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation or commitment.

Financial instruments potentially expose the government to credit risk. Concentrations of
credit risk relate to groups of customers or counter- parties that have similar economic or

industry characteristics that cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be

similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions.

Core Government entities are only allowed to conduct business with reputable financial

institutions as part of the centralized banking system.

The Core Government primary banker continues to be RBC Royal Bank (Cayman) Limited

which is considered to be stable and one of the top tier banking institutions.

The Government generally operates a no credit policy however, where credit is allowed

such customers have to be pre-approved and are required to place assessed deposits with
the Government from which such credit is being requested. Sales to retail customers are

settled in cash or credit cards.

For trade customers, the Government performs adequate due diligence (including, but

not limited to, independent credit ratings, assessment of credit quality, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and other factors) on the stability of the
customer and their repayment capabilities prior to extending credit.

Cayman Islonds Development Bonk

Credit risk is the rask that the Bank will incur a loss because its customers fail to dlscharge

their contractua I obligations.

The Bank manages credit risks on loans advanced to individuals and companies, which

satisfies the Bank's lending requirements, by requiring borrowers to provide adequate

security, limiting the total value of loans to a single borrower to LO% of its total capital

and spreading its risk over several developmental sectors.

Health Services Authority

The Health Services Authority is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of non-

performance by counter parties to these financial instruments. Most importantly, the
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Authority has escalated the credit risk concentration to the Ministry of Health for policy

changes to reduce bad debts.

Accounts receivable consist of a large number of customers that either have health

insurance policies with CINICO or with various commercial insurance or no

coverage at all. Concentration of credit risk belongs to the group of customers

"self-pay". These amounts are owed by customers who have neither insurance

nor sufficient coverage which are estimated to be 65% - 100% uncollectible

tnsu rance

Known a5

coverage

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements as accounts

receivable from "self-pay" group of customers, which is net of allowance for bad debts,

represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.

lJtility Regulotion qnd Competition Office

The Utility Regulation and competition office is exposed to credit risk primarily from its

receivables from licensees, and from its various deposits in its bank. The office does not

have the flexibility in refuslng to transact with licensees in accordance with the laws.

whilst the office does not believe that it has any significant credit risk exposure to any

single licensee, it is inherently exposed in its entirety to the telecom mu nications industry

in the Cavman lslands. The Office's licensees include well-established teleco m mu nication

and media companies and, at 31 December 2O17,l6ere have been no jndications of any

insolvency in those entities that impacts their ability to pay the Authority. The office also

continues to monitor the financial soundness of its banking institution, and currently

believes that there are no issues impacting the bank's ability to repay amounts in

accordance with the respective terms of various deposits

Iiquiditv Risk

prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability

of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities coupled with the

ability to predict and manage the expected cash outflows in order to sustain the

operations of the government.

Government currently monitors rolling cash forecasts, other current assets and the

liabilities of government departments on the basis of expected cash requirements and

matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

lnsurance Risk

The rlsk under insurance contracts is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the

uncertaintv of the amount of the resulting claim. The very nature of an insurance

contract involves randomness and therefore unpredictability. The principal risk that the
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Cayman lslands National Insurance Company (ClNlCO or the Company) faces is that the

actual claim payments exceed the amount of insurance provisions. This could occur for
various reasons; for example, the severity and/or frequency of claims may be higher than

anticipated, or unit claim costs could be higher than estimated. Any significant delays in

the reporting of claims information from service providers will also lead to increased

uncertainty. Claim losses are random and the actual number and amount of claims will
vary from year to year, from the level established using statistical and actuarial

techniques.

CINICO uses several techniques to mitigate risk surrounding potential high claim losses.

For its largest group (Group 30100 - Civil, Servants, Pensioners and Government Entities),

reinsurance has been purchased that covers overseas claim losses which exceed

USS700,000, up to USS5,000,000 in respect of any one covered person during the policy

year, with an aggregate cap of USS10,500,000 per year. The Company's Standard Health

Insurance Contracts ("SHlC" plans) use a combination of pre-existing condition exclusions,

and annual limits to mitigate risk. The Company uses CMN (up to December 3L,201-41

and United Healthcare for the provision of overseas network access. These entities have

pre-negotiated contracts with many overseas providers which would allow the Company

to realise significant savings. During the current fiscai year on a monthly basis, the Risk

and Appeals Committee met to discuss large claims and any disputed claims.

The Company uses reinsurance to manage insurance risk. However, this does not
discharge the Company's liability as primary insurer. lf a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for
any reason, the Company remains liable for the payment of the claim. As part of the
reinsurance renewal, the Company reviews the cred itworth iness of the reinsurer prior to
finalisation of any contract, and has chosen a reinsurer with an AM Best rating of A
(Excellent).

Interest Rate Risk

Core Government

The carrying amount of call accounts, fixed deposit accounts, interest receivable and

other liabilities approximated their fair value due to the short-term maturities of these

assets and Iiabilities. The fair values of assets and liabilities are not materiallv different
from the carrying amounts. Readily available markets, enables the determination of fair
values.

Cayman Islands Development Bdnk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest will affect future cash

flows or the fair values of financial instruments. Cayman lslands Development Bank (CIDB
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or the Bank) provides loans and technical assistance in the areas of human resource

development, housing and small business, in particular in the agricultural, tourism, and

industrial sectors. The Bank minimises interest rate risk principally by on-lending at

variable rates of interest from funding provided by long-term debts with variable interest

rare 5.

The Bank manages the interest rate risk by securing funds from international financial

institutions which review their lending rates to CIDB on a semi-annual basis.

Caymon Airwoys Ltd

The CompanV has an overdraft facility and long term debt which are priced at a floating

rate of interest, which is reset monthly as market rate changes. The Company is exposed

to cash flow interest rate risk should market rates change. Management does not

consider the Company is exposed to lnterest rate risk on cash at bank, since this cash is

held on ca ll.

Health Services Authority

The Health servlces Authority is exposed to interest rate risk for the S4million credit

facility with First Carlbbean International Bank (cayman) Ltd ("FClB") at a prime rate plus

O.25Yo per annum. This interest rate will fluctuate from time to time in line with the

general level of interest rates. The risk is managed by the Health Authority by maintaining

a short-term credit agreement that is renewable every year to have a negotiable and

preferred rate. In addition, the Health services Authority is limiting the usage of the credit

facilitv bv continuously monitoring the daily cash position which management views as

likely to result into a bank preferred lnterest rate on the renewal of the agreement. The

Health Authority has a minimal exposure on interest risk as none of the other financial

instruments is exposed to this type of risk.

Civil Aviation Authority

The Authoritv has cash amounts held at Cayman National Bank (over C|5500,000) that are

placed on semi-annual and annual fixed deposits and generally earn an interest rate of

between 0.53% and 1.OO% (2OL6:0.35% and 0.45%l per annum in the year endlng 31

December 2017. There are two accounts held at Natwest Bank in the uK, an operating

account and a credit card account for the surveyors operating in the united Kingdom and

Europe. lt is required that a deposit be held on the credit card account to cover the

exoosure of the total credit card limits of each card held. At the statement of financial

position date, t16,000 (2016: t16,000) was held as a deposit. This deposit earns between

0.5%and 1% lnterest per annu m.
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Port Authority

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. The Port Authorlty holds long-term debts and cash and

cash equivalents that are interest bearing and as a result the Port Authority is subject to
risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates in relation to these
financial instruments.

Commoditv Price Risk

The Government's fuel requirements expose it to the market volatility of fuel prices for jet
fuel, gas and diesel. Cayman Airways Limited (CAL) is subject to jet fuel price risk resulting
from its aviation activities as the national air carrier of the Cayman lslands. The volatility
of jet fuel prices has been significant in recent years and can have a significant effect on
the profitability of CAL'S operations. Similarly the Department of Vehicle and Equipment
Services is charged with purchasing and supplying all government vehicles (land and
marine craft) with fuel.

The Government does not engage in any hedging activities with respect to mitigating the
risk of fluctuations in fuel prices and instead, purchases fuel at the daily spot rate as the
demand exists, consequently, there is significant exposure to fluctuations in the price of
fuel.

Currency Risk

As substantially all transactions are denominated in Cayman lslands dollars, the
Government is not significantly exposed to currency risk due to the Cayman lslands dollar
being fixed to the United States dollar. The nature of the Government's exposure to
currency risk has not changed significantly from the prior year.
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Note Fair Value Estimation

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable (net of provisions),

work in progress, accounts payable and employee entitlements approximate their fair

values due to their relative short-term maturities. Fair values estimates are made at a

specific point in time, based on market conditions and the information about the financial

instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and

matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision.

Changes in assumptions, economic conditions and other factors could cause significant

changes in fair value estimates.

Borrowings

Financial instruments are measured initially at cost which is the fair value of the

consideration given or received. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at

a mortized cost.

Majority of long term debt are at a fixed rate of interest, however, the fair value of long-

term debt which is at a floating rate of interest approximates the carrying value as in the

opinion of management the current rate approximates the interest rate which the

Company expects similar financing for similar term to be raised at, at the balance sheet

dates, and additionally, the rate is reset in response to market changes'

Included in Current and long term debt balances are certain non-interest bearing loans.

The carrying amount of these loans represents the principal balance owing The

anticipated future principal repayments have not been discounted. All other loans are

floating rate and bear interest at the market rate. The carrying value of these loans

approximates the fair market value.

Turtle Farm long-term liabilities are carried at their contracted settlement value.

Additionally, the cost of all monetary assets and liabilities has been appropriately adjusted

to reflect estimated losses on realization or discounts on settlement.

Fair value hierarchy
The Government uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value

of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: tnputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for

the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as price) or indirectly (i e, derived from

o rices)

Leve I Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair

value that are not based on observable market data
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Note 38: Related Parties

The Government comprise of 15 Ministries, Portfolios, Offices and 26 Statutory

Authorities and Government Agencies. While Inter-agency charges between central
governments agencies have been suspended generally these entities and their key

management personnel, transact business amongst them and with the Government

reporting entity on a regular basis. Transactions between Ministries, Portfolios, Offices

and Statutory Authorities and Government Agencies include health care, purchasing

airline tickets, audit services, water, sewage and registration of vehicles. The Public

Management and Finance Law (2017 Revision), as amended, requires that each Ministry,

Portfolio, Office and Statutory Authority and Government Company report their financial

activities separately and submit them for auditing both at the entity and executive level

including the disclosure of all transactions with the Central covernment and other related
parties as appropriate in these individual financial statements

With the exception of key senior management personnel no other parties control the

Government, are controlled by the Government without forming part of these

consolidated statements, or are under common control of another entitv with the

Government. Key management personnel include Cabinet Ministers, Chief Executive

Officers, Chief Officers, Chief Financial Officers, and deputies for the purposes of these

financial statements are considered related oarties.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel
Total remuneration includes regular salary, pension contribution, health insurance

contribution, allowances, bonuses and termination benefits. Total remuneration paid to
key management personnel were as follows:

Prior Year
(Gross)

crs000

Description Current Year
(Grossl

crs000
31.062 Salaries & other short term emDlovee benefits 4 6.5 51

134 Other long term benefits
37,196 Total Remuneration 46,7 66

299

Loons to Personnel

Prior Year
(Gross)

c15000

Description Current Yeal
(Grossl

crs000

93 Loans to Kev Management Personnel 80
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Loans given to key management personnel includes mortgage, debt consolidation
average interest rate of 4.75%.

Boord Members Remunerotion

Prior Year
(Gross)

crso00

Descriptlon Current Year

lGross)
ct3000

s02 Remuneration for services 707
s02 Total Remuneration 701
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Note

GOVERN]VIENT OF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS
STATEIVI ENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

statutory
Authorlrles &

Central Gov€rnment
Government Companle5

o5ooo o5ooo

governfrent EPS Actual
trade 2oa6/2oa7
crsooo crsooo

and Cash Equivarents 2
3

5

a
9

61,241

4,223
3,L49

592

2,375

150,469

12,231

12,O9O
1,296

120,639
5,173

25,930
4,663
a,o23

,,ort

222,1rO
30,6L7

200

1,aaa
s19,435

Other Receivattles

533
otal current assets

Trade Rec€ivables 3

6
10
11
12

3, O18

219,457

a,6445J3-

2,147,488

426,271

61.739

31,116

24,355
1,752,736

5,672

3S,156

2,472

333,O39
2,654

t*a

Property, Plant and €quipment

Investmeht Propertv

Net \ /orth - Public Entities 219,451
Non Current Asets

otal Non-Cu.rent A55et5 7aa

772,867

15,435
24,461

1,429
11,634

12,42O

264.9O7

29,624

351

2,655,444

121,5Oa
1,429

4,951
26,269
43,901

13

2
Payables & Accruals

Unearned Revenue
mployee Entitlements

Rctirement Benefits
Borrowines/Public Debts
Rcpayment of surplus

680
12.696 999

962otal current Liabilities
"s4

222

2t2

Payabres & accr0ar\

16

19
449,965

273,229
55,OO1

643,

210
11 119

otal Non-currenr Liabllltles

Net Assets/Equity

Revaluation Reserve
C0rrent Perro.l Surplus
Accumlated surplus/(Def icit)

1,099,49(, 553,O16

219,451

30,501
43.29a

45,O56

219,451

,,ot)
20

20r,7
s34,L

214.434
otal Net a5sets/EquitY 2r9.851 594
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Segment Reporting (continuedl

Sales of Goods& Servicet

lnvestment Rev€nue

5upplies and Consumable5

Depreciation/Amortasation

Outputs from Statutory Authorities and Government

Outputs from Non-government Organisations

titigation Cost.

Other Executive ErPenses

(xher (Gainr)/Loss€s

(Gains)/tosses on Derecognition of Aesets/Liabilft ies

lmpairment of Inventorv

(Gains)/Losses on Financial Instruments

(Gains)/tosses on Non-fi nancial Instrulnents

(Surplus)/D€ficit on 5t atutorY Authorities & Government

TotalOther (6ains)/losses

GOVERNMENT OF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR ITIE IE.MONTH PERIOO EN DED 31 O€CCMBER 2Ot7

staiutorY
Authoriti€s & Intet-

Central Gov€rnment governm€nt

Government compani€s Trad€

ct$ooo clsooo aliooo

2L

22

23

24

952,957

59,601

9,242

1,101

413,595

a28,2t7

6,434

7,304

rt7

88,387

128,217

43

282

2,

2L7

25

26

390,204

t26,659

7,764

55,814

48,5s6

561

15,t08

272,644

219,831

32,244

52,249

!2,452

579

610,

334

27

40

2a

29

150,959

975

L2,274 754

45

30

3l

547

(3,49E)

1,083

(313)

405

569

41
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GOVERNMENTOF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FIOWS
FORTHE IA.MONTTI PERIOD ENOTO 3I OECEMAERIO1T

957,762

3,t8;
7,403

l,Ola

StatutoryAuthoriti€5 ht€r-governh€nt
Central & Govenment tr.de & Adual

Government companies Adiustments 2oa6/20r7
crsooo oso@ q9000 osooo

957

S.letof 6oods & Services

o!tput! ro other Sovernm€nt agencies

Oonalion5 / Gra.l5.e.eived

sLpplies and cdsuma bles

Outpute f rom publi. authoritie3

OLtputs from non-eovernmental organisatlons

Financi.g/interesr paymenlt

Extrrordi.arypaymenr!

rkt .oth lo6 hod (used hyt opercti,g Gtititi.s

Pr@eeds from ele ofpropeny, plant and equipme.t
Proceeds from ih. sale of rnvestme.t,

PLrchs3e of p.op.f ty, plant a.d equipme.t
Loan5 Made/ nvettmenis

Equitv injection ir public a!thorities

457,726

147,542

1,3O4

12s9,541)

1122,961|l-

(5,906)

\25,78O1

{114,334)

1t47,542)
(54,807)

l9

(404,593)

lra7,122l
lr47,s42l

(55,629)

147,91s)

{39,573)

11r,6971

51,364

tl7,l77
r47,542

1612,

2t7,Xt2

212

154,944)
(728,23r1

t6,tr9

{79,291)

17,131

{60,051)

136,371)

092,4211

19,434

L.,1r'

(45,

.osh loB J.n l6.d by) i.vetinq Gtiti.i.t

.dth lto6 hM (used bvt f.on ins o.tivities (60,984) 17t,(92,2311

e?,8561Net incease/ldecrease)in (arh and.ash equiyalent3 held

Cash a.d cash equivalenrs at begi.ning ofper od

Cath a.d.ash equivelents ar edd ofperiod

Segment Reporting (continuedf
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Note 4O: Subsequent Event

New Governo/s arrival

The Cayman lslands received a new Governor, Martyn Roper, who was sworn into office on the
afternoon of Monday 29 October 2018.

New cruise Facility

The Cavman lslands Government has received formal financial commitments from two cruise lines

on Tuesday 27 November 2018 and Cabinet has approved the terms from the cruise lines. The

Ministry of Tourism issued the final tender documents to the three shortlisted bidders in the
cruise berthing project at the end of November 201.8. The bidders'final submissions are due in

the first quarter of 20L9.

Strategic Development of the Port Authority

The Port Authority has embarked on a multi-year strategic development plan, which incorporates

the replacement of equipment that supports the provision of services to the public. The

multifaceted plan involves the purchase of Rubber Tyre Gantry (RTG) cranes and the development

of the Cargo Distribution Centre to facilitate the proper operation of this equipment. The total
projected capital expenditure for the next three years is 58.7M. This could increase or decrease

depending on the levels of surpluses that can be assigned to this project. At the reporting date,

this project was underway and ahead of schedule.

Government ofthe cayman lslands I consolidated Financial statements 2015/2017 E



Phoner (345) - 244-3211

Fax: (3451- 945-7738

AuditorGeneral@oag.tov.kY

www.auditorgeneral.sov.kY

3ad Floor, Anderson Square

64 Shedden Road, George Town

P,O Box 2583

Grand Cayman, l('Y1-1103, Cayman l5lands

9 September 2019

cayman lslands

CAYM A N ISLANDS

AUDITOR GENERATS REPORT ON THE ANNUAL SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE TEGISTATIVE ASSEMBLY

I have been engaged to provide assurance services on the cayman lslands Government's

{,,Government") schedule of appropriations for the period ended 31 December 2017. The terms of the

engagement requires that it be carried out in accordance with the International Standard on Assurance

Engagements 3OOO Assuronce Engdgements Other than Audits or Reviews ol Historicol Financiol

lnformdtion ("l5AE 3000").

ScoDe

The objective of this engagement is to provide an opinion on whether the schedule of appropriations

presents fairly the actual and budgeted figures as authorlzed in Ihe Appropridtion Low (July 2076 to

December 20L7) Low, 2076.

Management's responsibilities
The Government is required by the Public Monagement and Finonce Low ("PMFL") to include in its
annual report an audited annual schedule of appropriations used for the period compared with the

appropriations granted under the Appropriation Law (together with any supplementary Appropriation

Law) for the financial period.

Responsibility of the Auditor General
My responsibility in accordance with the |SAE 3OOO is to report whether the schedule of appropriation
presents fairly a comparison of the appropriations used and appropriations Eranted. Because of the

significance of the matter described in the basis for a disclaimer of opinion paragraph, I was not able to

obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a basis for an opinion.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
Management is not able to make assertions on the fairness of the reported figures and comparison of
the appropriations used and appropriations granted that makes up the annual schedule of

appropriations. As an illustration, there are instances where the appropriations used are based solely

on appropriations granted.

Disclaimer of Opinion
Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, I

have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to provide a basis for an opinion under

ISAE 3OOO. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the schedule of a ppro p riations.

W
sue Winspear, CPFA

Auditor General



Statements of
Appropriations
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Annual StateDent of Appropriationg

to thc P,€nlea
l- Oevefopment and Coodination of Govemment Polict 4221\3St 3,zc7,9tL (1,013,440

2-Cabinetand National Security CouncilSupport and Serviciry Lf89,371 !@,t,213 (98,158
9 - Protocol S€rvices SS3,72O 7y,439 N,jLg
11- Freedom oflnformation and oata P.ot€ction Coord ination U0,378 lrt3,Bls 23,437
17 - fnformation Se.vices Provided to Other Gove rn me nt Agencies t 7U,32S t"310,941 14f7
20- Advice and Assistance to the Premierand Administ.ation ol the

St te.rEnt ot App|lprl.tlon3
;or the l&Month Pedod Ended 31 De.edb€r 2017

office \277,493 L399,s79 r2z$
2l- groadcasting of Public Intormation and OnAirP.oS.ammes 2038,519 L948,789 (89,730
22 - Se.vices provided bythe london Oftice L,O8,562 1,351,326 272,764

Crpeoses
5- Constituencl Allowance 1,$B,1SO 1"116,60
96 - Executive Salary Reimbu6ements

Inveinentt
36 - Cabinet Office !"m3,929 2,3OtOOO 1,3Or"O7t
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Annual Statement of Appropriatioas (continuedf

to the Minister of Hone Atf.iE, Hcd6& CulilE (Hon. Aft lrll
1- PolicrAdvice and Mnigteaial Sefiices on Home Affairs Matters

2 - UcensingSetuices

3 - €nforcement of lmmigration laws
4- Processint Status and Permanent Residency Certificates

5 - lmmigration Entry and Exten3ion Se.vices

6- Processing Entry oocuments and Passports

7 - Incident RerDonses

8 - Police Securiw5€Nice5

9 - National DisasterPreparedness and Response Services

l0 - Pollae Criminal Justice Selvices

11- Prison S€rvices

12 - Corectional Supe.vision, Inte ru€ntion and Support Se rvices

14- Protection and Investigative Services

15 - Emergency Domestic Fire Services

17-Aerodrome Fire Seryices

20- Technology Support Services

4,286,44
!,062,371

2"4m,O19

267,398

7,263,333

2"467,47
1,841"895

335,2s1

t 09t"906

756,454

12,@,126

64?rr32
e,471,354
7,352,67L

4534,583
6,081996

\067,477

4,O2L8,3A

r29,W
rc6,0m
$tmo

1,745

2,et23,O72

4581019 298,579

,\62"371
2"4m,$8 {11

267,398

4,D3,3L7 (2,470,016)

2,640,@1 L72,W
3,014053 1,L72,88
11671,929 1,3ii6,678

2,W,344 1,@3,438

t 272,533 515,079

l7,t1to98 4,45372
9994,596 3,559,464

9,83/.,759 4353,405
to,rn,t$ \et24,s2a

5,820,660

LO,520,412

9st(m

Entitlcr
1-Policy, Prevention,Surveillance, ReJearch,lnformation, Monitoring

Evaluation

SuFplie.s

38- Service5 for lrreBular MiSrants

Paynants

(3,512888)

46- Emerge ncy Relief Payments

58 - Supportfor SeNices ot the Red Cross

69 - Supportforthe BridSe Foundation

405,(m

120,(m
10s,m
$0,m

9,(m

3,983,302

{$,0m)

Erecutiv€ Cxp€ns€s

57- Bank Charges

lnrc3tn€ma
11- Ministrvot Home Affairs, Health and Culture - HomeAtfairs
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Annual Statement of Approprlatlons (continuedl

to Mlniste. ot Communlty Aff.l6, Youth & spo.ls
27- PolicyAdvice and Suppon to the Ministerof Community affairs,

and Spons
28- Administration of com mu nity Assistance ProSrammes

29- Public Education on Social lssues

30- couns€lling and support Services

31 - Supervision and Support of Children

32 - Community Deve lopme nt Se rvices

:14 - Spoats Servaces

35- Youth SeNices

36- Cadet CorpsSe.vices

2,894,928

9,308,,109

382,561

7,210,269

1852.233
499,589

4,215,241

45/',452
Aa\ffi

3,612m0

118,275

290,150

97a,6t3

31,447

151,560

2,lm,ml
175,770

337,S@

226,375

3,688,331

191595
442.342

36,974

8,562,350

2.943,414

23,8ffi
39,28

4,262,\n
Ln7,35O

64,425

89,809

s77,ffi
5m,451
627,14t
918,570

70,070

2888

54S,933

t"4oo,0o0
467,373

2.763,623

9,606,594

390,836

7,127,62

1206,15S
499 589

s,824,89
527,a@

494,943

t267,m

I,O25
rla,27S
29/),lfi

t,057,451

so,(m
$5,(m

2,100,000

17s,7?o

337,5m

2,920,m
225,000

482,382

37,W
137,2{

9,390,000

2.325,m
4t00o
90,0m

9,009,mo
1,528,800

131lm
$o,(m
726,7m
556,977
751,838

750,000

40,500

9,mo
6,@O

294,245

4,275

(2.646,078)

1,589,556

163,408

13,437

(35O,(m)

78,838

18,513

24,44

1',

trur,rrrt
29,305

s22

42,65

a27,59
{618,814)

21,140

fi,791
745,W
22L4so

62,675

ffi,191
149,tt2

56,515
1,24,697

(168,570)

l29,S7Ol
6,112
5,0m

(54s,933)

(1,4m,0m)

s,o12,627

Entitles
2 - children and Youth Services {CAYS) Foundation

SuFplierl
47- Mentoring Caymen Programme
58'Elite Athlet€s Programme
59- Youth Development Prognmmes

@- Sports Programmes

62 - Community Development, Prevention and Beautification

53 - School lunch and Uniform ProSrammes

54-Care ofthe IndiSent, Elderlyand Oisabled Persons

65 - General Programmes and Children Services

66- FosterCere forChildren
67- Community Programmes

68- RentalAccomfiodation forPersons in Need
70 - Burial Assistance for Indigents
71- Suooort for Battercd Wom€n and Children
72 - Therapeutic S€rvices for Young Persons

82 - OtherSports P.ogrammes

41- Poor Relief Peyrnents

43 - Poor ReliefVouchers
44 - Temporary Poor ReliefforYoung Pere nts Progra m me (YPP)Students

45 - Youth AfterCare Payments
47 - Ex-Gratia Benetit Paymentsto Seemen

48 - Benefit Peymentsto Ex-Servicemen
49 - Youth Programmes and OtherNon-Governmental Organizations
50 ' Pre-School Assistance

57 - Children and FemilyServices Support
60- Hor/san8 Assiste nce
72 - OtherYouth and Sports Programmes
75 - Needs Assessment Suppon

€xecutive €xDense5

78 - Oepreciation of Ministryof CommunityAffairs, Youth.nd Sports -

81 - Wodd Aoti-DopinS ASency

82' Regional Anti-DopinS Organization
115 - Regional 5€cu rity Initiatives

41- Children and Youth Services {CAYSI Foundation
54 - Ministry of Community Affairs, Youth and Sports s,500,o0
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Annual Statement of Appropriations (continued|

Actual Original audgei Aclualvs gudget

c6(m c6om c6(xn

to the Minist€rof Di5trict Administ.ation'Durism & TransPo.t

DAT 1- Adv ce and Support to the Ministcr of O strict administration, Tourisn

T 2 - Govcrnment Scrvices in Cayman Brac and Little Cayman

T 3 Manaeement of Executivc Astets in Cavman Brac and Little cavman

T 5 Inspectlon, TestinB and ticensing Services

T 6 - P! blic Education Programmes

T 7 Tounsm Public Relaions
T 8 'Tour sm AdvertislnE Activitics

DAI9 Tounsm S.lcs and Promotion

OAT 10 Tourisn MarketinB
DAT 11 suppo.t for Loca To!ri5m Prov dcrs

T 12 Collcction of coercive Rcven!e
T t3 wcather Forccast Services

T 14 P!blic Traneport Serviccs

5,051,010

1,O57,696

2,579,26r
10,156,504

6,932,615

2,746,445

202,677

r,848,186
914,002

3,95\,273
20,743,194
7,275,150

l,@t7,46A
41,2,574

74J,667

45,159

104,000

)o,o44
45,O00

345,0@
125,000

5,134

1,7a7,76\
75,Ou)

270,000
a99,440

344,323

16,150,000

13,811,145

566,929

91,243

2,s00,000

1,O15,677

2,150,OOO

23,1O7

1,115,048

47,L58

500,000
50,000

3,946,271
6,143,596

5,465,938
I,O57,696

1,435,354

2,579,261
10,155,504

2,746,445

2,569,234
202,674

1,84a,1a6
914,000

3,951,207

2Q,743,793

7,215,150
1,Cn7,469

4L2,574

7A7,667

45,159

108,000

30,044

45,000
345,000

75,000
5,134

1,,222.5o/.)

75,000

1s0,000
654,500

725,000

7,650,000

12,700,000

100,@0
7,500,000

\21

92,546

128,545

(r)

(2)

(6)

.-',

2

1

(so,0oo)

,o,ra"

(12O,0O0)

(240,940)

380,677

(8,500,0O0J

(r. r11,145)
(566,929)

4,7t7
s,0@,000

1 StfategicDomesticAirServLces
2 5traiegic To!rism, ReSlonal .nd Core Air Servic.s

AB t. M.naEement of Pedro st lames National Histor c site
TAB 2 Manapcment of Queen Elr.abeth ll Botanrc Park

AB 3 Ann!al Pirates Wcck Fesbvals and Events

AB 4 Managemcnt of cayman lslands craft Market

AB 5 Management of l-lel Attr.ct on

I Srstcr !slands Affordablc Ho!t fg Progr.mme

on-Governmental suppliers
NGS I Orp.nize, Administcr and Executc the Cavman lslands Fishinc

NGS 3 Organization of Batabano Fcstival
NG5 7 Managemcnt of Small Business Oovelopment

26 organization of the Miss Cayman comm $ee
57 GardeninB Projects and Landscaprng

l2 Tourism Scholarshrps

13 Miss Cayman Scho arshiP

66 - Sistcr ls a.ds Homc Reparrs Assist.nce

67 5port5 and C!ltu.al Tour sm Programmes assr5tance

€xccutiv€ Expenees

OE 91 - ocDreciation of Mrn strv oi Dlstr ct Admini5tratLon, ToLrr sm and

ransport E{ecut !e Agets

I Cayman Airways Lrmited
49 cavman Turt e Farm (1983) Limited

51- Min stry of Financial Services Touris.n, and Development

58 Min stry of O strict Administration, Tourism .nd Trrnspon
El T4Cayman lslands Alrports Authority

55 Cayman Brac & little Cayman Rords

60 Cayman Brac: Blutf Playf c!d
95 Cemetery Vaults - Cayman Brac and Llttle Cayman

125 Cayman Erac EmergencY Shelter

EA 139 - Little cayman Boat La!nch Ranrp

EA 143-Cruise BenhinB FacilrtY

EA 144 P!b ic Restrooms

1,799,500 723,423

9OO,0OO {1.2s0,@Ol
25,s00 2,391

2,000,Qoo a44,952
(47,r58)

500,000

100,0oo 50.ooo
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Annual Statement of Appropriations (continuedl

Actual odainal Budgct
crsooo crsooo

2,910,216 3,04a,296
799,479 390,599

2,030,240 2,139,234
2,277,234 2,169,64a
1,929,s85 2,-734,834

3/4,472 610,665
1,784,001 2,16I,449
2,537,729 4,333,926
t7,4(n,664 18.166,035
5,049,456 4,a97,2!6

232,47t 560,051

9,052 98,521
3,769,373 5.014,765

21,130 3a.aao
27,371 414,25A

2,250,918 3,737,212

?0,0@
16,518
73,542
54,374
23,742

4,450
2].O76
40,624

2la,zga

346,551

281.0s3
25,OOO

44,316

112,0@
13,716

498,97A

L41,272

2,653,3J5

912,188
5,050,305

4o0,000
96,652

369,6s4
415,930

341,491
7,800,000

772,O49

50,0@
44,794
37,500

750,575
6s,636
12,323
63,903

112,s00
214,288

346,553
281,053

25,OOO

64,800

112,5m
37,5CA

74t,212

LO,790,951

3,353,537
5,O22,293

750,000
175,0(n

3,000,o00
1,500,oo0

75,000
175,000

6,950,000

c$(m

130.080
797,t20
709,O74

(r07,s90)
4o5,249

373,448
7,4o2,797

165,372
(158,240)
327,5AO

49,469
t,265,392

17,754
346,88s

7,446,294

30,000
29,264
23,95a
96,201
41,934
7,873

40,427

77,876

r Executive Expenses

Equity Investments

tothe Minist€.of Planning, r:nds, Atriculture, Holsingand

PAH 1 . Advice and Support to the M nrster of Plannrna, tands, Agriculture,
Housing & Inf rastructure
PAH 2 Emergency Respo.se Seruices
PAH 3 National Maii 5eryice
PAH 4 Managemenl of Publrc Recreational Facrlrties and Ceheteries
PAH 5 - Agfcu t!re R€gulatory Services
PnH 6 - Agriculiure Oevelopment Seruices
PAH 8 M.nagement of Spec a Prolects

AH 9 - Manaeeme.t of Land Information
PAH 10 - M.nagehe.t oi Government Pfopenies

t6 - Licensing of Drivers and Vehicles
AH 17 5ervrces to Farmers

AH 11 - Procurement and Malntenance of Goveinment Fleer
AH 12 . Handl ng of Dangerour Substances
n H 13 Provi5 on of Plannr.B Services
n F 14 ManaBem€nt of Plann ng App rcations
AH 15 Adm nrst.aion of Temporary Housing Initiat ve

ICT 9 ManaCement of KY Interfet Oomain
ICT 10 Col eciion and Venfrcat on of Licence Fees
ICT 11 Pol cy Adv ce on lCl Matters
ICT l2 Ed!catron of Loca Busines3es and the General Pubtrc on tCT t5sues
ICT 13 - Regiona and International Reprereniatio.
ICT 14 Natrooal Cyber Securlty rnir atrves

12 5!ppo^ to Natio.al Energy PolicV Se.retarlat
8 . Oraltrne Inst.uction for the Oevelopment of Leg slar on

HT4 Admini!tratrof of the AifordabLe Sousing Iniriatrve
HT 5 . Adminirtratron of the Goverfment cuaranreed i-tome Assrsted

HT 6 n dmin stration of the New Afiordable Housine tniti.t ve
7 Adm nistrat on of the 8u ld on Yo!r Owr Properly Inr t ative

Non-Gove.nmental Suppliers
NGS 24 Spayine and Neutering of Doe5 afd Cats

TP 74 Assistance in respect to Importatio. of Livestock
76 - Assittance for Infrastruct!re Deve opmenr
78 Ex Grat a Payments-Compe.satron Ro.d Wrdentng

76,444

500

23,784
(498,978)

93'Car bbeJf Agr cu ture R€5e.rch and Development Insr tute (CARDt)

E 101 Depreciatio. of Planning, Lands, Agri.! ture, Housing rnd

104 Caibbe.n Enerey Info.mat on System Membership

57 Natronal Housr.e Developme.t Trust

8,L37,5J6

1,447,349
(28,012)

(59 000)

74,344
2,630,346

644,O70

75,000
31,509

(8so,oo0)

1772.0/091

El 71 . M n stry of P ann nB, Lands, Agric!lture, HoustnC and Infrastructure

EA 4.Land Purchase

EA 9 Land Purchase: cazetted Clarhs
36-Misce lan€our Road Su.face Upgrades

78 - Government Office Accommodarionr Proj€ct 1

142 George Town Revitalizat on
147 MiscellaneoLrs Infrastruct!re Dev€lopmentWo.ks
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Annual Statement of Approprlations (continuedf

7 - An Internationally Competitive Financial Servicer Industry

8 - A Eusiness Climate Corducive to Local Commerce

10 - A Robust, Efficient Regime for the Registration of Corporate and Vital

to the Minister ot Financial Seruices. Commerce and

and the [icensing of Eusinesses

5,751608 33,94

2,441,370 159,175

- (1.356,345)

1,309,U7

s,431,161 419,88s

412,5@

235,422

r@,207

101,844

101,672

190,698

8s5,000

167,5m

15,0@

25,000

2,000,000

602,0m

6,m0,m0

4106
25,733

3,1@

112,927 ,603l,

146,0221

17t8,67al

1,124.726

5,719,614

2"282,195

1,356.345

1,309,047

5,017,216

472s@
23s,422

Lm,207

101,U4

101,672

190 698

11- FairCompetition in Domestic Commercaal actavaty

12 - Ministry Strategy, Communicataons and Operations Support

13 - Environmental Services and Research

DVB 3- Administration of Mortgage LendinB

MOA 6 - Regulation of the Cayman lslands Currency

Entitie5

8-collectionofFees

Assets

146 - tand Purchases Conse.vation

234,036 234,037

3U,740 364,740

2,099,960 2100,000
450,(m 450,000

15,417,5m 6,417,5m
t,469,94O 7,470,60
1,312,500 1,312,500

855,m0

167,500

11,894

{733}

14,927,@3

46,O22

1t32O,674

4,875,274

I - Auditors Oversight Authority
1- Policy Advice on Maritime Matte rs

2 -TechnicalAdvice and Support on Maritime Matters

4- State Inspedions and Inve5tigation 5e.vices

5 - Long Range ldentification and Tracking of ships

DVB 1- Administration of Lending for Human Resource 0evelopment
2-Administration of l-endingforMicro and Small Businesses

40

zo

MOA 12 Regulation ofthe Financial Services Industry

MOA 13' Assistance to Overseas Regulatory Authorities
MOA 14 Policy Advice and Ministerial Services

66 - Audit Ov€Bight Commattee

67 - Ministry of tinancial Services, Commerce and Environment

Supplie15

GS 74 - Preservation of Natural Envrronments and Places of Histo.ic

63 - Suooort to tocal Business Associations

Executive Eroenses

lnvestments

El 4 - Cavman lslands Develooment Bank

66 - United Nations Carabbean Invironmental Programme

94 - OECD-GIobel Forum

105- organisation forEconomic co-operation Development (oECD) cAIPA
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ADpropdationi to th€ Mioiste. ot Fli ce & Ecor*i fcoaralopment
F€D 1- PolicyAdvice and MinisterialServices
FED 2 - Governance and Administratlve Seruices

FED 3 - Colledion of Coercive Revenue

F€D4- Prcparation and Publication ofStatistical Reports

FED 5 - Financial Reporting and Management Services

FED6 - Processingof Passenge15 and Inspection of Aircrafts, Vessel5 and

Cargo

FtD7- Detection,Interdiction and Prosecution of Custo ms Offe nces

FED 9 - Administration and ProcessinS of Applications

FED 1l - Monitoring and Reporting on the Economy

2,@1,614
31r"293

2,8€2"657

1,941\442

6,246,454

L1,537,71O

2"194,123

411,616

368,885

3,!91,W
440,063

2,*1,193
Z*8,744
6,525,385

11,541,895

3,9,76s
454,482

28r,O74

11,171336

232,m

s25,0m

17,1m,000

750,(m
38,@

70(),000

350,000

90,00
120,000

330,000
,lg),(m

34j$,622

549,92(
r28,77C

447,n2
374,931

4,L8(
r,390,42

42,804

(828111

Public€ntities
CIN 1- Health Insurance forSeamen and VeteransforPrimary and Secondary

Health Care 11.337.339

other €recutive Crpenses

0E 9- Caribbean Economic Community (CARICOM) Fees

0E 10- Caribbean ReSion al Techn ical Assistance Centre (CARTAC)

Contribution

0E 27- Past Service Pension [iability Payment

0E 54 - Caribbean Catestrophe Risk Insurance Facility - Annual Premium

0E 57'Executive Eank Charges

0E 86 -Compensation

Equity Inve3tments

El 31-Cayman lslandsNational Insurance Company(ClN|COl

El 70 - Ministry of Finance and Economic Development

loans Mad€
LM 1- Civil Service Mort8ages to Staff
LM 3- PersonalLoans to staff
LM 4- Over5eas Medical toan5
LM 11- S€ttlementtoans

Financing Exp€nses

FE 3- Intereston PublicDebt

16am3l

14€,

231,903

376,875

17,100,000

1,2l6,251
33,0(B

515,025

7,lm,00O
575,534

47,549

58,895

99,814

629318

39,019,205

(506,25U

4;E91

(7,100,fiDl

1225,534)

42,45t

61,105

230,186

{148,318)

(29s83)

Annual Statement of Appropriations (continuedl
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Anaual Statement of Appropriations lcontinucdl

to the Mlnlst J ot Edlcatlon, Employm.nt.nd GedderAft i6
1- PolicyAdvice, Govemance and Ministerial Support Service!
2- Job Place fie nt and Employe r Suppo.t Adivities
3- EmploymentRegulatoryActivities
4- Public Li brary Se.vices

S- P.imaryEducation S€rvice5

6- S€condary €ducation Services
7- Education SeNices for Stude nts with Special Needs

8- faailities llilaintenance and Procurcment Management

9 - Training and Suppo.t forAdults with Oisabilities

10-Education Evaluation and Suppon Services

8"3//.,269

2"L97,38
L,512,747

2426,W
3L594,555

35,228,O9

149{7,637

13,976,i18S

2,211,ffi
&slt768

6,311099

@,6n

48tO0
54,0m

2,217,W
43,238

41,130

1,@7,575

L7,8L9,tu
m2"$7

905.040

869,755

LZt75

242,528

10,986,563

&t88,424
2,41&415

r,8r€"762

L426,ffi
9394972
35,211891

10,959891

13,976,45

4zLt"ffi
9,$s,239

6,325,223

&,6n

135,0@

54,(m
2,?9.5,W

43,238

44,L@

1.0s3,316

15,894,03S

373,73r

2,256,755

w,7-75

20,183

242"528

13,663,2@

494,155

22\U7
z]5,015

1- Teachin8 of Tertiary Level Professional and Vocational Programmes

1 - Oisbursement Govemment Scholarship Funding

Entities

Supplie15

E(e@tlve Cxpen$s

€69,47L

to,t24

n,9-96

2"9m

45,741

171564

t 3st 715

20

*7,427
(r,9BZ

m,Lal

2"676,637

25- Teechingof Tertiary Education Cou6ei
27- Supervision of Pre-School Child.en

:14- Primaryand Secondary Education byPrivate Schools

76- Auti5m Diagnostics and Sexual llauma Recovery Paotramme

79- X9Securitv Selvices

27 - Pre-School Educational Assistance

:10 - [ocaland oveGeas scholarships and gursaries

51- Othe r Educational Assistance

52 - Young Nation Builde rs Schol.rships

55- Em olovment lnitiatives
51- Student Enrichment & Support Services

78- B( Gratia Payments-Compensation Road WideninS

11 - subscriotion to caribbean Examinations council
12- University ofthe West Indies Membership[evy

12- lvlnistry of Education, Employment end Gende.Affairs
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Annud Statement of Appropriations lcontlnuedf

1- Poli.vAdvic. and Ministerial Se rvices
2 - H.alth ReaulatoryServices
7 - collcction, R.cyclint and Disposal of Waste
8 - PublicHealth Services
9- EnvironmentalHealth i/bnitoring Se.vlce t
10- Emeracncy Respons. S.rvices
11- lvlosq uito Control Service s

2' i/bdical Care for Inditents
6- McdicalS.rviccr in Cayman Bracand Uttle Cayman
10- Ambulance Services
U - se.vic€s at Oistrict Health Clinics
12- Mental H€alth 5€rvices
16'Geriatrics€rvices
17 - Medical Ca.e geyond hsurance CoveraSe/Un-lnsured
la-school Health services
19 ' Medical Care For Ch ro nic Ailments
20- Public Health Programmes, Investiaations and Treatem€nts
21. Medical Internship Protramme
23. Provision of Antir€troviral M€dic.tion
24- P.ovision of Psychological Tra uma Diatnosis end Treatment for

lo th. Mlnlsier ot Forn€ Aft l.r, Hc.hh& Culturt (H..lth)

25. ManaSement and Maint€nanc€ of Cancer ReSistry

cntltles

6 - Cultu.al P.ogrammes

Suppllc.s

4 - Collection and Prerervation ofSianificanl Mate.ial€vidence
5 - Museum Facilities, Exhibitionr and Oisplays
6- Provision of Policvand Gen€ralAdvice on Museum Matters
7- Artsand Culture Pres€Nation, Documentation and Promotion
8- NationalFestivalJ and Stage Productions
9 - Trainint ancl Suppon fo.Artistic Developm€nt
I' Exhabitions and Art F€stivals
2- Nationa l Art Collection
3- ArtEducation end Out.each P.og.ammes

2,75L,916
1,729,5t7

11,176,@

462,E44
136,76

1q9O1,801
16,456,5(B
s,r67,717
3,37o,g$
1,364,421
3,346,806
L,242,622
2,299,65
2,2O5,ffi
1,176,953
2,431,625

225,m
463,576

lSO,OOO

58,0@

22L,516
a12,592

149,8tO
701,1€O

92,342
174,29
100,s54
327,99
17,1@

33,48
Lm,237
67,644

T,O92,725
21,375

L94,771

,r,ri,
t@o,@

240,@
2,170,724

1OL(m
a,t66,2z-6

v),o00

2,751,915
L,765,28
7,2it,245
2,539,2?t

506,751
2y),345

q609,900

16,455,5(B
5,167,737
3.37o,9Q
3,364,421
3,346,W
L223,q6
3,@O,@O

2,205,664
1,163,412
3,O53,64
22t(m

L413,q)O

150,0@
58,m

22L,616
4u,592
llx,992
t49,8tO
7o1,L57

92,3U
L74,2n
1q),554
327,932

t7,1@

33,444
Lm,237

67,684
17,165,771

2t,375

225,W

18,0@

22,5@

24O,0@

Lq2,W
72,W

11,Oaa,Oq)

6@,0(D
50,0@

100,0(x)

(1)

3t65r
(3,944,7551

{2)
419O3

93,6&
( 1,291,9011

(19,576)

730,135
@

(13,55r)
622,239

549,324

4- HIV/AIDS and First Aid Public Education Progamm€s
53- Palliativ€ Car€ Nursing
54- SocialMarteting for P.evention of HIV/AID5
55 - Tertiary Care at Various Overseas Institutions
83 - Othe.B€alth and Cultural P.oArammet

73 - OtherHealth & Cultural Programme Assistance

€x.cudv! 6(D!n3.3

30 - Cemetery Vaolts - G.and Caym.n

23 - Cavman lslands National Museum
29 - Health 5ervic€s Authoritv
47 - Cayman NationalGall€rv
53- Ministry of Home Affairs, Health and Culture - Heatth
65- Minist.y of Home Aff:rirs, Health and Culture-Heelth - CINICO
72 - cavman National Cultural Foundation

30,28

14- Caribbean Food &Nutrition Institute Subscription
15- Pan Amerlcsn Health OEanisation 5ubsc.iption
l5- Caribbean Health Reiearch Council Subsc.iption
17 -Caribbean Epide.biology C€ntre 5ubscription
1O3 - Caribbean Public Health A8ency (CARPHA)

105 - Settlement of claim5

11,861

4,918
{tooo,@)

{szE,ZZE)
(29,OOOI

2,92L,774
600,7

1@,@
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to the D€puty Govemor
1- PolicyAdvice to the Head ofthe CivilServrce
2 - Audjting Compliance with Human Resource & Internal Financial

1,495,263

1,813,83s

1,262,219

564,191

1,216,976

1,116,216

930,573

1,m7,635

1"981,999

\286,22O

395,123

30,977,975

217,997

1,495,263

1,531,739

\262,219
846,287

1,289,156

1,716,216

9s6,598

Lm7,535
1,982,m0

1,286,220

39t 123

3!,712,L56

218,000

3 - ManaSement of Public Sector Reform
7-CivilSetuice College
8 - Human Resource and Accounting Services

10 - Servicing of the tegislative Assembly and Membefs of the Legislative

1282,096)

282,@6

72L80

26,025

1

11'Servicing and Support forH.E. th€ Govenor
12 - Preservation and Management ofRecords
13'Maintenance of the tlectoral Register
14 - Suooort forCommissions
15 - Policy Advice and Administrative Support Provided to the Oeputy

Entitiei
2 - Health lrsrirance for Civil Service Pen5ioners 134,187

3

Suppliers
20- Employee Assistance Programme

Erecutive ErDenses

2- Personal Emoluments for H,E. the Governor, Premier, Deputy Premier,
of the tegi5lative Assembly, Ministert tlected Membersof the

Assembly add Deputy Governor 5,249,704

2,O70,m
182000

216,255

749,657

5,182,m0

2,070,m0

187,0(n

18,000

2ss,006

400,000

1,989,(m

290,000

508,0@

lroT,7u)

18,000

3&751

250,343

L989,m0
290,000

508,000

19- Ex-Gratia Recipients Plan Payments
71 . Commonwealth Parliamentary Association

99 - Ex'Gratia Payments for Former Members of the t-egislative Assembly
1m- Depreciation of the Portfolio ofCivil Service Executive Assets
107 - Project Future
108 - PayStagnation

109 - Public Ombudsman

Investments

35 - Portfolio of the Crvil Service

141 - lJpgrades and repairs to LA Building 127,@O 1127
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LGA 1- Provision of tegal Advice and Representation

LGA 3'taw Teaching and Publications

to the AttoaneyGenerdl

4' OraftinS of Legislation

5- Policy Advice to the Attorney General

6 - Financial IntelliEence services

7- Review & Modernization of Laws

€xecutive ErDenses

Entities

8 - Autopsy and Coroner Seruices

Suppliers

2 - tegal Aid Services

Executive Expenses

2,863,971

2,U4,922
1,616,038

1,678,130

1,531,722

584,086

89,026

332,0rs

2,463,971

7,U4,922
1,6r6,038

1,578,130

1.531,722

584,086

100,000

2&,233

75,000

4,741,477

r0,0m

1,878,100

6,8s46r0
689,211

633,957

360,000

3,990,m0

3,019,999

1,394,503

139,146

1,500

800 000

2m,0m

6 - Contribution to caribbean Financial Adion Task Force

26- Personal Emoluments for the Attorney General

10,974

151,782)

75,00034 Portfolio of t€gal Affairs

to cabinetoh behalfofthe Otfice of the Directorot Public

1- Prosecution and Internationalco operation

lnvestments

m- Office of Director of Public Prosecution

to the Cabinet on Behalf of the Chief rustice

4,741,471

r0,000

35,mO
I Administrative support to the Judiciary

2- Supportfor Court ProceedinSs

3- Collection of Revenue

4 Financial Management of Court Funds

1,878,100

6,519,610

649,271

633,957

401,319

3.786,421

3,026,208

1,909,093

32,01.3

871,353

85,000

335,000

14\,319l'

203,579

(1- Personal Emoluments for the ludiciary
4- ludiciary txpenses

43 - Depreciation of ludical Executive Arsets

57 - Bank Charges

65 - Court of Appeal Exp€nses

102 - New Court House

(514,s90)

107,133

1,500

(71,3s3)

115,mO

(33s,0m)
Equity Investments

El 2l - Judicial Administration

Government of the Cayman lslanos I consoroareo Frnancrar sratements 2n16t2n7i 4



Annual Statement of Appropriations lcontinuedl

Appropriation tothe PublicAccounts Committee

ADO 1-SeNicesto the Legislative Assembly and itsCommittee 921000 921"000

Equity Inveitments
El 18-Cayman lslands Auditoffice - 23,00 23,000

Appmpriations to the Ove6ight Committee otthe Legislative Assembly

lComplaints Commissionerl

fCC 1- Public Interest Investigations 568,322 94835 411,513

rcc 2 Policy Advice and Public Education Outreach 113,428 195,565 82,137

Equity Invertne nts

El 75 - Oftice of the Ombudsman 5m,m0 - (5m,m)

Appropriatlons to the Ove.sight Committee of the tegiilatlve A5se mbly

llntorDation Commisiioner)
Co 1- compliance with Freedom of Information teSaslation 546,520 1,196,472 e9,952

IotC Approgrl.iionr 9L7,192/ls 9'9.7tA,9s 12,576,685
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Govemment ot the Cayman lslands

Strtement ot un-Appiopriated Expenditure

For the Year €nded 31Deaember2017

ooriations to lhe Premier

1- Deve lo pme nt a nd Coordi n ation of Gove rn me nt Policy 4,221,351. 3,207 ,9I1 ( 1,013,

2- cebinetand NationalSecurity CouncilSuppon and Servicing \1a9,371 1,cB4,213

17- lnformation Services Provided to OtherGovernmentAgencies 1,784,325 1,316,941 1467

21 - Broadcasti ng of Pu blic Info rmation en d On Air Program mes 2,038, S19 1,94a,7a9 (89,

€xecutive Expenses

5' Constituency Allowance 1,198,150 1,116,050

to the MinisterofHome Aflairs, Health& cultlre (Home Aftairs)
5 - fmmigration Entry and [xtension Services 7,263,333 4,793,311 {2,470,016)

Entities
NDC I - Poliq/, Prevention, Surveillance, Research, Information, Monitoring

Evaluation 7,031,877 955,000 1102,871)

Payments

69 - Support for the BridSe Foundation 165,m0 150,0m (15,m0)

to Minisle r ot Commun itv Aftairt Youth & Sports

HCA 27 - Policy Advice and Support to the Minister of Community Affairs,
Youth and sporrs 2,894,928 2,763,623 (131,305)

HCA 31- Supervision and Support of children 5,a52,233 3,206,155 e,646,O78)

Executive Expenses

78'Depreciation of Ministry of Community Affairs, Youth and Sports -

cutive Assets 7O,O70 4O,5m 129,570!,

ll5- ReSionalsecurity Initiatives 545,933 (545,933)

to the Minister of DiitrictAdministration, Tou.ism & Transoort

lnvestments

51- Ministryof FinancialServices Tourism, and Development 565,929 - (566,929)

to the Ministerof Planning, Lands, Agriculture, Housing and

AH 11- Procurement and Maintenance of Government Fleet 5,049,456 4,891,216 (158,240)

Investments

71 MinistryofPlanning, Lands, A8ricultu.e, Hou5ing and Infrastructure 1050,305 5,022,293 l'28,0121

to the Minister of Financial Se ruices, Commerce and

11 - Fair Competition in oomestic Commercial activity L3Sq34s { t,356,345)

146,022l

Investments

66' Audit OversiSht Committee 46,O22

Statement of Un-Appropriated Financial Transactions
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to the Ministei of Finance & tconomic Dev€loDment
11- Monitoring and Reponing on the Economy 368,885 2ALO74 (87

Entities
l-Health lnsuran€€ for Seam€n and Veterans for Primary and Secondarv

Care rr,337,339 rr.175,336 (r62,m3)

El 70 - Ministry of Finance and Economic Development 57t514 350,(m

39,019,205 38,990,6223- lnterest on Public Debt

to the Ministe r of Education, Employrnentand GenderAftairs

78 - Ex Gratia Payment5-Compensalion Road Wrdening 12,175 lr2,r

opdations to the Minister of Home Aftairs, llealth& Cultur€ lHealthl
lS.Gerialrics€rvices 1,242,622 1,223,U6 {19,575)
19' Medacalcare For chronic Ailments 1,176,953 1.163,412 {r3,55r)

Suppliers
55 - Tertiarv Care at Various Overseas Institutions 30,092,725 17,165,77r (

to the DeputyGov€rnor
2 - ALrditing Compliance with Human Resource & Internal Financial

l,al3,83s 1,s31,739 (282,096)

Executive Eroenses
2- Personal Emoluments for H.E. the Governor, Premier, Deputy Premier,

of the Legislative Assembly, Ministers, €lected Membe.s of the
Assembly and Deputv Governor 5,2a9,7O4 5,182,000 (lO7,7U)

141 - Upsrades and repairs to LA Buildinr 127,ffi (127,mO1

to the DeFutvGovernor
2 - Audirint Complian€e with Human Resource & Internal tinancial

1,813,83s 1,s31,739 1282,096l,

Executive Eroenses
2- person!l Emoluments for H,E, th€ Governor, Prehier, Oeputy Premier,

of the tegislative Assembly, Ministers, Elect€d Members of the
Assembly and Depotv Governor 3,2a9,7O4 5,182,0@ l1O7,704')

l4l-Uprradesandrepai.stoLASuildin8 127,0m (127,0CO)

to the Attorney G e neaal

Erecutive ErDenses

26 Personal €moluments for the Attorney 6eneral 332,Ols 280,233 (51,7821

€ntities
8-Autopsv and Coronerservices 401,379 35q00O l41,379l,

er Ere.ulive Erpenles

l - Personal Emoluments torth€ Judiciary 3,025,208 3,OI9,99 {

4 - ludiciary Eipenses 1,909,093 1,394503 (514590)

55 - court of Appeal €xpenses 871,353 80O,mO (71,353)

Statement of Un-Appropriatcd Financial Transactions (continuedl
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t

Statenent of Epcnrcr or Cepttel Erpendlture lacurred ttr
Energencler

There were no emergency situations which warranted emergency spending during the period

ended 31 December 2017.
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Supplementary
Statements
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Note 41: Outputs from Statutory Authorities & Government
Companies

In order to improve the delivery and range of services it offers to the public, the

Government has established several authorities and companies with the sole mandate of

making such a good or service avallable to the public with the mode of delivery being akin

to, or comparable to, private sector operating standards. These bodies are overseen by

Boards appointed by the sitting Government and are guided by a law specific to that

particular entity, with ultimate governance provided by the Publlc Authorities Law (2017).

In an effort to reduce cost to the general public, the Government subsidises the cost of

operation with the public being asked to make minimal contributions for these services.

For the 18-month financial period 31 December 2017, the Government provided subsidies

amounting to 9151.0 million (2016: S98.5).

EPS Actual

mls12016

o9000

315

!7,306

569

19 593

28,599

629

2,575

1

28,746

325

419

553

402

580

821

72

1,911

4,O78

EPS Adual
mL6lmu

cr9000

473

24,695

850

20,805

42,3r5

943

3,617

42,767

895

539

1,m3

@3

871

7,231

108

2,945

5,315

150,969

Description

Auditors Oversight Authority

Cayman Airways Ltd

Cayman lslands Development Bank

Cayman lslands Monetary AuthoritY

Cayman lslands National Insurance company

Cayman National Cultural Foundation

Children & Youth Services Foundation

Eledricity Regulatory Authority

Health Services Authority

Utility Regulation and Competition Office

Martime Authority Cayman lslands

National Drug Council

National Gallery of the Cayman lslands

National Housing Development Trust

National Museum

sister lslands Affordable Housing Corporation

Tourism Attractions goard

University College of the Cayman lslands

98,533 Total outputs from Public Entities
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Aad
2013n0$ D€s.rlptlon

a$eo

300 AudatouOveEightAuthofty

1,523 Sister lslandr Affodable Hourint Co.poration

24,493 Cayma.lslands Mor etary A uthoritv

7t,593 WaterAuthority'cayman

27,2@ PortAuthoity

8,015 Cayman lslindr Developme.t Eank

478 National Gallery of the Cayman klands

2,759 NationalMuseum

8,145 Unive6ity College of the Cayman lslands

6,828 CivilAviationAuthoity

359 National Drug Council

4,585 Cayman National cultural Foundation

98,758 Heallh 5e Nices Autho.ity

9,524 Tourism Attradions Soad

3,337 Utility Reglllation and Competition Office

3,895 M.ritime Authority ofthe Cayman lslands

1,460 ChildGn&Youths€tuicesFound.tion

4,U2 National HoueinsDevelopmentTrust

(27,928) CaymanAi&aysLtd

2,424 C.ym.n lslandsstock E|chan8e

11,514 Cavman lurtle Conseration and EducationCentE Ltd

4831 N ational Roads Authority

79,552 Cayman hlandr Ailport5 Autho.iry

9,7&

50

2,542

1,400

3,353

16,150

13,E16

2,ffi

(2so)

{2,031)

{358)

surDk./
(D6fl.ll)

060@

45

30

11,79sl

{620)

lgt

29

181

5,518

39

12971

1,885

1@

{1,396)

{e)

{12s)

(!616)

{9,98r)

955

lrc,6r5l

15,833

Cayman lslandr National Insu rance Company

lotal

Note 42: Investment in Statutory Authoritles & Government
Companies
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Details of Borrowings

Central Government

CAYMAI'I ISIANDS GOVIRNMENT

DITAIE OI BORROWINGS

as at3l DECIMBER 2017

0 ginrl g.lame arrl3l hhn(. ai

Typ. ol Drbl lraiag.d ly lororint D€lemhlI01i 30th lum

5fi0 050m

l&rd!Go$n ri S.otili.t trr, mot forcignCunency.U!0 CenlBlGovamment ll5$l,m 4,556

br{e

Bond in the anount r U$ 163 2 mil ion li/as iltued on 8d AY 2001. Pr n( pa of US05,440,m0 p us

! rur!id!emniiua lyinAll and 0cloberlllfii linilnDlurity dite of 8lh Apd] 2018

llot ! bur ForeiSncure&yljlocmlolcosnnEnt UslU,mo 61,300

ra, $ueo o 19l{ot'r!q 2m9 'FeatrourldU$ll2 r, hon Inlecslony ) pdYlb e seni'

rt a nk 0f 5.95% Der e11llun *ilh a bu lit piliment dus m 24 ovenbef 2019

Lo'il!l83$ 
Iorcigncuftmy u9 centb Gowmment lJ52&8m dm0

0f US974.4 n llion amrlised ovs It YeaE il a { tsd nhast tule of 5 i8X Ft aflnum,

flrfiedy FF$b ol ile4n d|! PriadFl ol 1,s05 m llion aom.ndng $th finll reFlneni duo

ovenber1020

lnhnitiomi hii lc.aymanl limil.d toln I 1033U39 foreisn Curei.! . USD Centn Covemlljeft U5 63,000 20,125

n the imol]nt oi USS62,999,919.m llji 5 dbvn 0n 27th June 2008. lhe loin has beelr dmoft 5ed ovel

y6 wl$ t/4ly payt5 0{ Pdftipi U$1,050,m0 pus inh'elt@ 2 71l{ effe.tive wrth finaleFY'nmtdue

2021.

Fdcrjbhm htfirdhi.l Lil lbtrEnl Limiled t .i I ltsIl5t 
forcign Cur!nry-u!0 celltnt Govsmnent

n lie amoLrnt oi USS45.599,963.52, as dByrn on 24 iune 2008 .nronled 0/er 15 yE llvth l4y

u5 {5 6m rd56,

p?yments ol 1159i60,000 p !5 nterert .6 2.71% effed ve 24 Ji iuary 2014 |{ lh a f na rcpllmenl

24June202l

litrm.tiondh lcayrE0ltiilit dh.iillutl8 
Foreign Cureq.UD Cenu?lcovemnEnt U54/,m

11 fie anornt ot U5517.16 Million amnised owr 15 yr wlh !4lY ldndpal pinm[ 0l

01Lri interen rt 2 67% elftctlve 11 [ebru ry 2014 ,,tdth a fini relarienl due 11 febniry 2023

ti6t6 bbe lit.m.tiomlh {Oyma )Limitrd [oa[ I l0l{414t tocrncu encv-u50 CeniDi6ovefilllent U5185,074 Ilm4

fixedBte or of USS185.0mIion ad$ncedon 19hApd l0l1 al ef interest Eh of 5 44* pel

Srm-in0u.l paynEnlr ol 1 lnn 0n y coflnefting 19 odofu 2011 $dl Pincipal piFqrb ol

milllor dur intereit h mnmnle 19$ ocl0her U016.
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CAYMAN ISI.Al{DS GOVTRI{MENT

DETAII.S OT BORROWNGS

as at3l DECEMEER 2017

o4'iial Sda|r! :r at 31 0abnrc

lorouint D!(onb?l 1017 loh lum

t000

Foaitn Cuneiry. tUR C.iuarGdedmeir tUR 1.5{0

ff000

Iry.rt|Inl f.il Lo.n | &&A

rstlr{Ds coMMtilr[Y c0||f Gt

0f tCU1.5 m on llu.ooean Curcn{y Units) repay?b e over 30 yea6 ronrmem ng l5ih 0ctober, 1999

rlerc( of loli per aifun 06 outsh^diog brhm-A. lo s!! le.r i!! ied ri Cor Govenmeft l0th

1014 lod lo bs rll | rcp.d @ Rrr (hsd!l!i paynelr dac 15 Ap'il 2018.

ll|.liritl ltn l8.n56 tocgi(ldemy tUR CmrrlGDemflsr

CivilAviatior' A(hoity (C.y||lan 8n! A40nlrsolt toM of tcllo3 lfurcFan Cunemy Unhl

d€r30 Fa6.ommsciB lsr Miy, 1990 at mierc't of 10% pe/!Mumof oltstafdhg ba ance

Iia, rcpayFed o' t mr! $h..d!kd M4 2017 loai to be ldly €p:id 01 iert scheilled pay'n nt

2 M4 2018.

llwdmlnl 8lnl loan r 8.01{4 turetnCweicy t!R CentralCovemmeir

C'vil Avi.lhi Aulhdioiy {clymri 8n! Ahtonlsolt loai ol tcWT nilr0n {turop€an €uirMy

repiyaHe ovrr l0 yer6 rorne^('nt 5U riolemb€l 1997 ii imercri oi 1.0t{ per a4num of

brl ft eth rriil rcpayiEnt ofitm. y xhed! ed ovember 2019 loar to bp fully rcpaid 0i

rhedued prymeil date 15May 2018.

MII{AGID IY GIIIMT 6OI/INNM I ttl,0t1
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Statutory Authorities and Government Companies

STATUTORY AUTHORlTIES AND GOVERNMENT OWNTO COMPAiIITS

DETAII.S OF BORROWINGS

as at 31 DTCEMBER 2017
04idl !.laice arrl31 BaLNe es

lyp.olodt Mm4ed BY &nowhg De.emhrl0lT 30th l0De

50o 05000

forerSn clrrci.y. !50 cayftnA|MF Ltd u528'502

$e lt ended 30 luie 2004, the Codplny enle€d iito a ldi a8e.rient lith Rovll Bank ot

lGyNnt5andt 1'RBC')to obtlm lu^d toa totalva u€ 01513,602,331, wh ih *as to be rcpard

a frfte0 yer p€dod. Thrs iundng wa5 obtaned n o.der to prdi& fund5 ior ope6tidal ieeds li
201i, tlE Cohpiiy enteEd h i.v aSrcemnt dth 8BC (o,€ilu al enslinS crcdil la.iltes

laolue5')Mth RBC atthatlime,lhelem ofwhich supefede al prcvos bof,owmS egreenent5

lum 2011, the !gcerunt was amnded lo idd 1,555 mill m from lhe oved6ft ia.il lY oito te eritti.t

hr ldv.rhe compaiy tr req!rcd to pay m amduit oi 5189,825 mmlhly elit i8 to bolh pii(ipa : id

Ihe io b{a6 a llo:lif g nre ol nteEn pi.ed ti me mnth L bor pl$ 2 54 per !iiun rhe bti
s.u.ed by My ol gsunte lrcm th Gdemmnl

clyftia*F trd us 10 528

rlE year en@ l0 lue 2m4, th. Cmpany enhed iito a ldn ,8eeMt lith RBC ro ohni lods

! torrl slue oi 52!055,m0, sh.h wll *r to be epard @r a iifte. yet pencd. The egrcem.t

a leal b. in $e CayEn l5lads to !did. 5C* dl li€ ft{Ljed llds Ge (irl bdml ThB

w4 obla nEd ir dne. lo !.@@ turd5 fd oFdtooi Eed5. li Nfrefrtfl 20ll li€ ConpanY

i" iew agfterenl {ilh Roc c@nnc a | ALlllig d€dil ia.ilitiB I'ccdit td.iilje{) sth Rsc 11

ne lhe ltm oI wiiich 5Lr€6ede all F&o6 b@friig igrcemn$ Ihe Ccnp.ry 
't 

Pqrind to

Fftipal piyft^B olsllo,o5? {2014 5[1,720] pl6 ;.rd€d ftden o. UE @Bt idry brlai.e. T,E

bea6 a nGIirB GF of Lnleen pl.ed ar om MS lbd plu5 U 5* D.l arnun The l@.6 te.@d bv

htd.rion lLnl to'eign Cutrgi.y Utl carNiaMjfLrd u510528

to rlp agrcemit a, d€srihd ab&r, RBC enlecd iilo a l@n ag@m wtti6lCinb{.i
Bank (c2rmnl Lld {"rCl0'l l0 prdide lunding io i toril vtlue ol Sl0,5ll,5a0, {htrh $ll b.

@r a lihee4 lcar p€nod {.orecli@lx $e "Club l@f"lPFlait to ttu agreeft^! lhe conp.nrv

@nplv ri$ tne (N.anE .mlihrd in (il abde. It lhe 4it ot dehult, rcrg ry by wrnen iolrc

dre Codiray thogh RBc, dslarc all borctjr3s under dP Club t@i a8.c@( lo b. imdirtelv da
piFble. Ooig dF tr;6 ddiig 30 luF 2015 ,r! 2old $e Cdr{Dit leo iailed lo diply trd i

epc'{ns.oe@nr 
'd.ted 

ro the p@r on of dr coipiny'r mn!!lDdled liiai. alnaknenls

the leidr6. sihF t8O das oa tlt li.anoal Year e'i Hoft€t d at l0 lut ?015 aid 2014, nerthe'

norrcsiadp@d.dwnttenndticeoiintenttoa.l.5ae5ultolthtshiufeiidlEdnneadpldided

of iuhroveNnt5 t0the conlany. Th lomi! ee'edty$yof gua6it4lDhtheGolemmit

us{.200

rhe ted ended l0 iuie 2m7, the Conpany .iw€n iilo a loai agceftit {ith FC 0 to obtain rundr

a tota ule of S4,200,m0, str rh w ll be ftpa d ds a En yed percd. Th I fundi.t wd obaMed i
ro pdide fMds lo. aprbl srpend Nrc rie compait 6 lE! red to pay an !rcunr oi 540,000

rcaliig to both pnfeple and nieren the lom be a ioaliiS ole ol iitren pled il oie

lborplls075%peradium. The orirs5ftuenbysayol gua.iileefton$eGovenmit

tn{ c:itbe tr lnt.mrtioial 8.nk fore{n C urer.cy . USO (ir*iaNrFud Lls 15 ooo

rhe !e4 end€d 30 jlie 2009, the Conpiny entercd mlo a oa agrcemitqth tC I to obta niunds

total 6le ol sltOOO,0@, snnh *ill be epald over a nief yet Pdiod ni5 fund ng wrs ohtaiied n

f und5 ior oFdt om iee& Ar at lune 10, ?015, lnd e ! esulr !a the 12 mnth pr nc pal

mted .bow the Md{v o.incilal ind ntercn iirtalmeits we R&d to 5108,419, slbied to

intErcnEtes l2014:5116,0011.I'e od ber! a tloitiig Ele of Lileft.t Frcedal om moiti

d6 3 5%perannum. lheloai b secuEd byw,yoi gudanteelrcmtlE Goveiiftit

srnl ol c.Md. FmSi Cudefty.lsD clyrunArMy, ttd lls 2l'3m i9,992

tlE l8 mntn penod eded 11 Decenber 2017, $e Codplq lmsoldat d tll exndng oai

w$ . !iql-. l@ ha^t. Ihe loai beaE a lired Ete of ile.st bded 6 tts Ihe loii 6

by my oi , guanne fm $e GoEn@nl md ts eprylue by 1022 Dr. l@N b?d a rl6!q
itercsl Fred at oe.Md tibc plus . E(entage ipeid ps aiir
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STATUTORY AUTHORITITS AND GOVERNMENT OWNTD COMPANITS

9m0 o5q,0

rJ5{875

Comr.ed 2m2 a'i ftNnig 2021 rnk'6t 6le ol I 95%

C.yNn lsla.ds 6@mmr y t dE CIDB adiry ar ae.ltq Ageot ft6 Mr m iddtjo ro /oi{l
of (Edrtof 9909o lu$1.200.000)

[,laY 201 C08 gur pd i Es ln. ol .ndt d 1']555 rillim lC 94154 nillidJ lor rcngage fiDtri|s lo

u5 16,800 21,921llrlGribbe.n l.teharionrl8rnk.0.hr Conelid loi

i"F )015 
' 
l'3 ,,pd Irdl fim L fired dep6n $ reply JSSS \,rllr aldr t liry st- | dA

due ror rcpayne^t m laiuiry 2015.rd reeNed !SSl5 8 M lq !rc(eedr !nde. ! rcw dedl
hlh fC I to ofi ol drte tf d.ep:y lhe rcrum ig riedr fadlter | 5red !bo@ Iie iew ded r

beid, temoi l0 yers lmludigluie 30, 2029) it an mkrelt 6k ofUS I [hn$ tB0Rplu5

5 5{u€d b a Coien@nt Ge6ntee. u.ds llF tems ol die agreemit mreien on y wi be

ti€ frEl Iyea6 aller$irh rmnftn paym i ol /ri(iprlann intercn wllbe md!

flrnCidbbqi Int.halionrl 6.nk Icrymnl timil.d
Health sed ces

toa Clre(y (YD Aulhoity

Health 5.tuks
lda Curen.y KYD A,lhorq

5800

Au$onlyeturedaloa^ol5800,000lrcmF6tC!rbb&intem 
'oftlSanlltcg)atiiitercn6re

175% ror 10y€6 Abuildigwrh.a'rymgamuiiofS89l,l87l20L'rS920444)i55ubretioaf6t

CltC fi6lc..ibb.en Iilanrtio.rl lrnl lclymr) liril.d

0n 4 No!ei{e/ 201l, Ihe Hs th Althorq se.urcd a lold of 51,700,m0 tom FC 8 at ii mtEre5t ate oi

175%lorl0Fes Alaidritho4mgamlit0151,719,125i2014 t1719,125)trlbjedro,ii6r.h:'Ce

$led ar 5 238% 23tho.rober?004forZ0yeaAlo2Sth0crobs2024uthremniiulpaymeits

NanoralrM'ng

io€8iClmi.y U5D Deve opmntriln

Mn.d tcB lj€

lftiltJreny KYI Delelop@nr lrus:

51,700

u511500

J514,500

5U,0€l

scd n Augdl 2CU9 at 1r rii d I 290 % ror 19 yrr6 {r'6r Z 16 Mdthly iilecj: ody. 9 y6 cI 5em!

ioi!ilyp.tupai paymnr5lS.l@rmre;t€i! nllyD 10De.20190.rc'rmncng eollad

0.MtC 16 1106 rL,ronpa_,obrarodloin!(. qIri.lr'-,!FLr/-i1\!ro ! Bdr o r ri

RBcRoyal&ikotcaiad..rd5rotiabrnt Foeigncursq LrsD PMAurfonry

514,150,000 lussu9m,mol tsled 30 [&rh 2004 lor ih€ Rol?l wader lemnn aid boan.g inE6i ol

l 90R ll 0692C* a, at 30lLne l0l2l plLr 1.5i( and Rp:yible 
'r 

mnlhly 
'irtirmir5 

5:rdilB im May I

Ciytui s aid5lurr e

C.ymatnt oiale.il&Clgcfl.nclib[eanltrle'D.tiof.ll.il FoE,g^C!mm! L]5! tu.mllg8l]ttd i,51d800

rhe C.yNi 5Lrds Govemmil b! *a! or leftH ot sdenihrB Buankpt the @r 1.. i!.5 Id
Ut5l4,S0,O0 {Cl5U.,ll2,0Ol. aa(il|id r b 1 b€r 

'nt?asr 
b€Mrm 0 59{ aid I 0e! abde 1,6 Dclhr

oim dle, rc$r mnthry tu.il,ty I b.a6 intercei al I 75* :be tre 90 day lon&. nleft.nt oiler .ara

liSoR) TheeriedE6rpirluiel0 20156bE$aenl75%and401%i2014 be$€en375%Md402%l

rhe deia i ol eel fadlhv6 a b€low,

.e Cctr9iry wlh bueet lhdJ.ll5 clah.s r0 il.€ P! *nrh ir guznnredj br il.e Caymf rrbds

l
0n Nwember T ?m6, h! Conpary oblihed: @ifi(llyl'h. t]] Z') I@m Cilm& NlioN Saniro

dln lhe compry {$ bldgel sh.rilal5 relanig t0 the Paik whrch tr guEdted by $e Oymm rrlaidr

loi 
|tby ll. )0m. $Aidlley obl,E l.lonraolily l'h. try l'tlM ti^r b.i[b' 

^r?n:r'M,l&.1
to 6ni lfe Cdrpany u$ ooect ng o5hJls 5hcnfallr. Ihe fa.liq d lully gua.mteo by itE CarEi

cMndiL Dlingrheiv&lablrypedodlMay2l 2009roo.rDherr0,2m9l6ri;.iqrdei
r 

'ite.!n 
on y b4tr, payab eM$ly'i ama^
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STATUTORY AUTHORlTIES Ai,ID GOVERNMEiIT OWNED COMPANItS

DEIAIl5 OF BORROWINGS

DECEMBER 2017
Ortii.l 6.lMr. .srl tl arl.i(? as

lyr.olo.tt rr.i{.nsy Bordil3 o€enberzolt 30ih Jlm
teo otoo

caytuihiidrrudLe
5.trio.Nor6 foregicureiq !50 hml1933l(td ri54.4 600

b r lonlidenr! ol!c.n.d memodidum, ih! Compaiy 6sued Nor.i ii th. rmolit of

(.qu v.leit b Cr537.46'1,0001 9l m'ily td $! p!O6€ rf tund'q fte P.d Th. Not6 rere

r or rnd trrc pl...d h Wlr'rd 81. 
' 

& compa"y, l.l C ld'e 'pla@ml l€?^al , rh d!'d pany

'nkno^ 
Ihe oca & gudameed by rl! caYmaD llhidr 6Nmmd up lo in imouit ot

,019!rd b€i rter,(ar' "d rt. d'a35\ pq xn-_.
qurnd\ payists.oEmrccd oi )ure 2,2004. lhe lEt 9 qcne l

*!r€ mterc5l on y ind qua l(s y payneic ol pr ( pil a id dern tummei.ed oi s€ptemb€r 1,

rhE pric pilanour ol rhe Noles *l rnoftse q!rn. y to rn appd nt. f ni plm pa p4m.it
u595 4m,m0 (cts1,535.000) due oi Mad t,l0:9

wataAurhonry

fdregiCuren.y !S0 ClyNi

wlerAurho. ry

rorcign Curen(y U5D taymi

u59175 t 782

5,de-o.3ii l0Ys,t@i olU559,175,442tunmen..dJ!y2m9.lnkrerr !643%

6re.Up3hd€:7y€rl@i ol U55r,061,316 ronn.i.ed ruly 1009 h@.n n 6$$

0t015 MArlacto 3y stA'|noRy AUTHoRLI E9 AflDGovtR tMflllCoMPAi t5

SUMMARY OF BORROWINGS

as at 31 oECEMBER 2017
o titl Sihnre 8fl!l 8.rii.e

8oiio,ii3 De.enlermu torh,u^.
u5s/otam osooo

t2

l
8 ':

9

!6

us51,142,709 509,703 531,330

5:a,933 &051 10,172

(2.433 3&l 9r9

5!t545 59,t!'1

ullst4sl4 150197 502179

{2,133 334 939

rJsS 92.075 59.5I ,13,923

12.033 3.053 10,372

turho'ires &Gov.nn.dCompaflg - U50 Debl

Auihoit6 & Gov.mr.il Conpan6 nD oebr

l1t a5
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Note 44: Statement of Trust Holdings

Under the PMFL, "trust assets" are defined as assets (including money, but not money

belonging to the Government) transferred or paid to the Government in trust for any

purpose or to hold for or on behalf of any person, and include any such assets-

(a) To be held pending the completion of a transaction or dispute; or

(b) That belongs or is due to any person and is collected under any agreement with that
person.

Trust assets are held separately and are not reported as part of these financials

statements but are being disclosed in accordance with the provisions of the PMFL.

These trusts are classified into nine (9) broad groups and are shown in the Statement of
Trust Holdings.

As at 31 December 2017, the Government held 5257.2 million (2015:5101.4 million) in

trust assets as shown below.

GOVERNMENT OF THE CAYMAN ISTANDS

Statement of Trust Assets

As at 31 December 2017

Prior Period

OpeningBalance Adiustment
crs{m cr9(m

Additions Oisbursements

crs(m crsoq)

Closing

soners Monies 92

5,406

298

397

26,246

5&161

10,324

463

92

5,41)6

308

7,207

78,965

Lt,1a5
19

50

Bration Repatriation Depos

BaiLBonds 2

12

21,@2

68,306

382

16

7,293

772,4O2

7,370,473

6

302

(8)

(s01)

17,166)

{79,543}

\7,369,7941
(2t

{71s}

Asset Forfeiture

Defunct Companies

LOUTT FUNO USIS

Dormant Trusts Account
lmmigration Bail Bond5

urner trusts

otalTrustAssets 7y E7
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Note 45: Government Reporting Entitles as at 31
Entity
Audit Office

Cabinet Office

Director of Public P rosecutions

Judicial Administration
Ministry of Commerce, Planning, & Infrastructure

Ministry of Community Affairs

Ministry of District Administration, Tourism and Transport

Ministry of Education, Youth, Sports, Agriculture & Lands

Ministry of Finance and Economic Development

Ministry of Financial Services & Home Affairs

Ministry of Health, Environment, Culture & Housing

Ministry of Human Resources & lmmigration

Off ice of the Ombudsman

Portfolio of Legal Affairs

Portfolio of the Civil Service

Auditors Oversight Authority
Cayman Airways Ltd

Cayman lslands Airports Authority
cayman lslands Development Bank

Cayman lslands Monetary Authority
Cayman lslands National Insurance Company

Cayman lslands Stock Exchange

Cayman National cultural Foundation

Cayman Turtle Farm (1983) Ltd

Children and Youth Services Foundation

Civil Aviation Authority
Health Services Authority
Maritime Authority of the Cayman lslands

National Drug Council

National Gallery of the Cayman lslands

National Housing Developme nt Trust

National Museum

National Roads Authority
Port Authoritv
Sister lslands Affordable Housing Corporation

Tourism Attractions Board

University College of the Cayman lslands

utilities Regulations and compettition office
Wate r Authority-Cayma n

December 2017
Segement

CO RE

CORE

CORE

CORE

CORE

CORE

CORE

CORE

CORE

CORE

CO RE

CORE

CORE

CORE

CORE

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

SAGC

5A(]L
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